e |

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(NEREEMAL2ERAR)

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(&2 189% Stock Code: 00057)

==3

SINCE 1958

ANNUAL REPORT

TR

2022/23



MERE

Financial Highlights

HE_T-=F=-A=+—HIFE
Year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022 Change

XEBEEEKT L) RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS (HK$’000)
Was Revenue 2,312,584 2,728,763 -15%
FR B AT & A Profit before tax 158,941 238,568 -33%
RArE=FEA Profit attributable to equity holders

JEAh 5 A of the Company 130,289 213,309 -39%
BERE Total assets 4,149,309 4,429,327 -6%
% 3R fE 2 Shareholders’ funds 3,049,140 3,209,049 5%
BEITIR A Issued share capital 63,053 63,053 0%
MEEEFE Net current assets 1,990,404 2,042,490 -3%
BREE PER SHARE DATA
BRRERBFICENM) Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 20.7 33.8 -39%
SRR B8 CEMW) Cash dividends per share (HK cents) 11.8 16.8 -30%
BREEFEET) Net assets per share (HK$) 4.9 5.1 -4%
FEHELE R KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS
FHRR RS @R (%)  Return on average shareholders’ funds (%) 4.2 6.9 -39%
P EEMEERRE(%)  Return on average total assets (%) 3.0 4.8 -38%

RER B
Shareholders’ Calendar

BRREBFERE
20238 A28 H (2H—) NP IE

Annual General Meeting (AGM)
28 August 2023 (Mon) at 4:00 p.m.

PR R AR M Register of Members

TR MHBFEL(EREMAEIELAN) Closure of Register (both days inclusive)

HERREFEASHEA - 2023F8A23HE28H For attending AGM . 23-28 August 2023
(EB==2H—) (Wed — Mon)

FRHARS B35 A . 2023F9H5HZETH For Final Dividend : 5-7 September 2023
(EH=Z=2HM) (Tue - Thur)

BRE(ER) Dividend (per Share)

FRHARS B . FEEEA Bl Interim Dividend : HK4.5 cents

K E A HA . 2023F1AH12H(Z8M) Paid on : 12 January 2023 (Thur)

REIRE B . BT 3L Final Dividend : HK7.3 cents

IREE H B LR . 2023F9 8218 (EHmM) Payable on or about : 21 September 2023 (Thur)
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AT HBEFE SR
65 Years of Achievement

a
2023
EEEBER 65 F - HEHEREREMKeFT —K RS - B
MK6 [PRO] + MK6 [ max] & MK6 [ plus JLAZSPARKET —R 751 - &
EAERES) - EHEHRHBREE - — i - HISTI5—BUfT
Chen Hsong celebrated the 65th anniversary. Launched three new
members of the flagship MK6 family: the MK6 “PRO”, MK6 “max”
and MK6 “plus”. Also launched three new product lines based on

the SPARK series -- the AE all-electric, the EH electric and the HB
hybrid -- amid overwhelming market responses
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Chen Hsong was awarded
the “Record of Shenzhen
Enterprise Innovation

— Award for Innovative
Product Development” for
its SM6500-TP ultra-large-
tonnage two-platen injection
moulding machine with dual
Y-injectors design
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NRARE [EREE®
Em](2014-17)

Chen Hsong Machinery
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited

was awarded “Guangdong
Top Brand” (2014-17) J
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Chen Hsong launched three new members of

the MK6.6 product line: the MK6.6/A “Artisan”,
MK6.6/B “Brilliance” and MK6.6/C “Competence”.
They were models with high cost-performance
benefits for rapid penetration of key markets

2014
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Phase Il of Chen Hsong
Industrial Park in Pingshan,
Shenzhen was completed
and provided additional
production capacity
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SM4500-TP large-tonnage
two-platen injection
moulding machine won the
“Hong Kong Awards for
Industries: Machinery and
Machine Tools Design
Award” of The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association
of Hong Kong
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AT HBAFEHE T
65 Years of Achievement

a
2021 - 2019

- SPARKI 2 X | %5 2B &) B # [ 8 #76,500M8 18 A A & 5t
e — - mi= = BRIBRSRIBEEETERABAE S NBEBL
B E RN BB LR B SRR RBARLEBREESE
EREBE AT SPARK series of all-electric injection moulding machine and
Emel#Fn - ER SM6500-TP ultra-large-tonnage two-platen injection moulding

1TEERRMT - machine with dual Y-injectors design won the Grand Award
FITMITAIFIREL and Certificate of Merit in the “Equipment and Machinery
R AR 2021 Design” category of the 2019 Hong Kong Awards for Industries

K SPARKI 2 X I3 5| 2 B8+ BHEME BRUTR — &R respectively organized by The Chinese Manufacturers’

A i R 77522021 | ) o Association of Hong Kong

Chen Hsong repeatedly won industry benchmarks with its

strong product innovation. Chen Hsong won the “FITMI HoNS®

"Innovative Technology” Achievement Award 2021", and ‘@Qo 3 4.
the SPARK series all-electric injection moulding machine ww 2019?1&1%%’:‘%%&
won the “Ringier Technology Innovation Awards 2021 — Hong Kong Awards For Industries Awards Presentation
Plastics Industry” enzs: 3. @ucrma HKGCE Fhio, HIHIC

Event Champion :
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Trade and Industry Department

a
2005

BREEWTR PEEW ﬂ
500 & | %
Chen Hsong
was awarded
“Top 500 20065 HIHARS00%
Machinery in FRIAD
China”

REEERAA=ZETOREN  HBUTECRRNRETILERS  FORm

C@r ot 25T — ST ¥8 A N ¢ T . NN
/Tﬂiit = Tifi I MRRBUF BT, ERNEKIRE = i 2 B 9 R S R i
& 1Eh = Chen Hsong Industrial Park in [{EfET 2 ATTNE 200
Chen Hsong collaborated with Fengxiang Shunde, Foshan, was MEE AT —
Mitsubishi Heavy Industries Plastic ~ officially completed and

o . . Chen Hsong was elected

Technology Co., Limited in the commenced production one of the 200 Finest

development of large-tonnage

. s in Asi
two-platen machines Companies in Asia by

Forbes, an international
authoritative magazine

EEEEBRAR 2022/23 45 CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 3



AT HBAF MR
65 Years of Achievement

a
2004

B A BEREERER
ERHAERESE

The Circular Platen was
awarded Utility Model
Patent Certificate

B R T A S R (2R ) B R A A
Established Chen Hsong Machinery (Ningbo)
Co., Limited in Ningbo

YT ILE R B TR (F )R E
Phase Il of Chen Hsong Industrial Park in

Pingshan, Shenzhen commenced production DEnrnedsr

-V.V_!ﬁ 1 ]
CERTIFICATE OF MERIT e
AR e e ¥
v C Bi'EBE | ichen system™ [EH TR : MERRER A
: i ‘" xEEzs)
Chen Hsong Holdings Ltd l N
R Li +} H The iChen System™ was awarded “Hong Kong
o ;Q 3% * Awards for Industry: Machinery and Equipment
e e & Design Certificate of Merit”

BRI KXEZRZE
Chiang Chen Industrial Charity Foundation

BEBIHRLEERZ
EHEEBRAFRN
RY[BEIHEEERED
Dr. Chen Chiang donated
his shares in Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited to establish
“Chiang Chen Industrial
Charity Foundation”

R L T B 12 & Ak 2
EEE R MR A R A A
Established Chen De Plastics
Machinery Co., Limited in
Shunde, Foshan

~
]

EEEAFRAQR 2022/23 F45

a
/
80's
BBRNHILER
TEEFAR
&% 5= 1% A
Completion of
170,000 sq.ft.
factory at Tai Po
Industrial Estate
in Hong Kong

U g

A B VS BK S BRI AR R AR 19
BRAA
Established Chen Hsong

Machinery Taiwan Co.,
Limited in Taiwan

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



AT HBAFEHE T
65 Years of Achievement

a
2000

FORINTI T L (@ B2 3+ 7S 8 7 KA EHEEAR AT

R TH0E (55— 1) TRERXMER EEBWAR DM

Chen Hsong's main manufacturing and R&D Thi b

centers, the 560,000 sq.m. Phase | of (&A% - 00057)
Chen Hsong Chen Hsong

Industrial Park in
Pingshan, Shenzhen,
was completed

Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 00057)
was listed on the Main
Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited

KEABTRR
EENER

Awarded the Governor’s
Award for Industry
CHEN-PET —BRAMETBHRERSK (Productivity Category)
RE[EBIER  HEIWsERRAE
RatEE |
CHEN-PET, a two-stage preform
moulding turnkey system, was awarded
the “Hong Kong Awards for Industry: CMA Machinery
and Equipment Design Award” J

a
60s - /0s 50s

HHE AR REER 10 RTB4AE TR EHREEKL
%ﬁgﬁ/ﬁﬁpiﬁﬁﬂﬁé@r%ﬁﬁﬁj%%ﬁ# Chen Hsong was founded in
10-ounce in-line screw-type plastic injection moulding Hong Kong

machine, the first locally-designed and manufactured, was
launched and granted the “New Product Award” by The
Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong

BEIEEWHK XK1
IR RERKIDFRAR
IR - BEE LA
[&EREEBAR R -
EER - AER 78 IUK
Launched the first dual-colour blow moulding machine

' ) inspired by observations of how the turbid and pellucid waters
+t+FREE [MEE | ER stayed unmixed at the confluence of the Yangtze River and

“King of Toys” in 1970's Jialing River — led to invention of “Watermelon Ball”
RHEEFROF] 2022/23 FH CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 5
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Corporate Information

Directors
Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Harry Chi HUI (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Audit Committee

Mr. Anish LALVANI (Chairman)

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Harry Chi HUI (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN (Chairman)
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG

Nomination Committee

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN (Chairman)
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Corporate Governance Committee

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE (Chairman)

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Mr. Harry Chi HUI (appointed with effect from 1 July 2023)
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

Company Secretary
Mr. Chi Ngai CHAN

Authorized Representatives

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
Mr. Chi Ngai CHAN
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MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

4th Floor North
Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue
Hamilton HM 12
Bermuda

BRiBEERTRDE
BESHEEGRE AT
BB

ERE165%
REERAPO1T7E

AfREE

Victoria Place

5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

MPMBERTEEE MR,
s

IR BR 3B 18557

BSEERP L

20/£2001%

TEEMRREEBE

NRME

EE ¢ (852) 2665 3888

BH : (852) 2664 8202

E#H : comm@chenhsong.com
#34E + www.chenhsong.com

igrine]
00057

EHERARAT 2022/23 F3f

RAEHR
Corporate Information

Auditor

Ernst & Young
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

Principal Bankers

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Principal Share Registrar

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

Branch Share Registrar

Tricor Tengis Limited

17/F, Far East Finance Centre
16 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Registered Office

Victoria Place

5th Floor, 31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

Head Office & Principal Place of Business

Unit 2001, 20th Floor
Citicorp Centre

18 Whitfield Road
Hong Kong

Corporate Communications & Investor Relations

Company Secretary

Tel: (852) 2665 3888

Fax: (852) 2664 8202

E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com
Website: www.chenhsong.com

Stock Code
00057

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 7



www.chenhsong.com
www.chenhsong.com

8

ETEHRES

£ 0]

HE_Z-=ZFZA=1+—HINHEFE -
RNEBRBEEBBE2313BL(ZTE ==
F - W27 .29187T) - MEAF TPELS% © A
NElERFE ARMRENABE130ET(=Z
T F B2 13BT)  REAF TE39%

RAMBFER - $ERE S B AR E D
RE-—ERENFE - LEHNNEREFET
B P 4t [ 0 4 e L P S % E R O H D NIE
MEEMEMSRES LT XBEZFBFER
FR% - PEBANEEAEGDP)EFIBEE
B3% o BT RIGREN 202055 - HE
T AL IARBE R EERES —KERK
FoBURARHBERFERERAREER
R LBHREFRAY (LA HEREE)K
Moo tedh - ARBSEREMEBORRRSE
TREAZMFZET  HEAHOTEDER
BANEE -

S—OH - HftTELBRBINEE - BOMNE
H%  wRAARSERSERBRBFEAK
EEHNERBRUBR KELRETRER LT
MBS - BEE SR E R D BRI AT

RPE SHEMENHEMSHEEE

SO - BT ERHZHBRNOZE - SHRTT
WEAFERBMEAY - E—HEFEHHE
MHEBNRTEN - HMEMSEBEERTK
TRERE > MA—mHINE—FITETEE
MIGHBENED °

EEEAFRAQR 2022/23 F45

o

Chairman’s Statement

Business Review

For the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Group registered a
decline in turnover of 15% to HK$2,313 million (2022: HK$2,729 million).
Profit attributable to equity holders dropped by 39% to HK$130 million
(2022: HK$213 million).

During this financial year, COVID19 continued to exert its influence onto
the Mainland China market, with the lockdown of Shanghai severely
disrupting the domestic supply chain and export deliveries. Adding to
that were other negative factors such as weak real estate market and
rekindled Sino-US trade tensions, leading to a lacklustre GDP growth
of only 3% — the second worst performance in almost half a century
apart from the pandemic year of 2020. As a result, household income
in China was depressed, which in turn suppressed consumption and
manufacturing activities (especially for consumer products). Furthermore,
geo-political tensions as well as the persistent conflict between Russia
and Ukraine exerted a heavy toll on China exports.

On the other hand, other major developed economies such as the UK,
the U.S. and Europe were also plagued by high inflation resulting from
spiking energy and food costs due to the Russia-Ukraine conflict and
loose quantitative easing policy adopted by many countries since the
pandemic period. Persistently high inflation levels in turn depressed
consumption levels in western economies. Adding fuel to the fire were
multiple rounds of sharp interest rate hikes announced by major central
banks worldwide to curb inflation, which had devastating impacts on the
currencies stability and economic growth of emerging countries, and
hampered consumer confidence in Europe and the U.S..

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23
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Chairman’s Statement

During this financial year, the Group launched a new product series —
the MK6.6, based upon the Group’s flagship MK6 line — in response to
evolving market dynamics and customer needs. Furthermore, to cater for
rising demands for high-end and other special application segments, the
Group also introduced the next generation of the popular MK6 flagship
and TP two-platen series. As the Group’s motto puts it: “Customers Come
First and Always Create Value” the Group shall continue to allocate more
resources towards research and development of new products in the
future, with a focus on new machine models and variations that best
fit customers’ needs and uniquely address the individual demands of
specific application segments.

Future Prospects

For coming financial year there will be uncertainties abound, both
domestically in Mainland China as well as globally. These uncertainties
arose from multiple factors from the persistent conflict between Russia
and Ukraine to Sino-US trade tensions, escalating geo-political turmoil
and struggling economic conditions in China. The Group has always
implemented prudent financial management principles and will redouble
its efforts to enhance cash flow and account receivables management,
as well as further optimize supply chain management and cost control
measures, so as to enable the Group to rapidly adapt to different market
changes. At the same time, the Group, endeavouring to reduce the negative
impacts from the various factors mentioned above, seeks to further vitalize
and activate its existing structure by allocating more resources towards
expanding and strengthening its research and development team, as well
as its sales and distribution networks for both China and global market.

In a nutshell, the Group believes that the upcoming financial year will be
one packed full of challenges and difficulties. Because of this, the Group
shall commit to its core values of “Be Honest, Be Aggressive and Dare
to Embrace Responsibility,” and adopt a more conservative and prudent
management approach, but at the same time continue to aggressively
invest in developing new products and exploring new markets. The
Group believes that new product models specifically tailored to customer
needs will help open up new opportunities. Besides, the EV (electric
vehicles) market has been the biggest winner in China, the Group will
further explore this market by leveraging on the experience gained in
the cooperation with BYD — the leading EV supplier in the world and
contribute to the environmental sustainability in Mainland China.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23
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As the year 2023 marks the Group’s 65th anniversary, the Group has
planned a series of promotional and marketing events for the occasion as
an appreciation for the Group’s customers and their support throughout
the decades. In this challenging year, the Group is even more grateful
towards the unwavering support of our shareholders over the years and
hence, on the basis of the Group’s established dividend policy, strives to
enhance shareholders’ returns to express our heartfelt gratitude.

Gratitude

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | give my heartfelt gratitude to all
shareholders, customers, suppliers, business partners, and bankers of
the Group for their long-term support, and to our loyal and industrious
management team and employees for their continuous contributions
over the years.

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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Business Performance

For the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Group’s turnover
declined by 15% to HK$2,313 million (2022: HK$2,729 million). Profit
attributable to equity holders declined by 39% to HK$130 million (2022:
HK$213 million) while basic earnings per share amounted to HK20.7
cents (2022: HK33.8 cents). The Board recommended the payment of
a final dividend of HK7.3 cents (2022: HK11.6 cents) per share for this
financial year.

The year of 2022 can be described concisely as a “Global Inflation Year”.
The stalemate of Russia-Ukraine conflict continued to consume massive
resources and destroy infrastructure, with Europe economies taking a
frontal impact in the form of refugee, food and energy shortages crises.
With Russia being a prominent global energy exporter and Ukraine a
major global grain exporter, the conflict caused worldwide shortages and
hikes in worldwide energy and food prices — leading to Global Inflation.
Making matters worse, Mainland China at the same time was stuck in a
struggle with continuous COVID19 outbreaks as well as rising geo-political
tensions such as the Sino-US trade disputes.

During this financial year, loose quantitative easing policy — common
tactic to counter the COVID pandemic — led to overheating demand
spikes, as high inflation persistently plagued major consumer economies
across the globe. In fact, combating inflation became the most urgent
task of central banks worldwide, but the measures were sometimes
no less disruptive than inflation itself. For example, to deal with an
overheating economy and rampant inflation, the U.S. Federal Reserve
started an aggressive quantitative tightening and rate hike process,
with seven consecutive rate hikes in 2022 alone that took the Federal
funds rate from 0% to 4.5% — a massive increase. Most central banks
around the world followed its footsteps, with the Bank of England hiking
interest rates similarly for seven times, and the European Central Bank
for four times, and even more drastic hikes in many inflation-plagued
developing countries.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

High inflation and aggressive interest rate hikes inevitably caused
economic activities to subside in most countries across the globe. Even
Mainland China — the growth engine of the world economy for the past few
decades — was taking its toll, with Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth
in 2022 declined to 3%, the second lowest level within half a century
(disregarding the pandemic year). As the same time, the International
Monetary Fund (IMF) continued to downgrade the 2022 world economic
growth forecasts by 2.8%, and gave a negative outlook on the global
economy for 2023. Negative sentiments converged to a peak during the
fourth quarter of 2022, or the third quarter of the Group’s financial year.

As the Group’s core customers rely primarily on export business, especially
in Mainland China and Taiwan, thus the Group’s performance was heavily
impacted by this inflation-induced global consumption weakness.
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JETMASTER MK6 “max” Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine

!

“',’ CHEN HSONG

FEFEMKG [ plus /{aAR 56825 1%

MIKGplus

JETMASTER MK6 “plus” Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine
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Market Analysis

Breakdown of turnover, based on the location of customers, for the
financial year ended 31 March 2023 is as follows:

2023 2022
(B¥TET) (B EET) )
B E#hi Customer Location (HK$ million) (HK$ million) Change
R EKRE BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,671 1,987 -16%
= Taiwan 63 132 -52%
E 5o R Other overseas countries 579 610 -5%
2,313 2,729 -15%
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During this financial year, with the economy in Mainland China consistently
impacted by multiple negative factors, growth in industrial output dropped
below pre-COVID levels. As geo-political tensions escalated, high inflation
and rapid rate hikes caused a massive shrinkage of export orders, which
resulted in a sharp drop in Mainland China’s import and export activities,
registering a negative growth in the third quarter of this financial year
(i.e. the last quarter of 2022). Stalling exports in turn led to a severe
reduction in capital investments for manufacturing equipment. During
2022, Mainland China GDP growth declined to below 3%, while the
Purchasing Manager’'s Index (PMI) dropped to 47 by the end of the
year, both far below expectation. Although PMI figures rebounded during
the fourth quarter of this financial year (i.e. the first quarter of 2023),
it fell back into below-the-50 threshold starting from April, indicating a
recovery in the manufacturing sector was far from assured. Many export
customers of the Group indicated that unsold inventories were heavy
in western consuming countries, such as Europe and the U.S., due to
inflation-induced weak consumption. In certain cases, unsold inventories
worth more than one full year’s sales turnover. Consequently, many
customers of the Group delayed their plans to purchase new machines
as their customers’ restocking orders did not happen.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

Domestically, the depressed real estate market in Mainland China also
suppressed the whole chain of upstream industries such as electric
appliances and construction materials sectors. Although there was a
renaissance in the growth of electric vehicles (EV's) — and the Group
cooperated with EV market leader BYD to supply more than RMB500
million worth of high-end injection moulding machines to support BYD’s
massive capacity growth plans — traditional gas-powered automotive
encountered a considerable decline in market share. All the factors
above contributed to the weakening of domestic consumption in Mainland
China, which in turn suppressed investments in new capital equipment.
Consequently, the Group’s turnover in Mainland China declined by 16%
to HK$1,671 million (2022: HK$1,987 million).

During this financial year, the Group registered a significant decline in
turnover in Taiwan, primarily due to weak export orders. As Taiwanese
customers mainly focus on export to western developed countries such
as Europe and U.S., and European economies took a nose dive due
to the Russia-Ukraine conflict and rampant inflation and rate hikes in
the U.S., export activities in Taiwan were heavily impacted. The Group
therefore registered a decline of 52% in Taiwan to HK$63 million (2022:
HK$132 million).
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

As for the international market, the Group also faced significant
headwinds as European and U.S. economies went into stalling. During
the entire year of 2022, with the exception of Mainland China whose
consumer prices had remained relatively stable, most countries in the
world experienced stubbornly-high inflation resulting from the conflict
between Russia and Ukraine, rekindled Sino-US trade disputes and
resurgent COVID outbreaks. For instance, Consumer Price Index (CPI)
in the U.S. spiked by 8.1%, a forty-year high, while CPI in the Eurozone
rose by 8.3%, highest since 1992. Average inflation for all developed
economies reached 7.2%, an extremely high level. Even Japan’s CPI
growth climbed to 3.7% in October.

Inflation in many developing countries went straight out of control —
average CPI growth, for instance, of Africa, Latin America and Middle East
to reach 14%. Runaway inflation forced the Federal Reserve of the U.S.
to undergo an aggressive and very rapid rate hike program in response,
with major central banks around the world following, wreaking havoc
on emerging markets currencies and financial systems. Despite these
challenges, however, the Group still managed to achieve encouraging
business growth in certain markets such as in India, Middle East and
Africa, but unfortunately this could not fully offset the significant downsides
arising from the weaknesses in the Europe and the U.S. markets. As a
result, the Group’s international turnover recorded an average 5% decline
to HK$579 million (2022: HK$610 million).
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Development of New Technologies and New Products

During this financial year, the Group launched its new MK6.6/A “Artisan”
series with great market reception in general. Therefore, in December
2022, the Group continued the success with a massive online new-
products launch event, announcing six new product models as well as
previews of three new high-end, soon-to-be-launched product lines.
This online event achieved click rates, likes and views far exceeding the
industry standard, and brought a fresh breath of air in the traditional capital
equipment industry to delight the customers. During the online launch

lowing product lines, targeting industry and application-

specific segments, were announced:
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MK6.6/A “Artisan” for applications demanding high price-performance,
such as houseware and household goods;

MK6.6/B “Brilliance” for applications demanding precision, such as
electric appliances;

MK6.6/C “Competence” for applications demanding high configuration,
such as toys;

The DM Il third-generation multi-material platform for products using
multiple plastic resins;

Large-tonnage all-electric models the SPARK 300 and 360 for large-sized
products demanding high-precision, such as light guide industry;

The Chen Hsong proprietary Mega Cloud IOT online platform;
Preview of the MK6 “PRO” series, the upgraded Group flagship series for
very demanding applications, such as assembly toy bricks and electronic

parts;

Preview of the MK6 “plus” series for applications demanding very high
precision on injection control; and

Preview of the MK6 “max” series for applications demanding ample
machine configuration.
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

Product Capacity and Cost Control

During this financial year, the Group has completed the overhaul of its
major manufacturing facilities, including upgrades to old equipment
and adding new automation systems, resulting in increased capacity.
The Group has plans to introduce automatic assembly lines and flexible
manufacturing systems in order to raise the general level of automation,
intelligent management and operating efficiency in all the Group’s
production facilities.

The Group also strived to perfect its quality assurance and, through an
in-depth Total Quality Management (TQM) program, seek to raise quality
consciousness and standard-driven operating procedures among all
production staff. An expanded and more aggressive Value Improvement
(VI) program is also underway in order to further reduce procurement
costs, as well as raise operational efficiency, for higher competitiveness
in the current weak market demand condition in Mainland China and
international markets.

As future market conditions remain extremely uncertain and unpredictable,
the Group shall continue to strengthen its supply chain management,
alleviate supply bottlenecks, enhance supply flexibility, as well as assist
suppliers to upgrade their quality assurance systems and cost control
measures, in order to be able to respond rapidly to any market change.

Financial Review

During this financial year, the Group surrendered the lease for the Tai Po
plant to the Hong Kong Science and Technology Parks Corporation for
the sake of better allocation of resource. As a result, the Group recorded
a one-off disposal gain of HK$31 million during the year.

JETMASTER MK6 “PRO” Servo Drive Injection Moulding Machine
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

Liquidity and Financial Conditions

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had net current assets of HK$1,990
million (2022: HK$2,042 million), which represented a 3% decrease
over last year. Cash and bank balances (including pledged deposits)
amounted to HK$671 million (2022: HK$700 million), representing a
decrease of HK$29 million as compared to last year. As at 31 March
2023, the Group had no bank borrowings, decreased by HK$22 million
as compared to last year. As at 31 March 2022, the bank borrowings
were HK$22 million, which were short term loans with floating interest
rates for general working capital purposes. The Group recorded a net
cash position of HK$671 million (2022: HK$678 million), representing
a decrease of HK$7 million as compared to last year.

The gearing ratio of the Group is measured as total borrowings net of
cash and bank balances divided by total assets. The Group had a net
cash position as at 31 March 2023. As a result, no gearing ratio was
presented.

It is the policy of the Group to adopt a consistently prudent financial
management strategy, sufficient liquidity is maintained to meet the
funding requirements of the Group’s capital investments and operations.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 March 2023, bank deposits of certain subsidiaries of the Group
in the amount of HK$26 million (2022: HK$27 million) were pledged,
including HK$3 million (2022: HK$3 million) for securing a bank loan
granted by a bank in Mainland China to a customer to purchase the
Group’s products, and HK$23 million (2022: HK$24 million) for securing
the issuance of bank acceptance notes, recorded in the trade and bills
payables, to suppliers. In addition, bills receivable of a subsidiary of
the Group in the amount of HK$94 million (2022: HK$98 million) was
pledged for securing the issuance of bank acceptance notes, included
in the trade and bills payables, to suppliers.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitments of HK$26
million (2022: HK$13 million), mainly in respect of the upgrading
of industrial facilities and the purchases of production equipment in
Mainland China which are to be funded by internal resources of the
Group.

Treasury and Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its funding. Funds,
primarily denominated in the Hong Kong Dollar, the Renminbi, the New
Taiwanese Dollar, the U.S. Dollar and the Euro, are generally placed with
banks as short or medium term deposits for working capital of the Group.

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had no borrowings in Japanese Yen. As
at 31 March 2022, the Group had borrowings in Japanese yen equivalent
to HK$22 million for payments to suppliers in Japanese yen. The Group,
from time to time, assesses the risk exposure on certain volatile foreign
currencies and manages it in appropriate manner to minimize the risk.

The Group has substantial investments in Mainland China and is aware
that any fluctuation of the Renminbi would have an impact on the net
profits of the Group. However, since most of the transactions of the Group
are conducted with the Renminbi, the exchange differences have no
direct impact on the Group’s actual operations and cash flows.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2023, the Group provided guarantee to a bank
amounted to HK$3 million (2022: HK$4 million) for a bank loan granted
to a customer to purchase the Group’s products. As at 31 March 2023,
the Group provided no performance guarantee to a bank for a customer.
As at 31 March 2022, the Group provided performance guarantee to a
bank amounted to HK$0.2 million for a customer.
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Management's Discussion & Analysis

Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

It has long been the Group’s motto to “Our Customer’s Need is Our
Command” and to the maximum extent possible the Group puts the
interests and needs of our customers as its primary reason of being.
This includes providing the Group’s customers with the best designed
products, and timely and appropriate pre/after-sales services. Similarly,
the Group strictly selects high-quality suppliers and views its suppliers
not as mere vendors but as strategic partners and important links in
its supply chain. It is the Group’s procurement policy to maintain good
relationship and communications with suppliers based on the principle
of mutual trust.

In the end, the ultimate goal of the Group with regards to customers and
suppliers is “Win-Win".

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection,
minimizing the impact of its activities on the environment, and complying
with applicable environmental laws. The Group has implemented effective
Environmental Protection Policy (the “Policy”) that enables the Group to
making progress in environmental protection.

Under the Policy, the Group focuses on promoting clean production, and
strives to making the most efficient use of resources in its operations, and
minimizing waste and emission. The Group achieves this aim through
actively re-designing its activities and production methods that encourage
and promote recycling of resources, using environmentally-friendly raw
materials and reviewing production operations constantly to ensure that
the processes are effective and efficient.

The Group enlists its support by engaging and promoting environmental
protection among its suppliers and customers and implementing training
programmes that raise environmental protection awareness among its
employees. Through realistic and achievable key performance targets,
the Group measures the impact of its activities on the local environment
continuously, and conducts research and explores potential innovative
green alternatives that support a green environment.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Taiwan, while the
Company itself is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The Group accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations
in Mainland China, Hong Kong, Taiwan and the respective places of
incorporation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board was
unaware of any non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the business and operations of the
Group.

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2023, the Group had approximately 2,300 (2022: 2,300)
full-time employees. The Group offers good remuneration and welfare
packages to its employees and maintains market-competitive pay levels.
Employees are rewarded based on individual as well as the financial
performance of the Group.

The Group conducted regular programmes, including comprehensive
educational and professional training, and social counselling activities,
to its employees to enhance staff quality, standards of professional
knowledge and teamwork spirit.

Prospects for the Coming Year

The Group is not optimistic towards the development and operation for
the upcoming financial year based on a number of observations. For
instance, Mainland China’s GDP growth target is set to be not lower than
5%, a target that most economists believe to be extremely difficult and
challenging due to the currently weak global consumption level. Although
inflation seems finally to be abiding, high interest rate levels are causing
heavy financial burden on enterprises, leading to rapid rises of corporate
bankruptcies worldwide. The World Bank repeatedly downgraded 2023
global economy growth forecasts, finally to the low level of 2.1%, and
indicated that the current acute financial environment and material
consumption decline will highly likely push most developing countries
into outright recession.
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

Other factors also contribute to hamper market confidence, such as
the persistent conflict between Russia and Ukraine that shows no sign
of subsiding and escalating Sino-US political tension. Although the
Group sees tremendous challenges ahead in the coming financial year,
investments into building and strengthening the Group’s sales and service
network will not be deterred, because the Group believes that can help
getting closer to customers, understanding and addressing the customers’
urgent needs better, and hence enabling Chen Hsong to become a reliable
partner for customers in adverse times. This is particularly important
in the strategic international markets, where the Group plans to build
a series of new domestic service centres to provide global customers
with timelier, higher quality and much tailored technical, pre-sales and
after-sales services. These new service centres will be well poised to gain
from an eventual market rebound in the future.

The Group will also continue to invest into research and development and
the introduction of new, application-specific technologies and product
lines, in order to address the urgent needs of customers.

As the Group’s reorganization and revitalization of its management and
IT infrastructure come to completion, enhanced operating efficiency can
be expected to offset the negative impacts of poor market conditions.
2023 is the Group’s 65th anniversary. The Group has planned a series
of promotional and celebratory events in appreciation of the continuous
support of the market and customers throughout the decades. Needless
to say, the Group will do its utmost to improve competitiveness in the
current adverse market environment, and capture as much market
share as it can.
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Executive Directors

Lai Yuen CHIANG B4, JP

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ms. Chiang joined the Group in 1988 and was appointed a Director of
the Company in 2000 and the Chairman of the board of the Company
in April 2018. She is also the Chief Executive Officer of the Company
responsible for the management and business development of the Group.
Ms. Chiang holds directorships in various subsidiaries of the Company
and is a Director of Chen Hsong Investments Limited and Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited, substantial shareholders of the Company.
She is the sole Director and shareholder of Proficient City Investments
Limited (deemed to be a substantial shareholder of the Company by virtue
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance). She holds a bachelor degree
of Arts from Wellesley College, U.S.A. and has extensive experience
in production management, sales and marketing. Ms. Chiang is an
Independent Non-executive Director of Wharf Real Estate Investment
Company Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)). She is also a member of Guangdong Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
Vice-President of China Plastics Machinery Industry Association, Vice-
Chairman of the Federation of Shenzhen Industries and Vice-President
of China Shenzhen Machinery Association. She had served as a standing
committee member of the Shenzhen Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference during 2000 to 2021. She was formerly
an Independent Non-executive Director of Hang Seng Bank Limited (listed
on the Stock Exchange). Ms. Chiang was awarded the “Young Industrialist
Awards of Hong Kong” by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
2004. Ms. Chiang, aged 57, is a daughter of the late Dr. Chen CHIANG.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Bsc, MBA

Mr. Chung joined the Group in 2001 and was appointed a Director of
the Company in 2003. He also holds the position of Group Chief Officer—
Strategy, Sales and Marketing. Mr. Chung holds directorships in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Chung, aged 56, holds a bachelor
degree of Science in Electrical Engineering & Computer Science from
the University of California, Berkeley. He also holds an MBA degree
in Finance from Columbia University, New York City, U.S.A.. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chung, had more than 14 years’ experience in
sales and marketing, management consultancy, financial analysis and
information technology.

Independent Non-executive Directors
Bernard Charnwut CHAN GBwM, GBS, JP
(former name: CHAN Chi Sze Bernard)

Mr. Chan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2004. Mr. Chan,
aged 58, is a graduate of Pomona College in California, U.S.A.. He had
been a Deputy to the National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic
of China from 2008 to 2023. He is also the former Convenor of the Non-
official Members of the Executive Council and a former member of the
Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region. He
is the Chairman of each of the Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council,
M Plus Museum Ltd. and Tai Kwun Culture & Arts Co. Ltd.. In addition,
he serves as the Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service, the Vice-Chairman of West Kowloon Cultural District Authority
and a Steward of The Hong Kong Jockey Club. Mr. Chan is currently
the Chairman, an executive director and the President of Asia Financial
Holdings Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”)), an executive director and the Chairman of Asia
Insurance Company, Limited, and an advisor to Bangkok Bank (China)
Company Limited. He is an Independent Non-executive Director of
Yau Lee Holdings Limited, China Resources Beer (Holdings) Company
Limited, Cathay Pacific Airways Limited and CLP Holdings Limited,
all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange. He is also a director of
Bumrungrad Hospital Public Company Limited which is a company
listed in Thailand.
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EECEAEHR
Biographical Details of Directors

Harry Chi HUI Bsc, MBA

Mr. Hui, aged 59, was appointed a director of the Company on 26
June 2023 and the appointment is effective from 1 July 2023. He
has approximately 18 years of experience in marketing and business
management. He is a managing director of ClearVue Partners (Shanghai)
Limited, which is principally engaged in private equity investment,
since 31 October 2012, and he is responsible for the overall business
development and investment strategies. He was a president of Universal
Music International Limited, which is principally engaged in music
production, from 2002 to 2006, and he was responsible for managing
overall business in Asia (except Japan). From December 2006 to 2010,
he was a vice president of China beverages business unit of Pepsico
Investment (China) Limited in the PRC, which is principally engaged in
sale and distribution of beverages, and he was responsible for customer
service relation strategies. Mr. Hui is currently an Independent Non-
executive Director of K W Nelson Interior Design and Contracting Group
Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He was
formerly a director of Quhuo Limited (listed on NASDAQ). Mr. Hui
obtained a Bachelor of Science in Economics and Business Degree
from University at Albany-SUNY in the United States in May 1985 and
a Master of Business Administration Degree from University of Southern
California in the United States in December 1992.

Anish LALVANI Bsc, MBA

Mr. Lalvani was appointed a Director of the Company in 2002. He is
the Chairman of Euro Suisse International Limited which has business
interests in Hong Kong, Europe, Africa and the Middle East. He has
lived and worked in the U.K., U.S.A.,
an MBA degree from the University of San Diego. Mr.

India and Hong Kong and holds
Lalvani has
extensive marketing experience in the emerging markets and an in-depth
knowledge of electrical appliances manufacturers in China — many of
whom have in-house moulding facilities. He is the former Chairman for
both the North Asia Region and the Hong Kong Chapter of the Young
Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lalvani, aged 57, is a member of the Hong
Kong Friends’ Committee of Asian Cultural Council and a Member of the
HKUST Business School Advisory Council.
Member of Kew Foundation/Council and a Director of Harvard Business
School Association of Hong Kong Limited on 11 March 2020 and 17
August 2017, respectively.

He resigned as a Trustee/
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Biographical Details of Directors

Michael Tze Hau LEE BA, MBA

Mr. Lee was appointed a Director of the Company in 2008. He is
a Director of Oxer Limited, a private investment company. Mr. Lee
started his career in the investment industry in 1987 and has since held
senior management positions in multinational investment companies
including Indosuez Asia Investment Services Limited and Lloyd George
Management. He also co-founded Asia Strategic Investment Management
Limited in 1995. Mr. Lee, aged 62, was educated in the U.S.A. and
holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from Bowdoin College and a Master
of Business Administration Degree from Boston University. Mr. Lee is a
Non-executive Director of Hysan Development Company Limited (listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”))
and the Chairman of the Board of Stewards of The Hong Kong Jockey
Club. He was previously an Independent Non-executive Director of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange), and
an Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of OTC Clearing
Hong Kong Limited.

Johnson Chin Kwang TAN B4, BSSc

Mr. Tan was appointed a Director of the Company in 2001. He was the
Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Raimon Land Public Company
Limited (listed on The Stock Exchange of Thailand) from May 2013 to
June 2016 and from February 2013 to June 2017, respectively. Mr. Tan
has over 20 years’ experience in investment banking based out of New
York, Hong Kong and Singapore. He had held various roles with leading
financial institutions including JP Morgan, UBS Warburg, Macquarie
and BNP Paribas Capital (Singapore) Limited where he was the Chief
Executive Officer and regional head for their South East Asia corporate
finance business. He has advised major corporations and government
authorities across the region. Mr. Tan, aged 62, graduated from the
National University of Singapore and was a recipient of the Lim Tay Boh
gold medal and NUS Economics Society Book Prize.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company recognizes the
importance of good corporate governance practices in safeguarding the
interests of the shareholders and enhancing the performance of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). The Board is committed
to maintaining and ensuring a high standard of corporate governance
practices.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has complied
with all the code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), except for the following deviations:

Code provision B.2.2 provides that every director should be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years. The directors
of the Company (except the Chairman of the Company) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years as the Chen Hsong
Holdings Limited Company Act, 1991 of Bermuda provides that the
chairman and the managing director of the Company are not required
to retire by rotation.

Code provision C.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Given the skills
and experience of Ms. CHIANG and her long term of service with the
Group, this structure can be considered appropriate to the Group and
can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership for effective
and efficient business planning and decisions, as well as execution of
long term business strategies.
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Corporate Governance Report

Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Company has
complied with Rule 13.91 of the Listing Rules and the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules as
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide, and made
disclosures concerning relevant information in the “Environmental, Social
and Governance Report 2022/23”of the Company which, outlines the
policies, sustainability strategies, management approach and initiatives
implemented by the Group and the performance of the Group in
environmental, social and governance aspects of its business, and
will be presented in a separate report and published on the websites
of the Company at www.chenhsong.com and the Stock Exchange at

www.hkexnews.hk.

Corporate Culture

The Group is committed to developing a positive and progressive culture
that is built on its purpose, vision, values and strategy and aspiring to
be the pioneer in the plastic injection moulding machinery industry
through relentless pursuit of technological advancements, manufacturing
innovations, uncompromising service levels and persistent pursuit for
excellence.

The Board assumes responsibility for establishing the Group’s strategy
to align with its purpose, vision and values upon which the Group would
generate value in the long run. During the year, the Board has established
the following purpose, vision, values and strategy:
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BIENRE
Chen Hsong's Purpose

AEEBNEERSRFAZOHAPANES - B
—EHENRBMTE B -

We have been dedicated to the development and
perfecting of plastic injection moulding machinery
technology under our business motto and our late
founder’s philosophy:

[BEAPTEH - BLERMZME -]
[TXER  REE®R -]

“Our Customer’s Need is Our Command.”
“Industry Enriches People’s Livelihood, Leading to
Prosperity which Strengthens the Country.”

BRENER

Chen Hsong’s Vision

UNEXmEMEEMBEAEREFAESSEE - TH
BIFr - AREETEEMATT

We keep to stand at the forefront of the plastic injection
moulding industry, and create the greatest value for our
global customers, through perfect quality, advanced
technologies and relentless pursuit of innovation.

RENEER

Chen Hsong’s Values

s mEEL

C BHRRAR e

o LER  AIEMEE -
o AREA BREH -
o WEEN  BREE -
o HEXEERN  HHEER -

o ELWS - KEERE -

e Quality is of paramount importance, technology is our
core competence.

e Customers come first, always create value.

e Make full use of talents, encourage the pursuit of
excellence.

e Be honest, be aggressive, dare to embrace responsibility.

e Seek mutual benefits, go for win-win.

e Unity and team-work, ensure sustainable growth.

BB HRE
Chen Hsong’s Strategy

o REMBEMEBRHENRREDR -
o R - FEMMFTIS o

o ESRAERENAAIES] o

o TIREER -

o ATRERKEIFEESE -

e Enhancement of the long-term total return for all its
stakeholders.

e Development of new technologies, new products and
new markets.

e Production capacity and cost control.

e Sustainability development.

e Talents for growth and innovation.

EER

RAREEEH  EERHMMERTES R
FITIHITEEMK -
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Board of Directors

As at the date of this report, the Board consists of two executive directors
and four independent non-executive directors:
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Corporate Governance Report

Executive Directors:

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Mr. Anish LALVANI

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

The biographical details of all directors are set out on pages 23 to 26
of this annual report. Each director brings a wide range and years of
business and/or professional experience to the Board. Their combined
experience, knowledge and expertise are valuable in overseeing the
Group'’s business.

Mr. Harry Chi HUI has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 26 June 2023 (being the date of this report)
and the appointment is effective from 1 July 2023, details of which are
set out in the announcement issued by the Company on the date of
this report.

A list of directors of the Company and their roles and function is posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The primary responsibilities of the Board are to establish the Group’s
vision, strategic direction, general policies and strategic business plans;
to monitor and control the operating and financial performance of the
Group; to implement the best corporate governance practices throughout
the Group; and to set appropriate policies to assess and manage risks
in pursuit of the strategic objectives of the Group.

Delegation to Management

The Board has delegated the daily operations of the Company to the
Management comprising all executive directors, management staff, and
operating heads of different business units. The main responsibilities of
the Management are to implement the strategies and business plans
set by the Board and to manage the Group’s business operations in
accordance with the policies and directives of the Board.
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Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board held six meetings throughout the year at approximately
quarterly intervals to review the overall strategies and the operating and
financial performance of the Group. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in setting the agenda for Board meetings in consultation
with all directors. Notice of at least 14 days is given to all directors for
all regular Board meetings, and all directors are given opportunity to
include matters for discussion in the agenda. Drafts and final versions
of minutes of Board meetings are sent to all directors for comment and

EERESF LMEE 2 EHENMERAIRTE - records. Minutes of Board meetings with details of matters considered
RARWEER  EFUBERER - by the Board and decisions reached are kept by the Company Secretary
and open for inspection by the directors.
REE-_ZE_=F=-A=+—HIEZHBFE During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, six Board meetings
A ARRIHBITRNAEZREEZNL—XE  and one general meeting were held and the attendance record of each
g BEEFCHELHEHIOAT director is as follows:
EERER BREXE
R/ EFERE HERYERRE
EEHR Number of Board Meetings | Number of General Meetings
Name of Director Attended/Held Attended/Held
BITES
Executive Directors
BRI A T (EEFEEEHR) 6/6 171
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
BYR T 6/6 1/1
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
BYkHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
REBRE 6/6 11
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANISE 4 6/6 1/1
Mr. Anish LALVANI
FTFERE 6/6 11
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
PR LA 6/6 1/1
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

REE-_ZE_=F=-A=+—HILZHBFE
W'Ifﬁﬁﬁ¢%ﬂﬁ§$$ﬁ—Maﬁﬁ
HMEEHENSE °

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Chairman has also
held a meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of other Directors.
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The agendas and accompanying board papers for regular Board meetings
are sent out in full package to all directors at least three days before the
date of each Board meeting. All directors have access to board papers
and related materials and may, in appropriate circumstances, seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense. All directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, who
ensures that board procedures and applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

Liability Insurance for Directors

The Company has in force appropriate insurance coverage on directors’
and officers’ liabilities arising from the Group’s business. The Company
reviews the extent of insurance coverage on an annual basis.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG
was the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
are defined clearly to ensure the accountability and responsibility with
respect to the management of the Company.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer focuses on overall corporate
development and high-level strategic directions of the Group, provides
leadership to the Board, and oversees the efficient functioning of the
Board.

She is responsible for managing the business of the Group, policy making
and corporate management and the implementation of strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board with the support from the Management.

As at the date of this report, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is the Chairman
of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Pursuant to
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code of the Listing Rules, the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. However, given the skills
and experience of Ms. CHIANG and her long term of service with the
Group, this structure can be considered appropriate to the Group and
can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership for effective
and efficient business planning and decisions, as well as execution of
long term business strategies.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

All the independent non-executive directors are appointed for a term of
not more than three years, subject to re-election by shareholders at the
annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-law 109(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws,
other than the Chairman and the managing director of the Company,
one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire by rotation, and
stand for re-election, at the annual general meeting of the Company. At
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. Michael
Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN (both being independent
non-executive directors) will retire by rotation and, being eligible, have
offered themselves for re-election.

In addition, any directors appointed by the Board during the year, either
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board, shall hold office
until the next annual general meeting, and then shall be eligible for re-
election at that meeting. According to Bye-law 100 of the Company’s
Bye-laws and paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules, Mr.
Harry Chi HUI, being an independent non-executive director newly
appointed with effect from 1 July 2023, shall retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, has offered
himself for re-election.

Independent Non-executive Directors and Board Independence

The Company acknowledges that Board independence is critical to
good corporate governance. In order to ensure independent views and
input are available to the Board, several mechanisms are in place, the
implementation and effectiveness of which are annually reviewed, and
the Nomination Committee and the Board are committed to assessing
the directors’ independence annually with regards to all relevant factors
related to the independent non-executive directors including the following:

e required character, integrity, expertise and experience to fulfill their
roles;

e time commitment and attention to the Company’s affairs;

e firm commitment to their independent roles and to the Board;

e declaration of conflict of interest in their roles as independent non-
executive directors;
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e cross-directorships or significant links with other directors;

e no involvement in the daily management of the Company nor in any
relationship or circumstances which would affect the exercise of their
independent judgement;

e further re-appointment of an independent non-executive director
(including the long-serving independent non-executive director) is
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the shareholders;
and

e the Chairman meets with the independent non-executive directors
regularly without the presence of the executive directors and non-
executive directors.

The Company ensures that the Board shall include at least three
independent non-executive directors and at least one-third of its members
being independent non-executive directors (or such higher threshold as
may be required by the Listing Rules from time to time), with at least one
independent non-executive director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

Each independent non-executive director of the Company has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of not more than
three years and in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws is subject
to retirement by rotation and eligible for re-election. Notwithstanding
that some independent non-executive directors have served as Board
members for more than nine years, the Nomination Committee and
the Board are of the view that this does not and would not affect their
independent judgement as they have been providing objective view and
independent opinion to the Company over the years, and have continued
to demonstrate a firm commitment to their independent roles and to the
Board that they are able to devote sufficient time and attention to the
Company'’s affairs and confirm that they will continue to demonstrate their
commitment to their roles. Any further re-appointment of an independent
non-executive director who has served the Company’s Board for more
than nine years will be subject to separate resolution to be approved by
the shareholders of the Company. Reasons will be given in the circular
to shareholders to explain why the Board believes those independent
non-executive directors are still independent and should be re-elected.
If the proposed independent non-executive director will be holding his
seventh (or more) listed company directorship, the Board will explain in
the circular why he will still be able to devote sufficient time to the Board.
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The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee reviewed
and assessed the individual independent non-executive director’s
annual confirmation of independence and considered all independent
non-executive directors remained independent within the definition of
the Listing Rules. The independent non-executive director is required
to inform the Company as soon as practicable if there is any change
that may affect his independence. Mr. Harry Chi HUI who has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director with effect from 1
July 2023 has also provided a written confirmation of his independence
to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules before the
date of his appointment.

The Nomination Committee and the Board have also taken into account
the respective contributions to the Board of the independent non-executive
directors and their firm commitments to their independent roles.

The independent non-executive directors will take lead in considering
matters which a substantial shareholder or a director has conflict of
interest. Board committee comprising independent non-executive
directors will be formed to advise the independent shareholders on
connected transaction to be approved by the independent shareholders
at the special general meeting of the Company. External independent
professional advice shall also be available to all directors (including
independent non-executive directors) whenever deemed necessary.

The wide breath of knowledge and diversity of their experiences make
each of the independent non-executive directors invaluable members
of, and active contributors, to the Board. Moreover, they do not hold
any cross-directorships or have any significant links with other Directors
through involvement in other companies or bodies that could give rise to
conflicts of interest in their roles as Independent Non-executive Directors
and they are not involved in the daily management of the Company nor
in any relationships or circumstances which would affect the exercise of
their independent judgment. They continue to demonstrate their ability
to provide an independent, balanced and objective view to the affairs
of the Company.
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The Nomination Committee was satisfied that each of the independent
non-executive director has the required character, integrity and experience
to fulfill the role of an independent non-executive director.

The Board is grateful for the contribution and independent advice and
guidance that the independent non-executive directors have been giving
to the Board and the Board committees.

Confirmations have been received from the directors that they are
able to devote sufficient time as and when required to discharge their
responsibility as a director of the Company. Besides, the directors have
disclosed to the Company their interests as directors and other offices
in public companies or organizations and other significant commitments
in a timely manner and have updated the Company on any subsequent
changes.

Directors’ Continuous Training and Development

On appointment to the Board, each director shall receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction package covering the Company’s
constitutional documents, governance policies and procedures of the
Company as well as the general, statutory and regulatory obligations of
being a director to ensure that he/she has a proper understanding of the
Company’s operations and business, and his/her responsibilities under

the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements.

The directors are regularly briefed on the amendments to or updates on
the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices, other regulatory regime
and the business development of the Company. To keep abreast of the
responsibilities of the directors and infuse them with new knowledge,
reading materials (including e-learning materials provided by the Stock
Exchange) had been provided during the financial year ended 31 March
2023. Apart from what the Company had arranged, certain directors also
attended other external training seminars.
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BEEARNARRREMMADENEI ZE  The directors are required to provide the Company with details of the
B REBATIREMNER REZE_-Z =% training undertaken by them. Based on the details so provided, the
“AZ+—BIEZHBFEERN >  TAES2LH  training undertaken by the directors during the financial year ended 31

R T March 2023 is summarized as follows:
S2RER HBHRRHEHRE
fANeE WEmEe  WHe  Hwee
(BRA%TK - EET - ZRREEER)
Reading Materials/Journals and/or
Attending Briefings/Presentations/
Webinars/Seminars/Conferences
(Relevant to the Business,
EEHA Directors’ Duties, Regulatory &
Name of Director Corporate Governance)
HITES
Executive Directors
BRI (LEREEE) v/
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
BERREE v/
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
BAFHITES
Independent Non-executive Directors
PRE B4 v
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANIZE 4 v
Mr. Anish LALVANI
T 54 v
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
BREE S 5o 4 v/
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct regarding Securities
Transactions by the Directors (the “Code of Conduct”) on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. The Company, after having
made specific enquiry of all directors, confirms that all directors have
complied with the required standard set out in the Code of Conduct and
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2023.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of two executive
directors (including the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) and
four independent non-executive directors. On the date of this report,
one additional independent non-executive director has been appointed
with effect from 1 July 2023. The name of chairman, executive
directors and independent non-executive directors are set out under
the heading “Board of Directors” aforementioned. Independent non-
executive directors provide the Group with a wide range of expertise and
experience as well as checks and balances to safeguard the interests
of the shareholders. Members of the Board, who come from a variety of
different backgrounds, have a diverse range of business and professional
expertise. The biographical details of the directors are set out on pages 23
to 26 of this annual report. The updated list of directors of the Company
identifying their roles and function and whether they are independent
non-executive directors is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Independent non-executive directors are also
identified as such in all corporate communications that disclose the
names of directors of the Company.

Appointments of Board members and selection of candidates are
considered objectively based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including, but not limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications and experience, skills, knowledge,
length of service and industry and regional experience that the Board
may consider relevant and appropriate from time to time.
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members’ skill set mix as at 31 March 2023 are as follows:

The Board’s composition reflects an appropriate balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives among its members that are
relevant to the Group’s strategy, governance and business and contribute
to the Board’s effectiveness. Analyses of the Board’s composition and its

EX¥H BRBESH

BYEAE ik} Number of Approximate
Diversity Perspective Category Directors Percentage
=33l Z Male 5 83.3%
Gender LM Female 1 16.7%
EiFes FREE Chinese 2 33.3%
Nationality FEA BIZE Non-Chinese 4 66.7%
FERARI 605%A £ Over 60 2 33.3%
Age group 51-603% / years 4 66.7%
4 203 BA L 20 years or over 66.7%
Length of service 10-19 % / years 33.3%
a1 #1TE % Executive Director 33.3%
Capacity BIIEHTES Independent Non-executive Director 66.7%
REM ETRRAEEESR(LAEE) 6 1 16.7%
Other listed company directorship(s) 1 2 33.3%
(number of companies) 0 3 50.0%
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(b) ESFRENLR (b)  Board Skills and Experience
REERAR/ REMLHA EES- RG-S
AETESSARTNARLR R5 HE/ LRRER
Executive Leadership & HELER  Accounting Professional/
Strategy/Directorship or ~ TERHEE HER REE Environmental,  Financial Management
ESig Senior Executive Experience  Industry and Mainland Global i Social and Expertise/Legal and
Name of Director with Other Listed Company(ies) ~ Manufacturing China Business Technology Governance Compliance
HirEe
Executive Directors
EERRT(1E%£E4H) v v v / / / /
Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
MRk / / / v v /
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
BUkynEs
Independent Non-executive Directors
RERLE / / / v / v
Mr. Bemard Charnwut CHAN
Anish LALVANIZ / / / / / / /
Mr. Anish LALVANI
HTERE / / / v v v
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE
REXAE / / v v v
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
CHIE)! 6 3 5 6 6 5 6

Total (in number)

R (BHEM) 100% 50% 83% 100% 100% 83% 100%
Total (in approximate percentage)

EREEE Audit Committee

EREZEER—NNNEKTL - RAHEEH  The Audit Committee was established in 1998. As at the date of this
B BZZEEREBRRENEEILIENITES  report, the Audit Committee comprises four independent non-executive
PRESBSCAE -~ Anish LALVANIZEA ~ FIFE%  directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI,
ERBREFE © Anish LALVANIZEAEBZE  Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN. Mr. Anish
EFF R =—FNAZ+HBEIERHR  LALVANI is the Committee Chairman. Mr. Harry Chi HUI has been
HERR)  TEELEEZEABZEZEE  appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on 26 June 2023 (being
KB ERZEB_Z=_=—F+tH—H#LE thedate of this report) and the appointment is effective from 1 July 2023.
2 o

40 BEKEBFRANF 2022/23 FI] CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23




ERZZEENACRERARRABALEAR
HERAENLE  WEBEHASEMGE
H - AREEMAFERESER  YHERN
ARESNEZBEINEER - BEREE G BE
BECKRAREEAPESN - WERARF R
B Pz M8k b

RBE-_Z_=F=A=+—RILZWRFE
N BREZEELRTMASH (A LME) -
BN BISMNEZBENIA RSN E R E B AN E
ZBFREMRE AL RARER - 84
X8z RSN

TEERBEE
Corporate Governance Report

The roles of the Audit Committee are to ensure that the Company has
formal and transparent arrangements for considering matters relating to
the Group’s financial reporting, risk management and internal control
and overseeing the Company'’s relationship with the Company’s external
auditor. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, as updated on
the date of this report, are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee held two meetings (totalling four sessions) during
the financial year ended 31 March 2023 to review with the Company’s
external auditor and external consultant, the Group’s financial results
and internal controls and related matters. The attendance record of each
member is as follows:

ERZEEBHE HERE ERRE
Members of Audit Committee Number of Meetings Attended/Held
BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors

PRES BT 2/2
Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Anish LALVANISE 4 2/2
Mr. Anish LALVANI

FFEFLE 2/2
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

BREE SR & 2/2

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

REBEE_Z_=F=A=+—HILZMBRFE
N BERRESTHET:

o RNEAKREEZFRPHBRE 2 ERENE
RAFE - S ERSNEAZ BB T 7

o EMEHERZET  UNLFEHAEE
MsmR o8

o TAERIMNEREENE L EE e HER
R
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Audit Committee had:

e reviewed the Group’s annual and interim financial statements with
respect to their true and fairness, and discussed with the external
auditor;

e reviewed the changes in accounting standards and their impacts on
the Group’s financial statements;

e made recommendation on the re-appointment of external auditor and
reviewed their audit fees;
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reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control systems;
approved the 2022/2023 Internal Audit Plan;

reviewed the internal audit findings and recommendations of the
external internal control consultant and the respective responses of
the Management;

reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s

accounting and financial reporting function;

reviewed the Group’s compliance with regulatory and statutory
requirements;

reviewed the annual plan on risk management control;

reviewed the update on risk management;

reviewed the risk assessment reports; and

reviewed and made recommendations to the Board to adopt the
Anti-Corruption Policy and the revised Whistleblowing Policy.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2005. As at the date
of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises four independent

non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Anish
LALVANI, Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN,
and the Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, Ms.

Lai Yuen CHIANG. Mr.

Bernard Charnwut CHAN is the Committee

Chairman. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee, as

updated in March 2023, are available on the websites of the Company

and the Stock Exchange.
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The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to
make recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure
for the remuneration of directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a set of formal and transparent procedures for
development its remuneration policy. It also reviews and determines the
remuneration packages for executive directors and senior management
and to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration for
non-executive directors of the Group with reference to the corporate
goals and objectives. The Remuneration Committee considers factors
such as duties and responsibilities of the executive directors and senior
management and the amount of remuneration paid by comparable
companies. In addition, the Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for reviewing and/or approving matters relating to the share schemes
under the Listing Rules.

Remuneration packages of executive directors comprises salary,
allowances, performance related bonus and pension scheme contributions.
Information about directors’ emoluments during the financial year ended
31 March 2023 is set out in note 9 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

Remuneration Policy

The Board adopted a Remuneration Policy which aims to recognize that
appropriate level of remuneration is crucial to attract, retain and motivate
the directors of the Company to run the Company successfully, and to
ensure that the directors’ remuneration is appropriate and aligns with the
Company’s goals, objectives and performance and to enhance the value
of shareholders of the Company, through a set of formal and transparent
procedures for implementing the Remuneration Policy. Pursuant to the
Remuneration Policy, the following key principles have been established
for determination of the remuneration and other remuneration related
matters of individual director:

e Executive directors’ emoluments shall be reviewed annually by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board.

e Recommendations shall be made by the Remuneration Committee
to the Board for approval of any revision to the executive directors’
emoluments by reference to his/her position, qualifications, experience,
level of responsibilities and the Group’s performance and profitability.
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e [Executive directors may be eligible to receive discretionary bonus
and/or performance bonus and/or guaranteed bonus taking into
consideration factors such as market conditions as well as corporate
and individual performances.

e The Remuneration Committee shall review and if appropriate,
recommend to the Board for approval the grant of share options
and/or the award of shares to the executive directors under the
share option scheme and share ownership scheme (if any) of the
Company. Such scheme(s) enables the executive directors to obtain
an ownership interest in the Company as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

e Non-executive directors’ fees shall be reviewed annually by the
Remuneration Committee and the Board.

e Recommendations shall be made by the Board to the shareholders
for approval at the shareholders’ meeting any revision to the non-
executive directors’ fees by reference to his/her experience, duties,
responsibilities and market conditions.

e Any change of non-executive directors’ fees shall also be subject to
an annual limit on the aggregate amount of non-executive directors’
fees payable to all the non-executive directors during the respective
financial year, and any adjustment of such limit shall require approval
by the shareholders pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the financial

year ended 31 March 2023. The attendance record of each member
is as follows:
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Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN
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Executive Director
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Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Remuneration
Committee had reviewed, approved and made recommendations to the
Board on the matters relating to the remuneration packages (including
basic salaries and performance related bonus) of the executive directors
(also being the senior management of the Company) and the directors’
fees of the independent non-executive directors after assessing their
duties and responsibilities and individual performance as well as the
corporate performance and in consultation with the proposals of the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. No individual director took part
in voting his/her own remuneration at the meeting. The Remuneration
Committee had also reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
to adopt the Remuneration Policy and the revised terms of reference of
the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. As at the date
of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises four independent
non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Anish
LALVANI, Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN.
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN is the Committee Chairman. The terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee, as updated on the date of
this report, are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board and making recommendations on any proposed changes
to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to
make reference to the Company’s Board Diversity Policy, identifying
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships, assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted and revised the Board Diversity Policy (the “Policy”)
in November 2022 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Policy is summarized below:

e |n reviewing the structure, size and diversity of the Board at least
annually, the Nomination Committee will consider a number of
aspects of the Board diversity, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional qualifications
and experience, skills, knowledge, length of service and industry
and regional experience (the “Board Diversity Criteria”) and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

e |n selection and nomination of qualified individuals to become Board
members, the Nomination Committee will consider the Board Diversity
Criteria.

e The Nomination Committee will review the implementation of the
Policy on an annual basis, as appropriate, discuss any revisions
in line with the latest corporate governance standards that may be
required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board for review,
consideration and approval to ensure the effectiveness of the Policy.
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The Board emphasizes on diversity (including gender diversity) across
all levels of the Group. As at the date of this annual report, the Board
comprises seven Directors, one of whom is female, it stands at 14.3%. The
Board considers that gender diversity on the Board has been achieved.
Further details on the gender ratio of the Group across the workforce
(including senior management), together with relevant data, can be
found in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2022/23”
of the Company.

Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a Nomination Policy in November 2018 which sets out
the criteria and process on the nomination and appointment of directors.
The Board has delegated the relevant selection and appointment of
directors to the Nomination Committee, which identifies suitable qualified
candidates to become Board members and recommends them to the
Board. In assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate, the Nomination
Committee would assess and evaluate the candidate’s character and
integrity, qualifications, skills, experience, gender and diversity aspects
under the Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy, devoting adequate time to effectively
carry out their duties, and fulfilment of the independence requirements as
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules (for independent non-executive
directors). After the evaluation, the Nomination Committee nominates the
appropriate candidate to the Board for approval and appointment. For
any person that is nominated by a shareholder for election as a director
at the general meeting of the Company, the Nomination Committee
should evaluate such candidate based on the criteria as set out above
to determine whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. Where
appropriate, the Nomination Committee should make recommendation
to shareholders in respect of the proposed election of director at the
general meeting.
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During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the Nomination
Committee had reviewed and discussed the structure, size and diversity
of the Board, assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors, and approved the nomination of the retiring directors to seek
for re-election at the 2022 Annual General Meeting. The Nomination
Committee had also reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
to adopt the revised Board Diversity Policy.

Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee (the “CG Committee”) was
established in 2012. As at the date of this report, the CG Committee
comprises four independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Bernard
Charnwut CHAN, Mr. Anish LALVANI, Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr.
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN. Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE is the Committee
Chairman. Mr. Harry Chi HUI has been appointed as a member of the
CG Committee on 26 June 2023 (being the date of this report) and the
appointment is effective from 1 July 2023. The terms of reference of the
CG Committee have been updated on the date of this report.

The CG Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
making recommendations to the Board, reviewing and monitoring the
training and continuous professional development of directors and
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
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and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
developing, reviewing and monitoring the Code of Conduct applicable
to the directors and employees of the Company, reviewing the relevance
and effectiveness of the Board Independence Policy and reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in this report.

The CG Committee held two meetings during the financial year ended
31 March 2023. The attendance record of each member is as follows:

TEEREEERE

Members of Corporate Governance Committee

RE BRI
Number of Meetings Attended/Held

BYFHTES

Independent Non-executive Directors
BRE BEE

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN

Anish LALVANISE A
Mr. Anish LALVANI

AFREE
Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE

PR BE e e A
Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN

2/2

2/2

2/2

2/2

REBE-_T_=—F=-A=1+—HLEZVRFE
A AEERZESCRAARREEE RN
EBTIRER  EFEBZESRE ¥$ﬁ%\%
ELERERETESFR S TRNETE)
M&%%&%ﬁa@AAmiN&ifﬁiﬁ
REVCER - BEEIAZ BRI 23 %%
RRNEF B EBR LSBT 2 RRE
B KR AREEHES -

D]]D

SN BT =

BE_ZT_=ZF=-A=+t-BLZMEHF
B - SMNERREED 2 Bl& & HRE 3,089,000
7T HApB¥2,709,000 T REZRE - B
159,0007T 2 Bt 15 AR 165 & 8 # 221,000 7T /& &
b IRE IR -

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi

During the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the CG Committee had
reviewed the corporate governance compliance status of the Company,
the board evaluation questionnaires completed by the directors, the
compliance with the Codes for Securities Transactions by Directors
and Relevant Employees and the training and continuous professional
development records of directors and senior management. The CG
Committee had also reviewed and made recommendations to the Board
to adopt the Board Independence Policy and the revised Shareholders’
Communication Policy and Inside Information Guidelines.

External Auditor’s Remuneration

External auditor’s remuneration for the financial year ended 31 March
2023 amounted to a total of HK$3,089,000, of which HK$2,709,000
was incurred for audit services, HK$159,000 for tax-related services and
HK$221,000 for other non-audit services.
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Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 March 2023 have been audited by the external auditor, Ernst &
Young, and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The directors acknowledge
their responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements of
the Group which were prepared in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards.

A statement by the external auditor about the responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2023 is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report
on pages 81 to 89 of this annual report.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Group acknowledges certain aspects of risks (including environmental,
social and governance risks) are inherent in its businesses and the markets
it operates, and in pursuit of its corporate objectives, undertakes to
determine and monitor material risks in order to enable sustainable growth
and long term shareholder value. The Group implements a comprehensive
Risk Management and Internal Control System (the “Control System”)
which is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that
significant risks are identified and managed, transactions are executed in
accordance with management’s authorization, assets are protected, the
financial statements are accurate and reliable for publication, and the
Group’s activities are in compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

i3 EaalllE Pa il BREEZ B
Understand Identify Analyze Evaluate Mitigate/
Context Risk Risk Impact Control
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The risk management and internal control process is embedded in the
Group’s daily businesses and operations, which involves understanding
the context, identifying potential exposures, assessing the likelihood
of consequences, determining the risk level, establishing appropriate
mitigating measures and followed by appropriate reporting.

The Control System involves an organizational control structure which
emphasizes defined lines of duties and responsibilities, delegation of
authority and segregation of duties. At the top of the risk governance
structure sits the Board who oversees and is responsible for the Control
System and ensures its adequacy and effectiveness and acknowledge that
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such system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
delegates implementation responsibilities of the Control System to the
Risk Management Committee which comprises senior and experienced
members of management. The Risk Management Committee supervises
and facilitates the implementation of the Control System with appropriate
guidelines and tools, tracks material risks and mitigating activities, and
determines significant control failings or weaknesses that have occurred.
The execution of the Control System is entrusted to the Business Units,
and within the Business Units, the Functional Groups. Each Business Unit
is headed by a General Manager and Financial Controller whose duties
are to control the activities of the Business Unit, ensure appropriate and
adequate operational policies, standards and procedures are in place and
are properly executed. The heads of the Functional Groups exercise risk
assessment in their daily decision making processes, escalate and report
material risks to the Business Unit heads. Through discussion with the
respective Business and Functional Unit heads, the Risk Management
Committee as supported by an independent external internal control
consultant whom presents and summarizes a Risk Assessment Report
for discussion with the Audit Committee.

The Group is able to call for assistance from outside professionals to
support difficult risk controlling matters.

Audit Committee and Internal Audit

The Board appoints the Audit Committee with clear terms of reference,
which comprises independent non-executive directors who are
well-experienced in corporate management. The Audit Committee
oversees and evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the Control
System. It also identifies areas for improvement, reviews the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

functions.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has delegated the internal
audit function of the Group to an independent professional firm which
was appointed to act as an external internal control consultant, to
conduct regular reviews of the business process and operations of
Business Units and/or operating subsidiaries and report findings, risk
and recommendations on any control issues identified in the course
of their work. The Board considers that the Group’s risk management
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and internal control systems are effective and adequate. The external
internal control consultant also developed a risk-based approach for the
internal audit and established annual internal audit plan and scope of
review, covering major activities and processes of the Group’s operations,
businesses and Business Units. The results of these audit activities
are communicated to the Audit Committee and heads of the Business
Units and the Functional Groups. Audit issues are tracked, followed up
for proper implementation, and their progress are reported to the Audit
Committee periodically. The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all
Audit Committee meetings. Drafts and final versions of minutes of the
Audit Committee meetings are sent to all committee members for their
comment and records.

External Audit

The Board appoints the external auditor, Ernst & Young, to perform
independent statutory audits of the Group’s financial statements. The
external auditor attends meetings with the Audit Committee, discuss and
report the nature and scope of the audit, any significant deficiencies in
internal control identified during the audit of the consolidated financial
statements, and significant findings from the audit.

2023 Assessment

During the year, an independent professional firm, acting as an external
internal control consultant, was appointed to conduct the review of
internal control and risk management systems for certain principal
subsidiaries’ operation with a view to identifying any gaps in the Control
System and making recommendations for improvement. The results of
such assessments were submitted to the Audit Committee during the
year. In addition to the Control System, a Whistleblowing Policy has
been put in place such that employees and those who deal with the
Group (e.g. customers, suppliers etc.) can raise their concerns about
any suspected misconduct or malpractice within the Group. All reported
whistleblowing matters were handled and investigated confidentially and
independently. To adhere to practicing integrity and responsible business
ethics, the Group has also established Anti-Corruption Policy which
provides information and guidances to all business units and employees of
the Group on how to recognize and deal with corruption and bribery and to
handle corporate donation and sponsorship activities of the Group. More
details in relation to the Whistleblowing Policy and the Anti-Corruption
Policy can be found in the “Environmental, Social and Governance
Report 2022/23" of the Company. The Whistleblowing Policy and the
Anti-Corruption Policy have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
and are to be updated periodically to ensure their appropriateness and
compliance with corporate and regulatory requirements.
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Based on the respective assessments, the Board acknowledges that an
adequate and effective risk management and internal control process was
in place for the year ended 31 March 2023. The resources, qualifications,
experience, training programmes and budget of the employees of the
Group'’s accounting and financial reporting and internal audit functions
as well as those relating to the Company’s environmental, social and
governance performance and reporting were adequate. The Group has
complied with the risk management and internal control code provisions
for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Dividend Policy

The Board has established a Dividend Policy setting out the principles
and guidelines that the Company intends to apply when considering the
declaration, payment or distribution of its net profits as dividends to the
shareholders of the Company. The payment of dividend is also subject
to any restrictions under the Bermuda laws and the Company’s Bye-laws
and any other applicable statutory and regulatory restrictions, during
declaration and payment of dividends to shareholders of the Company.

Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

The Company complies with the requirements of Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules. The
Company discloses inside information to the public as soon as reasonably
practicable after any inside information has come to its knowledge unless
the information falls within any of the “Safe Harbours” as provided for
in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company ensures the information is kept strictly confidential. If the
Company believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot be
maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Company
would immediately disclose the information to the public. The Company
is committed to ensure that information contained in announcements
are not false or misleading as to a material fact, or false or misleading
through the omission of a material fact, to provide for equal, timely and
effective access by the public to the inside information disclosed.

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in
accordance with the SFO and the Listing Rules, the Company has taken
various procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness to
preserve confidentiality of inside information with the Company, sending
blackout period and securities dealing restrictions notification to the
relevant directors and employees regularly, and disseminating information
to specified persons on a need-to-know basis. The Board has established
and revised the Inside Information Guidelines and will regularly review
to ensure its relevance and effectiveness.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. The Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. All directors have
access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure
that board procedures, and applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed. The Company Secretary had complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules during the year under review.

Shareholders’ Rights
Convening of Special General Meeting on Requisition

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended) (the “Bermuda Companies Act”), shareholders holding at the
date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of
the paid-up share capital of the Company as at the date of the deposit
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company have
the right to requisite the directors to convene a special general meeting
of the Company. The requisition must state the purposes of the special
general meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionist and deposited
at the registered office of the Company.

If the directors do not within 21 days from the date of the deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene a special general meeting, the
requisitionist, or any of them representing more than one-half (50%) of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a special
general meeting of the Company.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to the provisions of the Bermuda Companies Act, shareholders
representing not less than one-twentieth (5%) of the total voting rights
of all the shareholders having at the date of the requisition a right to
vote at general meetings of the Company or of at least 100 shareholders
in number of the Company, may put forward any resolution which may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at a general meeting
of the Company by sending the requisition together with a statement of
not more than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the
proposed resolution must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than six weeks before the general meeting.
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Pursuant to Bye-law 114 of the Company’s Bye-laws, shareholder(s)
may propose a person other than a retiring director of the Company for
election as a director of the Company at the general meeting by lodging
at the head office of the Company, a written notice of nomination with
the written notice signed by the nominated person of his willingness to
be elected, for a period of at least 7 days which shall commence no
earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than 7 days before the date
of such general meeting. Procedures for shareholders to propose a person
for election as a director are posted on the website of the Company.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognizes the importance of good communications with
all shareholders and is committed to a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information through publication of annual and
interim reports, announcements and circulars to shareholders. To
enable the shareholders and investors have equal and timely access
to updated information about the Group, the Company’s website (www.
chenhsong.com) contains important corporate information, annual
and interim reports, as well as announcements and circulars issued
by the Company. Corporate communications will be provided to the
shareholders in either or both English and Chinese version(s) to facilitate
the shareholders’ understanding. The shareholders have the right to
choose the means of receipt of the corporate communications (in
hard copy or through electronic means). The Board has established a
Shareholders’ Communication Policy, which is available on the Company’s
website, and is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company usually conducts briefing immediately following the
publication of the announcement of interim and annual results.
Face-to-face meetings and conference calls with institutional investors
and investment analysts are conducted to make sure that shareholders
and potential investors can obtain a good understanding of the Company’s
business. To ensure all shareholders and potential investors receive equal
access to information at the same time, inside information is released by
publication of announcements pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to
exchange views with the Board. Shareholders are encouraged to attend
the annual general meeting for which at least 21 days prior notice is
given. The Board, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chairmen of the
Board committees (or in their absence, other members of the committees)
are available to answer shareholders’ questions at the annual general
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meeting. In addition, a representative of the Company’s external auditor is
requested to attend the annual general meeting to answer questions about
the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies and auditor independence.

In the case of any special general meeting to approve a connected
transaction which is subject to independent shareholders’ approval,
members of the independent Board committee will also make an effort
to attend the meeting to address shareholders’ queries.

Significant issues are dealt with under separate resolutions at general
meeting, including re-election of individual directors. All resolutions set
out in the notice of general meeting put to the vote at the meeting were
by way of a poll. The results of the voting by poll were published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Shareholders and interested parties are welcome to raise enquiries
through the Company’s Corporate Communications & Investor Relations
Department. The contact details are set out in the section headed
“Corporate Information” of this annual report. Shareholders should
direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company’s Share
Registrars.

The Board has reviewed the implementation of the communication
channels and, based on the above, considered the Shareholders’
Communication Policy has been effectively implemented during the year.

Constitutional Documents

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 26 August
2022, a special resolution was passed to adopt the new Bye-laws of the
Company (the “New Bye-laws”) in substitution for and to the exclusion
of the existing Bye-laws of the Company. The New Bye-laws consolidated
all the amendments to, among other things, bring the constitution of
the Company in line with provisions of the latest Listing Rules including
the Core Shareholder Protection Standards set out in Appendix 3 to the
Listing Rules and the latest Bermuda laws. Details of the amendments
are set out in the circular to the shareholders of the Company dated 26
July 2022. The New Bye-laws is available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the financial year ended 31 March 2023.
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The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company present its report
and the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2023.

Principal Activities and Analysis of Operations

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and the
provision of management services.

The principal activities of the subsidiaries comprise the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

Details of the analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results
for the year, by operating segments, are set out in note 5 to the financial
statements.

Business Review

The business review of the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of the Group’s
business; a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group; particulars of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year; an indication of likely
future development in the Group’s business; an analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators; a discussion
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance; a discussion
on the Group’s compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group; and an account of the Group’s
relationships with its key stakeholders, can be found in the “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management’s Discussion & Analysis” and “Financial
Highlights” on pages 8 to 10, pages 11 to 22 and the inside cover of this
annual report, respectively. The above sections form part of this report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
set out in note 40 to the financial statements.
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Results and Dividends

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the financial
position of the Group at that date are set out in the financial statements
on pages 90 to 223 of this annual report.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK7.3 cents
per ordinary share to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 7 September 2023. Subject
to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company, the final dividend will be payable to shareholders
on or about 21 September 2023. The proposed final dividend together
with the interim dividend of HK4.5 cents per ordinary share paid on
12 January 2023, make a total dividend of HK11.8 cents per ordinary
share for the year.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
227 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements of the Group.

Investment Properties

The Group’s investment properties as at 31 March 2023 were revalued by
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers. No change in fair
value of investment properties has been recognized in the consolidated
income statement. Details of the movements in the investment properties
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements. Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group
as at 31 March 2023 are set out on page 228.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.
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Issued Share Capital

There is no movement in the Company’s issued share capital during
the year.

Equity-linked Agreements

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in this
annual report, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by the
Group during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Listed Securities of
the Company

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company during the year.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2023, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), amounted to HK$110,164,000, of which HK$46,029,000
has been proposed as the final dividend for the year.

Charitable Contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
HK$122,000 (2022: HK$2,811,000).
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Major Customers and Suppliers

Sales to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue for the year and sales to the single
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 15% of the
Group’s total revenue for the year.

Purchases from the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

None of the directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
(which, to the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
number of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following table illustrates the current risk management/control

SO R MR RREE, RS activities that are in place to manage or mitigate the major risks of the
Group:
B 2E Rl L B 4 3t [ B 4% 7 45 B
Risk Category Risk Description Mitigation controls to the risk
BEBEAE o KEBETIRE T H R §§“Hﬁ%ﬂﬁ€ o UARKBERAMAEENATE  HHITER
Macro-Economic %T’& RAERNERESTEETHNE SABERAEBETSHRK -
Factors CREMAIREE R E R R A T 5 Introduce new or upgraded products to

j] °

cope with the market demand, which are

Unfavourable macro-economic
condition, such as economic
recession, may have a detrimental
impact on Company development
and products supply and demand
which may in result affect the
profitability of the Company.

60 EHEEFRANAF 2022/23 F;

supported by the Group's strong research and
development capabilities.

BHKEREE  UBRELHINERRENE -
Reorganize the Group's structure in order to
effectively respond to the change in external
environment.

BUYSBEINAERRBRMNIERE IR
AFEITAERESEANTEEMEIETE -
Establish an environment that encourages the
staff to apply result-oriented approach on their
work, and allow the staff to have flexibility in
processing their work within the authorization
limit.
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Risk Category Risk Description Mitigation controls to the risk

ATEIR o HUEMS FHRBEANRIEERK o HIEABFNHHIMERBANFBEARSIGEAA

Human Resources AL HERFNERLS ° FWBFBREETARMEREEREEFRTRK -
Difficult to recruit suitable talents in Establish competitive remuneration and fringe
the market to meet the Company's benefits packages to attract suitable talents as
operational needs, which affects the well as retaining the existing staff to meet the
Company's normal operations. operational needs of the Group.

o REIRETRZEAIBFINEBIF o
Provide internal and external trainings to the
staff on different aspects.

e HETRBRIFAER THWREMMOREL
TREIMER -
Maintain good communication with the staff
and collect feedbacks from them regularly to
understand their needs.

o THMHEMBBEBRELIZY - AEEEB - MBS
T2 FEREE o
Regularly organize team building activities
to facilitate communications and strengthen
bonding between staff.

o HEIBMETRITHBER  THRIUWSEMME
NRIRREE o
Conduct exit meeting with resigned staff to
understand and collect their feedbacks on the
Company.

o THIFEMINIHBERRSREGEAL LAMEETRE
//Ih%i ©
Seek assistance from external recruiters to
search suitable talents regularly for facilitating
the recruitment processes.
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Risk Description

2R B 2 2 4 B

Mitigation controls to the risk

A A
COVID-19

R R
Supply of Raw
Materials

37768 i A AT R B AN L At B R R AR 1
BRI AT L B EMEAT
BENEETHTE -

Continuing spread and prolonged
occurrence of COVID-19 in the PRC
and other countries may adversely
affect the business operation and
profitability.

BORTERIBE N RME R HIE -
AREREB AR RRREPRNERN
BETT o

Unable to secure a stable supply of
raw materials and services which
may affect the Company's ability to
deliver products to customers in a
timely manner.

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR

BN EEERP R/ NE EER B g % - UEH
AR AR E o

Set up an inter-departmental response team
and conduct regular meetings to cope with the
impact brought by the occurrence of COVID-19.

BHRGERR - REEREBARDIRE - 12
SEIRMAE - fnog M EEH R
Restructure the manufacturing organization
together with aggressive measures aimed at
reducing wastage and improving resource
utilization and strengthening the relationships
with suppliers

SEBE AN IR o

Implement infection prevention and control
measures.

B EDRI/NAE - EHRE - RN EREE
FRBRIT -

Set up a monitoring team to perform periodic
inspection to ensure that infection prevention
and control measures have been effectively
executed.

BREEEEEMER  AZEERANEHER
REFRFHBERMER -

Strictly select high-quality suppliers and
maintain good relationship and communications
with suppliers based on the principle of mutual
trust.

HIEHEMETBBSERHEE  UEX
REMERFTERMEL -

Build strategic partnerships with the key
suppliers so as to take priority in ordering the
raw materials over other buyers.
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Mitigation controls to the risk

R RE (&
Supply of Raw
Materials
(Continued)

fEER
Crisis Management

R I K i R R A RV fE i
RHBERNATR  BEE#EE
FRARBEAEMES  TERARRKE -
HEEREX -

Without any mechanism to respond
to the Company's crisis in a timely
manner and propose corresponding
solution, resulting in failure to
respond effectively when crisis
occurs, which affects the Company's
operations and even causes losses.

G EMHE T EMER R RERET
TR - DARER R RM R IR B KT e 5
EENEESWTTHKIHEETE °

Prepare forecast on the upcoming sales orders
and the usage of the key raw materials to
ensure existing level of the key raw materials
can support the upcoming production volume
and fulfilling the sales orders.

ERMBEROERT - ABRNENTHEEST
EINBREERSHERE -

In circumstances where shortage of raw
materials occurs, adjust and rearrange the
production plan to prioritize the production of
urgent sales orders.

ETRMESHRERSENERHEER
Search for alternative suppliers in different
locations with reasonable price.

BB ABR B TR SR SRR AR
A RRFRE o

Establish a clear organizational structure and
reporting lines to ensure that reporting of crisis
can be carried out in a timely manner.

AR - KBRS E E AR E
)/ NBLAE S o

When crisis occurs, set up a response team
consisting of relevant department heads to cope
with the crisis.

BEEEHN

RERWEET AT EBRBA QR 2 EREM
BREDEBNEEMITRZAL -

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into

or existing during the year.

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG™* (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN**@#
Mr. Anish LALVANI|**@#

Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE**@#

Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN**@#

* Member of the Audit Committee

* Member of the Remuneration Committee

@ Member of the Nomination Committee

# Member of the Corporate Governance Committee

The biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 23 to 26 of this annual report. The senior management of the
Company is also executive directors of the Company.

Mr. Harry Chi HUI has been appointed as an independent non-executive
director (also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee) of the Company on 26 June 2023 (being the
date of this report) and the appointment is effective from 1 July 2023.

In accordance with Bye-law 109(A) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr.
Michael Tze Hau LEE and Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN will retire by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In addition, according to Bye-law 100 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Harry
Chi HUI, being an independent non-executive director newly appointed
with effect from 1 July 2023, will hold office until the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, has offered himself
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



AAREBWESBLIERTEERERE £
AR BNE3. 13 1EH B BB 1 FE R
B WINARBFESDBEBIIAL -

RARMEWEFFEEAEREZENERH
HARTSRAR R E AR BIEE3. 13k ER B B <L
MREEERE TRARBBIIAL -

ESENZEE

BIEEMMRAEI3LIBIE - BARE £—
RPHRETIREATRECESTENEEN
™

(1) BBEnzte - -_=F—F—HEBKIL
EABAERITAER AR (R ET) 2
B FEBMITES ©

2) REBRREB T -_=F=ABKIELT
PEARAMEZBEBARREZRGZR
% o

fR EXEE RBNY B HRERMEICEEH
Boh - BEAR R EHRAIF 13 51B(IRAT
BEOEMER -

EERBEN

BRI RITZ ARARREAFAR LERE
FrEF  BEEAAARIIARAE—FR
AR FRECREREBRIN ZBR T AT
AR IEZ RIS 40 -

EEHM

FAEFHIF BRI BERRMEE

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi

EERBEE
Report of the Directors

The Company has received from each independent non-executive director
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and still considers them to be independent.

The Company has also received from Mr. Harry Chi HUI his written
confirmation of independence before the effective date of his appointment
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers him to be
independent.

Changes in Directors’ Information

The changes in the information of the directors, which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, since the
publication of the Company’s last interim report are set out below:

(1) Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG ceased to be an independent non-executive
director of Hang Seng Bank Limited (listed on the Stock Exchange)
with effect from 1 January 2023.

(2) Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN ceased to be a Deputy to the National
People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China since March
2023.

Save as disclosed above and the Directors’ emoluments which set out in
note 9 to the financial statements, there is no other information which
is required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

Details of Directors’ emoluments for the year are set out in note 9 to the
financial statements.
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Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group to
which the Company, or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director of the Company
or an entity connected with a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force during the year and at
the time of approval of this report. The Company has also purchased the
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance to provide adequate protection
against claims arising from the lawful discharge of duties by the directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries throughout the financial year ended
31 March 2023.

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2023, the number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 630,531,600; and the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(the “SFQ")), as recorded in the register of the Company required to
be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:
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(a) REAFRGREBRD ZHFE (a) Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company
REBER, HARATE
HERG ERTEER
2R ZBHNBES T
Interest in Approximate percentage
EEfA 54 ordinary shares/ MizE of the Company’s
Name of director Capacity underlying shares” Notes issued ordinary shares
Bt ERBEAA 9,100,000 (i) 1.44%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner
HAh 399,641,620 (2) 63.38%
Other
EMR EmEA A 2,466,000 (ii) 0.39%
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG Beneficial owner
R S 5 EamEA A 484,000 - 0.08%
Johnson Chin Kwang TAN Beneficial owner
Anish LALVANI HAh 652,000 (iii) 0.10%
Other
Hiat Notes:
() MEE®EART ©4,100,0008AKRFET (i) Among these interests, 4,100,000 were share options granted by the
EXZ(EARAERBEAAN)ZHERE - Company to the director as beneficial owner.
(i) MexSE#E=T » 1,800,000 8K RQFETF (i) Among these interests, 1,800,000 were share options granted by the
EX(EARERBEAAN)ZHERE - Company to the director as beneficial owner.
(i) ZERMERTIAZEETINZEIEA (iii) These interests in shares were held in the capacity as discretionary
HOEE - beneficiary of a discretionary trust.
* EREERARRRE ZEBRENEER *  Details of the interests of the directors in the underlying shares in
iz 2 FERHN T BEARE]—& - respect of the share options granted by the Company are set out in

the section headed “Share Options” below.
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(b) REEZEMKRMD 2R

(b) Long positions in shares of associated corporations

(i) REHEREERAT([BHRE]Z (i) Interests in ordinary shares of Chen Hsong Investments Limited

LimiR g (“CH Investments”):
HEERE
CRTEER
BB ZBAB DL
N ERERZER Approximate percentage
EEHA 54 Interest in M EE of the issued ordinary
Name of director Capacity ordinary shares Notes shares of CH Investments
BRI Hh 58,220,300 (2) 100.00%

Lai Yuen CHIANG Other

(i) ARARAZEEZEBOXTHEIERAE (i) Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the Company, is deemed

68

THIEEEE B R 2 s

to be interested in the shares of the following associated

corporations:

1 AB S B BA K B
ERITROZBNE DL
Approximate percentage

of the relevant class

HEEE SR AR 2= B & of issued shares of

Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes associated corporation

Assetwise Holdings Limited 1% A (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

B (FE)REBR AR MR IS R RR AR (7 (1), (3) 100.00%
Chen Hsong (PRC) Investment 2 non-voting
Company Limited deferred shares

EEMEHER QA 50,000,000/ 1), (3 100.00%
Chen Hsong Machinery Company, IR ERER D
Limited 50,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited 1A% A] HE Bl it (1) 100.00%
1 redeemable share

CHI Dorset Square Limited 4,264,675/ @A (1), (6) 100.00%
4,264,675 ordinary shares

EIYBRAA IRE B (1), 3) 100.00%

Continuous Victory Limited

EIEEEBR AT 2022/23 Fi

1 ordinary share
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IHAEE =B AR E A
ERITROZBANE L
Approximate percentage

of the relevant class

HEEEER RBRG z R M of issued shares of
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes associated corporation
HETBR AR 2% AR (1), (4) 100.00%

Desee Limited

EBABRAR
Desko Limited

TR AR A A
Elegant City Developments Limited

Elite Sino Investments Limited

BEREGRAT

Equaltex Investment Limited

BXBRAR
Goman Limited

Gondmyne Limited

Granwich Limited

EEBREB R REERKER AR
Hong Kong Cad-Cam Services Limited

Kadom Limited

EERREARRRAT

KCI Investments Limited

=HhBER AR
Koyoki Limited

AR AR 2022/23 FiR

2 ordinary shares

Pl g =il (1), (4) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

IR (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

2% AR (1), (3) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

Pl gzl (1), (3) 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

2% AR (1), 4 100.00%
2 ordinary shares

100,0000% & i A% (1), (3) 100.00%
100,000 ordinary shares

I AR (1), (3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

52,570,000% 38 % (1), (3) 75.10%
52,570,000 ordinary
shares

2R AR (1), (3) 100.00%

2 ordinary shares

el (1), (5) 100.00%
1 ordinary share

2R E ik (1), (4 100.00%
2 ordinary shares
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GRS E A B E B
ERITROZBANE L
Approximate percentage

of the relevant class

HELIE SR AR 2 s B = of issued shares of
Name of associated corporation Interest in shares Notes associated corporation
ERBRAFA 2R AR (1), 4 100.00%
Mikia Limited 2 ordinary shares
REBRATR 2% AR (1), 4 100.00%
Mogin Limited 2 ordinary shares
Pacific Concept Global Limited 6h% E B A% (1), (3) 60.00%
6 ordinary shares
K BRA R 2% AR (1), 4 100.00%
Parot Limited 2 ordinary shares
Perfect Choice Global Limited IR E AR (1), 3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share
EELBRAR 2% AR (L), 4) 100.00%
Potachi Limited 2 ordinary shares
Pro-Team Pacific Limited IRE R (1), 3) 100.00%
1 ordinary share
FIEBBR AR 2% AR (1), 4) 100.00%
Rikon Limited 2 ordinary shares
hEBB R A A 2% AR (1), 4) 100.00%
Semicity Limited 2 ordinary shares
AL BR AR 2R AR (1), 4) 100.00%
Sibeland Limited 2 ordinary shares
SEBRAFA 2R AR (1), 4 100.00%
Sumei Limited 2 ordinary shares
mElREERAR IR E AR (1), 3) 100.00%

Value Creation Group Limited

1 ordinary share

70 EHEEBRLNF 2022/23 F;
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HAh—f - B RIERBBERND S E R -

(2) Itk JhCititrust (Bahamas) Limited##H 2
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Notes:

(1) Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited holds 100% interest in CH
Investments. In turn, Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings Limited is wholly-
owned by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited. Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited is the
trustee of a discretionary trust, namely The Chiang Chen Industrial Charity
Foundation (the “Charity Foundation”). By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lai
Yuen CHIANG is deemed to be interested in the relevant shares as she
beneficially owns 100% shares in Proficient City Investments Limited, one
of the several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.

(2) This represents the interest indirectly held by Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited,
the trustee of the Charity Foundation, which holds 100% indirect interest
in CH Investments. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG is deemed
to be interested in the relevant shares as she beneficially owns 100%
shares in Proficient City Investments Limited, one of the several eligible
beneficiaries of the Charity Foundation.

(3) Such interests are held by CH Investments.

(4) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through Gondmyne
Limited.

(5) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through Assetwise
Holdings Limited.

(6) Such interests are indirectly held by CH Investments through Perfect
Choice Global Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, none of the directors
or chief executive of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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BRAE Share Options
RNNE 7 BERETE (TERES DM ESRN A summary of the share option scheme of the Company (the “Share
IRz MIFE32 Option Scheme”) is set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

RERBEBRIEFEIAQARES(EF—F  Details of the movements in the share options held by the directors
NETERR)MAEERFREREFEMER  (one of whom is also a substantial shareholder) of the Company and
BHNESHERN - -_=F=A=1+—HEAKIT the selected employees of the Group under the Share Option Scheme

FRRERERNFBIT during the year and outstanding as at 31 March 2023 were as follows:
BhREze
Number of share options
iR
M-g-zf ke 3 ghE%)
mA-H ZA=1-H Exercise price
SEAEZLER RHEAH As at Rt Bfif it XX Asat S (H&6) per share
Name or category of participant ~ Date of grant 1April 2022 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 31 March 2023 Exercise period (Note (3)) (HKS)
35
Category |
g3
Directors
BEA(HTw) 21112020 2,200,000 - - - - 2000000 27/11/2022- 2611/2030  (3)) 2
Lai Yuen CHIANG (Note (4)) ~ 21/01/2022 1,900,000 - - - - 1900000  21/01/2024 - 200012032 (3)) 249
EiR 2711112020 1,200,000 - - - - 1200000 27/11/2022 - 261112030 (3)) 2.0
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG 2100112022 600,000 - - - - 600,000 21/01/2024 - 200012032 (3)i) 249
28
Category Il
ETES (&) 2711112020 4,100,000 - - - (1,380,000) 2720000 27/11/2022 - 26/112030  (3)(i) 220
Selected employees
(in aggregate) 2100112022 1,430,000 - - - (160,000) 1270000 21/01/2024 - 20001/2032  (3)(i) 249
=8
Category Ill
EEES(E) 2711112020 2,950,000 - - - (330,00) 2620000 27/11/2023 - 26/11/2030  (3)ii) 2.20
Selected employees
(in aggregate) 2110112022 1,840,000 - - - (260,000) 1,580,000 21/01/2025 - 20001/2032 (3 249
4
Total 16,220,000 - - - (21300000 14,090,000
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EhESE
Number of share options
ik
HoBzf Hogzzf sROE%)
mA-A ZA=t-H Exercise price
SEAEZEN RHAS hs at gt 2R fit X% Asat T (H=6) per share
Name or category of participant ~ Date of grant 1April 2022 Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed 31 March 2023 Exercise period (Note (3)) (HKS)
ERERREMZEAAL
Five highest paid individuals
during the year
-8
Category |
g3
Directors
EEA (@) 2711112020 2,200,000 - - - - 2200000 271172022 - 2611112030 (3)0i) 2.20
Lai Yuen CHIANG (Note (4))  21/01/2022 1,900,000 - - - - 1900000 21/01/2024 - 20001/2032 (36 249
EIR 2711112020 1,200,000 - - - - 1200000 27/11/2022 - 261112030 (36 220
Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG  21/01/2022 600,000 - - - - 600000 2L/01/2024 - 20001/2032  (3)i) 249
%2R
Category Il
ErES (87 2711112020 600,000 - - - - 600000 2711102022 - 26/11/2030 (3} 220
Selected employees
(in aggregate) 2100112022 500,000 - - - - 500,000 21001/2024 - 200012032 (3)(i) 249
%28
Category Il
ErESEy) 2711112020 650,000 - - - - 650000 2711112023 - 26/11/2030  (3)fii) 2.0
Selected employees
(in aggregate) 2110112022 - - - - - - 21/01/2025 - 2000112032 (3)i) 249
s
Total 7,650,000 - - - - 7,650,000
Bt Notes:

(1) FELufElREZZRHEN EmRAE+LE
BTN T =F - A - HAEMAEL -

(2) FREREA2EAR N Z BB L% E A
REE -

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi

(1) All of the above grants of share options were made prior to the
amendments to Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules taking effect on 1 January
2023.

(2) None of the grants of share options to any participant is in excess of the 1%
individual limit.
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3

4)

(%)

(6)

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the relevant exercise period:

(i) in respect of Category I, as to 50% and 50% of the share options
granted to each grantee shall be vested on and are exercisable from
the date falling on the second and fourth anniversary from the date of
grant respectively provided that no share options shall be exercised
after ten years from the date of grant.

(i) in respect of Category Il, as to 30%, 30% and 40% of the share
options granted to each grantee shall be vested on and are
exercisable from the date falling on the second, fourth and sixth
anniversary from the date of grant respectively provided that no share
options shall be exercised after ten years from the date of grant.
Vesting of the share options in respect of Category Il is subject to the
consent of the Chairman of the board of directors of the Company.

(iii) in respect of Category Ill, as to 30%, 30% and 40% of the share
options granted to each grantee shall be vested on and are
exercisable from the date falling on the third, fifth and seventh
anniversary from the date of grant respectively provided that no share
options shall be exercised after ten years from the date of grant.
Vesting of the share options in respect of Category Il is subject to the
consent of the Chairman of the board of directors of the Company.

The vesting of the share options is not subject to any performance target
and/or clawback mechanism.

By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG (the Chairman, an executive
director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) is also deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by CH Investments, a
company holding 399,641,620 shares, representing 63.38% of the issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this report, as she beneficially
owns 100% shares in one of the several eligible beneficiaries of the Charity
Foundation, where the trustee thereof indirectly holds 100% interest in CH
Investments.

No share options were granted, exercised or cancelled under the Share
Option Scheme during the year ended 31 March 2023.

The total number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme were 59,493,160, representing 9.44% of the number of issued
shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report, which includes
14,090,000 outstanding share options and 45,403,160 share options
available for grant by the Company. As at 1 April 2022 and 31 March
2023, 45,403,160 share options were available for grant under the Share
Option Scheme. There was no service provider sublimit set under the
Share Option Scheme.
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EERBEE
Report of the Directors

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above and
in note 32 to the financial statements, at no time during the year was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisitions of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the directors, chief executive or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for securities of
the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Directors’ Interests in Competing Business

As at 31 March 2023, none of the executive directors had any interest
in a business, which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares

As at 31 March 2023, so far as was known to the directors and chief
executive of the Company, the interests or short positions of substantial
shareholders and other persons in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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RAEXTRGREERT ZHE Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

ZER HEAT

HEBAR 10~ ERTEER

e ZEHNBES L

Number of Approximate percentage

BREEE R I=2) ordinary shares/ B & of the Company’s

Name of shareholder Capacity underlying shares* Notes issued ordinary shares

EIERE BEalEEA 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
CH Investments Beneficial owner

Chiangs’ Industrial Holdings MR EESE 2 e 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
Limited Interest of controlled
corporation

Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited EFTA 399,641,620 (1) 63.38%
Trustee

ERE E=EAA 9,100,000 (2) 1.44%
Lai Yuen CHIANG Beneficial owner

HAh 399,641,620 (3) 63.38%
Other

Proficient City Investments REIEEEE 2 399,641,620 3) 63.38%
Limited Interest of controlled
corporation

David Michael WEBB Bl A 15,147,200 - 2.40%
Beneficial owner

MRIZEHNER 2 #s 22,746,800 (4) 3.61%

Interest of controlled
corporation

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR
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Report of the Directors

Notes:

(1) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.
Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited is deemed to have interest in the relevant
shares by virtue of being the trustee of the Charity Foundation, and the
relevant shares are held through its controlled corporation, Chiangs’
Industrial Holdings Limited, which holds 100% interest in CH Investments.

(2) Among these interests, 4,100,000 were share options granted by the
Company to the director as beneficial owner.

(3) This represents the same parcel of shares held by CH Investments.
Proficient City Investments Limited is deemed to have interest in the
relevant shares by virtue of being one of the several eligible beneficiaries
of the Charity Foundation and Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG, a director of the
Company, is the sole beneficial shareholder of Proficient City Investments
Limited.

(4) Based on the notice of disclosure of interests of Mr. David Michael WEBB
filed on 1 June 2021, these interests in shares are held by Preferable
Situation Assets Limited, a company 100% controlled by Mr. David
Michael WEBB.

*  Details of the interests of the directors in the underlying shares in respect
of the share options granted by the Company are set out in the section
headed “Share Options” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2023, no other persons were
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO as having interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company.

Connected Transaction

During the year, the Group entered into the following connected
transaction, certain details of which are disclosed in compliance with
the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:
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On 20 February 2023, Eminent Youth Ventures Capital Limited, an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as the tenant (the
“Tenant”) accepted an offer to lease (the “Offer to Lease”) issued on 1
February 2023 by Desko Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of CH Investments, as the landlord (the “Landlord”) in relation to the
lease of the premises located at Unit 2001, 20th Floor, Citicorp Centre,
18 Whitfield Road, Hong Kong (the “Premises”) for a term of five years
commenced from 1 March 2023 and expiring on 29 February 2028,
subject to the Tenant’s option to renew for a further term of two years.
The purpose of the entering into of the Offer to Lease was that the
Group intended to use the Premises as its offices and for business
purposes. Pursuant to the Offer to Lease, (i) the rent for the Premises
was HK$217,000 per calendar month, exclusive of management and
air-conditioning charges (which shall be collected by the Landlord and
paid over to the property management company which managed the
building), government rates and all other outgoings; and (ii) a security
deposit of HK$810,887.31 (equivalent to the sum of 3 months’ rental,
management and air-conditioning charges and a quarter of government
rates) was payable by the Tenant or its authorized representative.

In accordance with HKFRS 16 “Leases”, the entering into of the Offer
to Lease as Tenant required the Group to recognize the right to use the
Premises as a right-of-use asset on its consolidated statement of financial
position which, for the purposes of the Listing Rules, was regarded
as an acquisition of asset by the Group. The value of the right-of use
asset recognized by the Group under the Offer to Lease amounts to
approximately HK$15,155,000 according to the announcement of the
Company dated 20 February 2023.

Given that CH Investments is the controlling shareholder (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company, the Landlord, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CH Investments, was regarded as a connected person of
the Company under the Listing Rules and therefore the entering into of
the Offer to Lease constituted a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The transaction contemplated under the Offer to Lease is subject to
the reporting and announcement requirements but is exempt from
the circular (including independent financial advice) and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. Details of the transaction are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 20 February 2023.
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Report of the Directors

Related Party Transactions

The Group entered into certain transactions with parties regarded as
“Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles are set out in
note 36 to the financial statements. Those related party transaction(s)
that constituted connected transaction(s) under the Listing Rules are
set out in the section headed “Connected Transaction” above, and the
Company for which the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules had been met.

Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained the sufficient
amount of public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued shares
during the year and up to the date of this report as required under the
Listing Rules.

Emolument Policy

The Group’s emolument policy, including the determination of salaries
and bonuses, is in line with the local practices where the Company and
its subsidiaries operate. The Remuneration Committee of the Company
reviews the emolument policy and structure for the remuneration
package for the directors of the Company (including executive directors
who are also senior management of the Company), having regard to
the Group’s operating results, individual duties and performance and
comparable market statistics as well as prevailing market conditions.
The Remuneration Policy of the Directors of the Company is reviewed
by the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as rewards or
incentives to directors of the Company and selected employees of the
Group, details of the scheme are set out in the section headed “Share
Options” above and in note 32 to the financial statements.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 27 to 56 of this
annual report.
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Auditor

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2023
have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for re-appointment of Ernst
& Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Lai Yuen CHIANG
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 26 June 2023
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chen
Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 223, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in

that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RARETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZBEEETPRIAEHK

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

JEE 5 8% 5019 8L (B e

As at 31 March 2023, after netting off with an aggregate
impairment provision of HK$92,297,000, the total net
carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables was
HK$1,025,099,000. Significant judgements and estimates
are applied by management, based on the lifetime
expected credit loss approach, in assessing whether
the trade receivables are recoverable and if impairment
provision is required. Management considers various
factors, including the ageing of the trade receivables,
historical collection patterns, existence of any disputes,
trading history with each customer, prevailing and
expected future market conditions and other available
information concerning the creditworthiness of
customers.

Related disclosures about trade receivables are
included in notes 4 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Our audit procedures included evaluating management’s
assessment methodology, and the inputs and
assumptions applied by management in performing
the impairment assessment by checking the ageing
of trade receivables, the credit terms granted by the
Group, historical collection patterns and post year-
end settlements, of selected samples of customers. In
addition, we assessed the published economic indices
that management applied in their assessment of the
impairment provision for trade receivables.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

RRETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEEFTPRIAEHH

Assessment of inventory provision

F R A AT

As at 31 March 2023, the net carrying amount of
the Group’s inventories was HK$791,763,000. The
assessment of inventory provision is based on the
estimated net realisable value of inventories, which
requires significant management judgement and
estimates. Management considers various factors,
including the ageing of the inventories, historical sales
patterns, post year-end sales and selling prices of
inventories, market demand, technological changes and
the Group’s future plan of usage or sale.

Related disclosures about inventories are included in
notes 4 and 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included evaluating management’s
assessment methodology, and the inputs and
assumptions applied by management in the assessment
of the inventory provision by checking the ageing, the
post year-end usage or sale and the selling prices, of
selected samples of inventories, and assessing manage-
ment’s expected future demand and usage of inventories
with reference to historical usage and/or sales patterns,
and sales orders received by the Group. We also
observed physical inventory counts at selected locations
and checked the conditions of selected samples of
inventories.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BEETTEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ZEBEEFTTRIAEHH

Impairment assessment of goodwill

B E

As at 31 March 2023, the net carrying amount of
goodwill of the Group was HK$51,905,000. The Group
performs an impairment test for goodwill acquired
in business combinations on an annual basis.
Management’s impairment assessment of goodwill
involves estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. The
assessment process involves management’s significant
judgement and estimates, including the estimation of the
expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit
and the use of other assumptions that are sensitive to
expected future market or economic conditions and the
cash-generating unit's performance in the foreseeable
future, such as the discount rate and growth rate.

Related disclosures about goodwill are included in notes
4 and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included evaluating management’s
methodologies and key assumptions used in the
discounted cash flow projections, in particular those
relating to the growth rate and discount rate with the
assistance of our valuation experts, and evaluating
management’s assessment on the sensitivity analysis
about the key assumptions and cash flow projections.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
If, based

on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

e FEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e QObtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23




BAZBMBRESE @)

B BREEEERARIMIRR
(RERZLMALZBRAA)

BRBMRETES
(%)

MBRRAENEE

BREABRZZEGRIER  SHARMASH
EREBEBIENABEERERER - A EMBF
BEE TR BN A RS ERIIELIEN
PREBEMEMER - URAHREBIER
BB FTERERMTTE Sk #sE e (R @A) »

ftEECZEGRBNEATD - RIETEIRL
FHRUAGEEMBRENBARAEER -
MEKERET =R - RAIERBMHRSES
RS LSRR - BRIPDERER T A AREKE
BUFRE FEBKEINBERT - MRE
ERMRERMREETEBRETREXNNEE
BREBBELNARME - RIVRETEER
SEPBBEZER -

HEARB Y ZBEREENEFHEABAR

EER A

ZXEEEH A
HEBATAD

N VN
23897958
Ky —BE2718

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi

Independent Auditor’s Report (continuea)

To the shareholders of Chen Hsong Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Ka Wing.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

26 June 2023
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melE xR Consolidated Income Statement

HE_Z-_=—F=ZF=+—HILFE Year ended 31 March 2023
(EBFIT) (HK$'000) Bt&E Notes 2023 2022
W= REVENUE 6 2,312,584 2,728,763
HER AR Cost of sales (1,764,532) (2,081,488)
EH Gross profit 548,052 647,275
E U A K ek R 58 Other income and gains, net 120,093 111,509
SHE RO HE H Selling and distribution expenses (261,949) (294,749)
THE Administrative expenses (156,874) (148,754)
HE s HF5m Other operating expenses, net (88,310) (76,184)
& KA Finance costs 8 (1,157) (1,306)
FE(REsE & A A Share of profits less losses
s AR 18 of associates (914) 777
BRB AR A PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7 158,941 238,568
stz Income tax expense 11 (30,156) (24,574)
REERF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 128,785 213,994
BER: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
RARERFBA Equity holders of the Company 130,289 213,309
FEIE IR 2 Non-controlling interests (1,504) 685
128,785 213,994
QAR EARNINGS PER SHARE
BHEAEWL ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
BRER HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 13
FEACGEN) Basic (HK cents) 20.7 33.8
Q=311 Diluted (HK cents) 20.7 338
90 EHEEARRAF 2022/23 Fik CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23



SeEZHERER

HE-_S-_=—#=A=+—HIL&EE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 March 2023

(B¥TT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
AEERF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 128,785 213,994
Hit2mEWE () OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(EXPENSES)
AIRE 14 B E#T 745 Other comprehensive income/(expenses) that may
FWRRZEM be reclassified to the income statement
2EW s (ZH): in subsequent periods:
MEHZRE - Exchange differences:
BEFINETS 2 Exchange differences on translation of
b 5 5R foreign operations (189,592) 101,158
JE (R & A R EAD Share of other comprehensive income/
EkE () (expenses) of associates (1,952) 1,294
ARERARENHE Net other comprehensive income/(expenses) that
Zamk s Hith may be reclassified to the income statement
2EWE(ZH)F5E in subsequent periods (191,544) 102,452
TERA%E R Other comprehensive income that will not
B o BEE NG R be reclassified to the income statement
Hh2EWa - in subsequent periods:
TEEEEMEEZ Actuarial gains on defined benefit
B8 = plan 257 1,361
AEEHEMEM OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
Wi, (ZH) (EXPENSES) FOR THE YEAR (191,287) 103,813
AEEHRRME TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/
Wz () (EXPENSES) FOR THE YEAR (62,502) 317,807
BER: ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
ZIN/NSIL=ZESEF N Equity holders of the Company (59,834) 316,446
SEFE R Non-controlling interests (2,668) 1,361
(62,502) 317,807

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 March 2023

LM BARR R

WZZE_=F=A=+—H

(B¥TT) (HK$000) Kzt Notes 2023 2022
kRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Yz - BB MRS Property, plant and equipment 14 585,382 647,970
wEYE Investment properties 15 332,866 359,296
FRAEEE Right-of-use assets 16(a) 40,362 39,149
GES Goodwill 17 51,905 51,905
mEE Intangible assets 18 3,579 1,834
REERE2IRE Investments in associates 19 25,663 28,529
EERIBE E Deferred tax assets 30 37,014 43,548
EBEYE  BEX Deposits for purchases of items of

REF & property, plant and equipment 15,248 3,607
FEIE 5 K ZIRER N Trade and bills receivables 21 82,200 99,985
RV EHERR Finance lease receivables 23 202 371
ERERAEE Defined benefit assets 29 2,611 1,061
HHIRITFR Pledged bank deposits 24 1,353 2,851
IEMBNVEELBET Total non-current assets 1,178,385 1,280,106
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
ENS Inventories 20 791,763 1,061,900
JEWE 5 K RIRIR K Trade and bills receivables 21 1,397,251 1,245,418
e BAFUEK Deposits, prepayments and

E At R AR TX other receivables 22 111,344 141,281
BV E R EIRR Finance lease receivables 23 1,414 4,311
HEIRIRITF 3K Pledged bank deposits 24 24,490 24,400
Be MIRITETR Cash and bank balances 25 644,662 671,911
MENVEEBET Total current assets 2,970,924 3,149,221
REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
BB S REERERER Trade and bills payables 26 623,367 695,694
AR - Other payables, accruals and

EstBaERaNAE contract liabilities 27 314,905 348,776
HEBE Lease liabilities 16(b) 2,862 1,599
FERITEN Interest-bearing bank borrowings 28 - 21,568
FE IR Tax payable 39,386 39,094
VEUENEEC Total current liabilities 980,520 1,106,731
REBEEFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 1,990,404 2,042,490
EEHAER TOTAL ASSETS LESS

REBEE CURRENT LIABILITIES 3,168,789 3,322,596

EIEEEBR AT 2022/23 Fi
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HmEMBRRAERE) Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued)

R-ZE-_=ZF=ZA=+—H As at 31 March 2023
(EFT) (HK$°000) Bt&E Notes 2023 2022
FREEME NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
E M ERBRE Other payables and
fEstaE accruals 27 6,364 11,674
HEAE Lease liabilities 16(b) 17,064 4,556
FEREMIEBE Deferred tax liabilities 30 77,180 77,904
SERB B EER Total non-current liabilities 100,608 94,134
EEFE NET ASSETS 3,068,181 3,228,462
Ea EQUITY
AN ERBFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
iR of the Company
BT AN Issued share capital 31 63,053 63,053
1 Reserves 33 2,986,087 3,145,996
3,049,140 3,209,049
RS Non-controlling interests 19,041 19,413
RS TOTAL EQUITY 3,068,181 3,228,462
# B35 Lai Yuen CHIANG MR Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG
FEFEEFEE Chairman and Chief Executive Officer EZ Director
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HE-_S-_=#=A=+—HIL&E

Consolidated Stafement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2023

94

2023
RAFRREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEf Rt  EXEE
A& HER 1
Issued Share Capital BARE EERE —-REE
iz share premium  redemption Capital Statutory General
(B%FIT) (HK$'000) Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve
WZZE-—FWA—H  At1April 2022 63,053 509,580 295 55,271 148,176 2,351
rERET/(BB) Profit/(loss) for the year - - - - - -
TEEERZE Other comprehensive income/
i/ (i) (expenses) for the year:
REFNEE L Exchange differences on
ERZEE translation of foreign operations - - - - - -
e E AT Share of other comprehensive
HE2ESH expenses of associates - - - - - -
TEEETEE Actuarial gains on defined
L benefit plan 29 - - - - - _
FEERZE Total comprehensive income/
e/ () (expenses) for the year - - - - - -
—EREAF Capital contribution by a non-
SRR controlling shareholder of
EXBA a subsidiary 34(a) - - - - - -
DARHE S, 1) Equity-settled share option
Btz arrangements 3 - - - 1,441 - -
RREF|EE Transfer from retained profits - - - 318 1,465 -
gz-%2-- Final dividend
s =15 for the year ended
ERIRERE 31 March 2022 2 - - . . . i}
HERE Interim dividend 12 - - - - - -
RZB_=F
=R=1-H At 31 March 2023 63,053 509,580* 295* 57,030* 149,641* 2,351%

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR
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HE_Z-_=—F=A=+—HILFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continuea)
Year ended 31 March 2023

2023
RAFRREEAEE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EEEf Eig F2R
1 1 E#
Asset  Exchange REEF Non- EREs
M revaluation  fluctuation Retained @t controlling Total
(B¥TT) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
WZZE--FMA—H At Apil 2022 81,231 353,334 1,995,758 3,209,049 19,413 3,228 462
AEERF/(BB)  Profitloss) for the year - - 130,289 130,089 (1504) 128785
TEEENRE Other comprehensive income/
W/ (%) (expenses) for the year:
REGHER L Exchange differences on
ELER translation of foreign operations - (188,428) - (188,428) (1,164) (189,592)
=V Share of other comprehensive
HpzET N expenses of associates - (1,952) - (1,952) - (1,952)
EEENGE Actuarial gains on defined
BEkE benefit plan 29 - - 257 257 - 257
FEEHEZE Total comprehensive income/
Wit/ () (expenses) for the year - (190,380) 130,546 (59,834) (2,668) (62,502)
—HHBAT Capital contribution by a non-
FEREE controlling shareholder of
BERRA a subsidiary 34(a) - - - - 2,296 2,29
PARES 4 Equity-settled share option
BREZH arrangements 32 - - - 1,441 - 1,441
{RE G I Transfer from retained profits - - (1,783) - - -
Hz-Z-—& Final dividend
“A=t—H1It for the year ended
FECRERE 31 March 2022 12 - - (73,142) (73,142) - (73,142)
hERE Interim dividend 12 - - (28,374) (28,374) - (28,374)
R-B-=F
=A=t-8 At 31 March 2023 81,231* 162,954*  2,023,005* 3,049,140 19,041 3,008,181
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HE_Z-_—F=-F=+—RHILtFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2023

2022
RAFRREEAEL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BEf i EXEE
B RER e
Issued Share Capital ERfGE EERE — Wik
i3 share premium  redemption Capital Statutory General
(E®TFT) (HK$'000) Notes capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve
WZE-—FEA—-H  At1Apil 2021 63,053 509,580 295 53,901 147,061 2,351
REEHR Profit for the year - - - - _ _
FEEAMEA Other comprehensive income
Wi for the year:
BEEHEG L Exchange differences on
ERZES translation of foreign operations - - - - - -
N Share of other comprehensive
Et2El income of associates - - - - - -
ERREMNGEZ Actuarial gains on defined
g e benefit plan 29 - - - - - -
FEEBE2E Total comprehensive income
W for the year - - - - - -
—HMBAT Capital contribution by a non-
FERRE controlling shareholder of
BARA a subsidiary 34(a) - - - - - -
DARRHE 2 15 4 Equity-settled share option
BREL arrangements 3 - - - 1370 - -
RERNEE Transfer from retained profits - - - - 1115 -
BE-_E--% Final dividend
ZR=+-AL for the year ended
FEZRERE 31 March 2021 12 - - - - - _
GEE) Interim dividend 12 - - - - - _
e —RNE Dividend payable to a non-
NEFEER controlling shareholder of
RERE a subsidiary - - - - - -
WZEZZF
ZA=t-H At 31 March 2022 63,053 509,580* 295* 55,271* 148,176* 2,351%

Y ZERERARRSAMBANRAZEE R
% R 751%2,986,087,000c( T -4 : B
3,145,996,0007T) °

96 EHEEFRNRF 2022/23 FR

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$2,986,087,000 (2022: HK$3,145,996,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.
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HE_Z-_—F=ZF=+—HILtFE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continuea)
Year ended 31 March 2023

2022
RAFRREEAEE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
EEEfR Ei2E FER
1 1 B
Asset  Exchange RERF Non- R
iFia revaluation  fluctuation Retained @it controlling Total
(BEFr) (HK$'000) Notes reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
RZE--FMA-8  At1Apil 2021 81,231 251,558 1,887,502 2,996,532 16,514 3,013,046
KEE G Profit for the year - - 213,309 213,309 685 213,994
FEEAMER Other comprehensive income
Wi for the year:
BEENEB Exchange differences on
ERER translation of foreign operations - 100,482 - 100,482 676 101,158
ElEBE AR Share of other comprehensive
At 2ENE income of associates - 1,29 - 1,294 - 1,294
ERENGEZ Actuarial gains on defined
gk benefit plan 29 - - 1361 1,361 - 1,361
FEEERE Total comprehensive income
L6 for the year - 101,776 214,670 316,446 1,361 317,807
—FAHBAT Capital contribution by a non-
FERRE controlling shareholder of
BARA a subsidiary 34(a) - - - - 2,038 2,038
DA 2 5 4 Equity-settled share option
BRELZ S arrangements 32 - - - 1,370 - 1,370
RERTIER Transfer from retained profits - - (1,115) - - -
BE_Z_—% Final dividend
ZR=+—ALt for the year ended
ERZRIRR 31 March 2021 2 - - (72,511) (72,511) - (72,511)
HERE Interim dividend 12 - - (32,788) (32,788) - (32,788)
el —MNE Dividend payable to a non-
NG controlling shareholder of
BRE S a subsidiary - - - - (500) (500)
WZE-ZF
ZA=t-H At 31 March 2022 81,231* 363,334*  1995,758* 3,209,049 19,413 3,228,462
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AEETRER

HE-_S-_=#=A=+—HIL&E

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended 31 March 2023

(BT T) (HK$'000) HizF Notes 2023 2022
REER CASH FLOWS FROM

HEeERE OPERATING ACTIVITIES
B 5t A A Profit before tax 158,941 238,568
FEE - Adjustments for:

BbE KA Finance costs 8 1,157 1,306

FEAGES: = A 5] MR ET 18 Share of profits less losses of associates 19 914 (777)

FEBHA Interest income 7 (12,335) (15,852)

BEEHEEF BUA Finance lease interest income 7 (210) (493)

W - WEREE Depreciation of property, plant and

ZHE equipment 7 57,024 53,967

FREEECIE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 7 2,971 2,729

BB E B Amortization of intangible assets 7 419 203

HEDE  BELEE Gain on disposal of items of

LEREEEZ property, plant and equipment
W H e and right-of-use asset, net 7 (30,953) (1,225)

L EN e Write-off of items of property,

ZRESH plant and equipment 7 1,869 1,153

"EYHEZ NFE Fair value gains on investment

e properties 7 - (13,810)

FERE(BERRE) Provision/(write-back of provision)

FEE for inventories, net 7 (11,520) 1,414

JEUE S RFORE, Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

CRERED ) F58 of trade receivables, net 7 (1,293) 3,651

FEN BB E BRI Write-back of impairment of

IR IERE Y EIpE ] finance lease receivables, net 7 (846) (2,023)

H fth pE U AR R Write-back of impairment of other

BB EFEE receivables, net 7 - (86)

LA RS =2 A< 9 B LA <2 1 Equity-settled share option expenses 32 1,441 1,370

167,579 269,995

FERAD,/(GEM) Decrease/(increase) in inventories 221,605 (321,076)

JEURE 5 & =R AR RN Increase in trade and bills receivables (186,315) (10,065)

FE N B E M EBRFR Decrease in finance lease receivables 1,315 5,855
Al EFEREM Decrease/(increase) in deposits,

FEURBR TR A, (38 0) prepayments and other receivables 29,667 (45,798)
FERTE 5 R ERERFOR D Decrease in trade and bills payables (41,260) (82,684)
HAEMERER « EsTaE Decrease in other payables, accruals and

Eea#HhaERd contract liabilities (31,986) (37,030)
MR T ERERAEE Contributions to defined benefit plan (1,363) (1,550)

EIEEEBR AT 2022/23 Fi
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HE_Z-_=—F=A=+—HILFE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)
Year ended 31 March 2023

(BT T) (HK$'000) HizF Notes 2023 2022
KEEYE /(R ZRE Cash generated from/(used in) operations 159,242 (222,353)
21 F 8, Interest paid (1,157) (1,306)
BUEERER S Finance lease interest received 210 493
R EEINRIR Overseas taxes refunded 810 4,275
BEAEINETE Overseas taxes paid (21,574) (56,717)
KEEBZRERA Net cash flows from/(used in)

(i) #%8 operating activities 137,531 (275,608)
REXK 2 CASH FLOWS FROM

RERE INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BEYE  HE Purchases of items of property, plant

BeLE] and equipment 34(a) (48,984) (127,377)

HEME  BERRE Proceeds from disposal of items of

REREEE property, plant and equipment and

FriS 5008 right-of-use asset 48,986 1,817
B U F 8 Interest received 12,335 15,852
EEME  HWE Increase in deposits for purchases

LEET2 of items of property, plant and

E=pill equipment 34(a) (14,940) (3,200)
REUE IR TF R Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits 62,723 70,499
TR RIRITIE R Placement of pledged bank deposits (63,319) (43,820)
WEER RS R F5E Net cash flows used in investing activities (3,199) (86,229)
ARG CASH FLOWS FROM

HEeRE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
FERITER New bank loans 72,500 -
BEIRTTER Repayment of bank loans (92,958) (45,000)
B Dividends paid (101,516) (105,299)
HENRZAEHS Principal portion of lease payments 34(c) (1,511) (1,597)
RMEER RS M FE Net cash flows used in financing activities (123,485) (151,896)
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LEBERERE) Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued)

HE-_S-_=F=-A=+—HIL&EE Year ended 31 March 2023
(EBFIT) (HK$'000) Bf&E Notes 2023 2022
HeRBESEEYZ NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN
®wm, R ) FE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 10,847 (513,733)
FUZRE Cash and cash equivalents
MRS EED at beginning of year 671,911 1,146,188
[EREE) & Effect of foreign exchange rate
SRR changes, net (38,096) 39,456
FRZBEER CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
HEZEY AT END OF YEAR 644,662 671,911
HENEEZEY ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
HEREZDM CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Be MFITER Cash and bank balances 25 346,249 583,503
AT 3R BB B R A B Bank deposits with original maturity of
TR=MAZBITHER less than three months when acquired 25 298,413 88,408
644,662 671,911
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Notes to Financial Statements

31 March 2023

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Chen Hsong Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. During the year, the principal
place of business of the Company was located at 13-15 Dai Wang
Street, Tai Po Industrial Estate, Tai Po, New Territories, Hong
Kong. With effect from 20 March 2023, the principal place of
business of the Company was changed to Unit 2001, 20th Floor,
Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in the
manufacture and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and
related products.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s ultimate holding
company is Cititrust (Bahamas) Limited, a company incorporated
in the Bahamas. Chen Hsong Investments Limited (“CH
Investments”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, is the
Company’s immediate holding company.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out on pages 224
to 226.

2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties which have been measured at fair
value. Defined benefit assets are measured using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method as further explained in
note 3 to the financial statements. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise indicated.
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2.1 RBEEE) 2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2023. A
subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights
results in control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly,
less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

2.1 mBEE(E) 2.1BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
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Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control,
is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognizes (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognizes (i) the fair value of the consideration received,
(ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of
components previously recognized in other comprehensive income
is reclassified to the income statement or retained profits, as
appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first

RIETZEEYEH

BRI HE £
ERVACCHID)

EEGEAF16H
(5])

BRGHEAFITH
(5])

BB RS ER|
T\ §E
—E-FFZ
FEH

%R -
B IEn

WxE - BB RREE
REBZFZIT1F
HE

BREX —IEITER
A

EAMBREENF]
5% BEMBWmE
RRIFH - BB
BHRELEAF16
SRRERT . 8P R E
BEITERIEALN
(&7])

time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

LA FRRIEETH BB ISR & R e i The adoption of the above revised HKFRSs has had no significant
AEEW PR R RIRELEREAY

B/ 48R
fir87- 3

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi

financial impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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23THEGEREMNE BT EREXR  2.3I1SSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
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s -

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

BEMH RS REE SRR E Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets between
ZEHIFE 109 & REHAETEEZA HKAS 28 (2011) an Investor and its Associate or
ERGRER 1 & E )T AP Joint Venture®
285 (20114F)

(1&&])

ERUBRE E#EHMEE Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and
#1165 =g Leaseback?

(1&83])

BREUB®E REg A4 HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
ZRIE175%

BEMHRE REg A4S Amendments to HKFRS 17 Insurance Contractst®
EHIZE 175
(1&&])

ERUBRE HIRIRN & B B Amendment to HKFRS 17 Initial Application of HKFRS 17
ERE1T5 ERIE1 7R E B and HKFRS 9 — Comparative
(1&83]) TR R EI% — Information®

HEERS

BEGHENEIR BESEARE Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as

(1&8&]) HETE Current or Non-current

([=Z=BFET >

(the “2020 Amendments”)2#

EEQTENELIR WEZEY Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(1&&]) FETEEE (the “2022 Amendments”)>

(22 ZFB7T )2

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR
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FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies!
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates®

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of
the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a consequence of the 2020
Amendments and 2022 Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5
Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause
was revised to align the corresponding wording with no change in
conclusion

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS
9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

& An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the
classification overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial
application of HKFRS 17

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application,
but is not yet in a position to state whether these new and
revised HKFRSs would have any significant impact on its financial
performance and financial position.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long-term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting
policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognized directly in
the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognizes
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealized gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates or joint ventures, except where
unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates or
joint ventures is included as part of the Group’s investments in
associates or joint ventures.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant
influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture,
the Group measures and recognizes any retained investment at
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint
control and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognized in the income statement.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 107



108

PR MR ()

—ET-=F=A=+—H

TEETHERBE®E)

EBREHRBE(E

EAKEWBEBGE - ARBAOGKK -
U iE B HR 2 AP IR 45 S A A MR A S P o R
TREERBBEETHE  KEEDER
BR - BRERSRARITETAERKES.
RO -

MEHAFIEBET - ERRA 2R
RmEZWERHAFEENE - ME
o] R b 2 A O Mo S R S O U s 2 P

e

WiE 5 A 8858 2 [ Sk AR BN RS B 1
BAVEER - DBEREESRENIA
REDARFEFE  MAFEEDHER
Wa kTR - D ESRENRRKE
BTGB E - BEREENERTA

BEBERANETVIRAE DB ER
B FEhEacBReB M ANREL
CIIESY ST G- A O F NS =R
BB RN EERMARABE ZE
B o WANREREMER ZAFMER AT
BEEFEZATE  RIREHFMER
ZEBENRERERARREBER 2K

N2
S o
g

EIEEEBR AT 2022/23 Fi

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the income
statement.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at
fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the income
statement. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognized for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum
of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognized in the income statement as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected
to benefit from the synergy of the combination, irrespective of
whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. An impairment
loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill
disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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110

AVENE

AEENEREHRZ L FEFEREY
X - AHERRFERMRARSZ2EE
ZHBFR 5 H A E A E Wk s
BEMXMNZER - ATEFEDERR
REHEEELERRBEZIRHINEESLR
BzTEMHELE WL ETETS -
ARNEERRBZRBMNZMBESE -
T2YZANTHARAEENEAZT
5 RERBBZAFENEAMS2HA
EERTERERENSHEEXREE
TEBRMERZBRETAGFE -

N

o

FeRMEEZAFEAEFNTISEL2EE
NEETABREERREURETAE
REEZHMHSE2RELEEREE -
MELEEMNS 28N »

AEBEHHARBFERERTRMGETE -
HRA RWEUETE R TE - BRI RER
RAEERERE B ERATAER
BWAME -

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR

(continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.
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3. FEEHBEBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

AFEFEE) Fair value measurement (continued)

AR ERYBRERFTEIBEECMBEE All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or

NaE  DRBHATEI=EEEmMS disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair

BEAZ&EERBABIBERNAFEE value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

& #WHEAT input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

F—E — ERHEREESBERER Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
5 2 (B CREAR) markets for identical assets or liabilities

FoE - ERYATENEmNEBE Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
A2 &EERE ABETER lowest level input that is significant to the fair
(TmBEZENEE) 2HER value measurement is observable, either directly or
15 indirectly

FZE — EREAFEFEMNETBEBE Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
A ERIEE R AMET A8 level input that is significant to the fair value
=7 HERDT measurement is unobservable

HRNRE B EER B BRRERCEE For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial

NEE  AEERSHmERRSBENT statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether

HoBE(BREBEYATEFEEEMEBEE transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by

AREBEERBAE)  BEEEREE reassessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is

Wz EEEERE - significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.
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3. FESHHER/EE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
FEeRMEERE Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate
asset (e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognized only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the income statement in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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3. FEEHBEBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

IERMEEREBE(E) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
REERERRSTIEREGEDTRETZ An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
FIEERABERBENBFEESRD W as to whether there is an indication that previously recognized
HIRZEDR - AlgfsrJkEe5E - @ impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
AERANEEREBE(FERINESR such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
FALAEE TE & B AT UK [B] <0 BB A9 {51 oA 28 B 12 A previously recognized impairment loss of an asset other than
B - EREENEENESaERNERBES goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
BEUEREERADRESEmMESNRT estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
BNRITE #iE) - BEBEBNEE but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
REEHREGT AlZERE have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortization) had

no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

BEAL Related parties

—HWRAEREE 2 HEATNSE A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) Z—HABZBALTREMOALTHER (a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
HE - mMzBAT family and that person
(i) FEflsk KRR S A S (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) BASKEBUERFE & (i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) AAEBESIAEEFGRAANEE (ii) is a member of the key management personnel of the

EEEKE Group or of a parent of the Group;
B4 or
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3. FEEHBEBESE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
BEAL(E) Related parties (continued)
(b) Z—FHAER  mMFE TNIEA—IE (b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
1 - applies:
(i) ZERBEAASEEBR —SE 2K (i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
ISUNSI
(i) ZERBARSEBNBERALE (i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
ErE(SIZ—EBZERA - entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
WEBAERAWBAF): the other entity);
(i) ZEBEREMAEEREY AR —F=F (i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
ZEEPE third party;
(v BB AE=-FBREZ2EED (iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
¥ MEERBAZF-HERBZ entity is an associate of the third entity;
B &N A

) ZEBALRSEN— %«Eﬁizli'i@ (v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
BHEEESIEENER benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
MBEB R EAETE related to the Group;

(vi) ZE R ()BT A TSI (vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

HREES identified in (a);
(i) R(@)(VEFTHAATHERESE (vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
HENBZER(IZEENY over the entity or is a member of the key management
Qﬂ)I BIEAE & personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii) ZEBREIHEMBERNEMKE (vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
MASEE R AEENT QR RHE part, provides key management personnel services to the
FEEEBABRE - Group or to the parent of the Group.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the income statement in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalized
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognizes such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings in Hong Kong — Over the lease terms
Buildings outside Hong Kong — 15 to 60 years
Plant, machinery, furniture — 2 to 15 years

and other equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognized in the
income statement in the year the asset is derecognized is the
difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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(continued)
REYE Investment properties
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Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than
for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement in the
year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognized in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties, the deemed cost of a property for subsequent
accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use. If a
property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/
or accounts for such property in accordance with the policy
stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-
use asset up to the date of change in use, and any difference at
that date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve.
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(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortized over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization period
and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Know-how

Purchased know-how is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortized on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 5 years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalized and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.
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3. FEEHHEREE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
BREREMERMERE Investments and other financial assets
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Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortized cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortized cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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(continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortized cost are held within a business model with the objective
to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognized on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortized cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when
the asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.
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(continued)

LEZAEHMEE Derecognition of financial assets

cHEE(XNEMEE — ok —4ME A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial

DemEEs—8n @ WEA)EELT asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily

PIE I AS 18 4 IEFER (IR - (e AREE 2 derecognized (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated

REMIEARREZBR) - 1M statement of financial position) when:

e WEGZEEEMNAMBRSRE ZEFR e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
KEEm K or

e AEBECBUEZEEEMSRESR e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
EoEMNEE  BEEBRBERI%T the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
% BBREREESABRELE cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
ZIEBRT  2ERNTE=F & Zli a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (i) the Group has
SECEEZEBEEBREBS transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
R EH : 5k( ||)$%IIE3%%LE§EM%EE asset, or (ii) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
ZIEEERRBORRERER - EE substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
VEIRZIAEE 2 1EHIRE o transferred control of the asset.

WASB D EEEWNZEEEMGR® When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows

MEZRENKE T BELTH - g E from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,

EEREZBEERBRNER R EH - it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and

UNRERE - WEITEEZEIREBZEE rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred

EMRAIsRR MO - B mEEZ nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor

HEEMZEHE  ~EEEELZREEHN transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognize

iﬁ’?éﬁi&rﬁgﬁ IARZEREEE - N the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing

ERT  AEENERIEHEAE - CD#E involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated
BERABBENIEREASBRE 2 & liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
MEEREEEGTE measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that

the Group has retained.

NEFTEEEEERERNEAFES R Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
E@ﬁ%?ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁfﬁiﬁ$%lf§bﬂ“ transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
ENEaRESEMENREETE - amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration

that the Group could be required to repay.
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected
cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual
terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognized in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information. The Group considers that there has been a significant
increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due.
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SRMEEREE) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
—mHH (&) General approach (continued)
REERE - WARHNF@EB—F - Al The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
BMEEMREEDN - AEERESGENLEE payments are one year past due. The Group has rebutted the 90
BRNEM(BEAEENEERRIZESIE days past due presumption of default based on reasonable and
Pl EEAN TR eREENBTE supportable information including the Group’s credit risk control
ME)  HEBhL T RRIERONREE practices and the historical recovery rate of financial assets
HRE - AT - X ETRAEEFEL over 90 days past due. However, the Group may also consider
AR ERZYmAET - AEBIAIAA a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
EB ek SNER A R TR AN S B R K AT BE R EUK information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
MHAREEGHNSERESRHEERER outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
4 o MEEEEEHKEENRERE - any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
AMHEREE - written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering

the contractual cash flows.

WHER A EZSREEARE KT Financial assets at amortized cost are subject to impairment under

EEITRE - WR T EEAEERE the general approach and they are classified within the following

ZHEB DR - M XXATRFERRS LS stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables and

52 FEWUE 2 BR 51 % JE Lk it & 7R & AR SRBR finance lease receivables which apply the simplified approach as

Gp e detailed below.

BEE— — EERREVIHEERNRIL Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
MEREIEN - BEBEEEER increased significantly since initial recognition and for
ERNTZMABHEES which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
BroBEiEcemIT A equal to 12-month ECLs

EE— — EERREVIEERLRE Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
ERM(ELIEEEEREL increased significantly since initial recognition but that
CRIEE)  BEBERERS are not credit-impaired financial assets and for which
EREZHEMEEEE S the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
WATBZERMIA lifetime ECLs

BE= — RBEABAEEERE(HE Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
WIBE R EEER date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
B) BEEEBRERSANE impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
HEHEESB 2B E at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
L EREE
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(continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
and finance lease receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognizes a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and,
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,

financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities and interest-bearing bank borrowings.
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(continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortized cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Gains and losses are recognized in the income statement when
the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective
interest rate amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortization is included in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognized initially as
a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of (i) the ECL allowance determined in
accordance with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial
assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognized less, when
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized.
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(continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the income
statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realizable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, bank balances and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand, bank balances
and demand deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognized when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognized
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the income statement.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of certain
products. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties granted
by the Group are recognized based on sales volume and past
experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to their
present values as appropriate.
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(continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognized outside the income statement is
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assets are only recognized to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized.
Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognized to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only
if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different
taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be
settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognized at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates
to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic
basis over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to an asset,
the fair value is credited to a deferred income account and is
released to the income statement over the expected useful life of
the relevant asset by equal annual installments.
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Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when
control of goods is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods to the customer for more than one year, revenue
is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and the
customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant
financial benefit for more than one year, revenue recognized
under the contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS
15. Furthermore, the Group has elected to apply the practical
expedient to recognize the incremental costs of obtaining a
contract as an expense when incurred if the amortization period of
the asset that the Group otherwise would have recognized is one
year or less.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods.
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(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Other income

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Rental income is recognized on a time proportion basis over the
lease term.

Finance lease interest income is recognized on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the net investment of the finance lease or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the net investment of the finance lease.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognized when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognized as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).
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The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognizes lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognized at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of a right-
of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets as

follows:

Leasehold land 50 to 52 years
Properties 2 to 7 years
Motor vehicles 2 years

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost,
and subsequently measured at fair value, in accordance with
the Group’s policy for “Investment properties”.
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Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) HEEE (b) Lease liabilities
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(c)

made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of properties (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment that are considered
to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in other
income in the income statement.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases. At the commencement date,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalized at the present value of
the lease payments and related payments (including the initial
direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an amount equal
to the net investment in the lease. The finance income on the net
investment in the lease is recognized in the income statement
so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease
terms.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalized as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalization of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalized. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using
that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded
by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognized in the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising
on translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on the item
whose fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive
income or the income statement is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or the income statement, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognizes the non-monetary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If
there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period and
their income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. The resulting exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognized in the income
statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Employee benefits

(a) Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a certain percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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(continued)
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Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Bikzit& (&) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Prior to the MPF Scheme becoming effective, the Group
operated a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
(the “DCRB Scheme”) for those employees who were eligible
and had elected to participate in the DCRB Scheme. The
DCRB Scheme operates in a similar way to the MPF Scheme,
except that when an employee leaves the Group prior to his/
her interest in the DCRB Scheme vesting fully, the ongoing
contributions payable by the Group would be reduced by the
relevant amount of the forfeited employer contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme (the
“Central Scheme”) which is operated by the local municipal
government. The contributions payable by these subsidiaries
to the Central Scheme, which are based on a certain
percentage of the salaries of their employees, are charged to
the income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Central Scheme.

As required by the Taiwanese Labour Standard Law, the
Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate a funded defined
benefit pension scheme (the “Old Scheme”) and make
monthly contributions to the retirement fund to meet
employees’ retirement and termination benefits entitlements.
The fund is administered by the Employees’ Retirement
Fund Committee (the “Committee”) and is deposited under
the Committee’s name with a government approved financial
institution, which acts as the trustee. The cost of providing
pension benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined
using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.
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Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Bikzit&) (&) (a) Pension schemes (continued)
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Remeasurements arising from the Old Scheme, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognized immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to the income statement in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognized in the income statement at
the earlier of:

e the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

e the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related
costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the
net defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognizes
the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation
under “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses”
and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-
service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-

routine settlements

e Net interest expense or income
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Employee benefits (continued)

(a) Bikzit& (&) (a) Pension schemes (continued)

140

R-ZEZRF  EBRMEE] THE In 2005, the Taiwan government amended the related
RRIKEETE - RN TRIKS KO pension scheme regulations by adding a new contributory
FoEIN T ETA R R RIK S FHE pension scheme (the “New Scheme”) in the Labour Pension

—~

[#TEt&l]) WHR_ZTTRFLA—
BAXK - RIBETHORKRA - BE
RERFREENINEEED -
AEBEEREZMBARERETH
AEMEEMNETCRBERRIEZER
BB P BB 0 R T IRIT 4 E IR
P EXRKEEREZHBERRNA
BEREMFENR-_ZTRFLA—A
AIAR A AR %5 F HIR RE D o

(b) BRKENSZKS

ARRFRNBIMEE - BOR R
REBRAEETRERMZAERZ
2BAL - KENEE(BRES)S
5 B SR AR A5 5 LA SR B AR A T = ¥R
ZRGERIABESNRS ]

VAR 32 15 52 5 B0 B AN 28 R AL (B O 4
ETTRE N ERRE KRR G
MBRNERSEBRNI L - AE(E
REHPREZEFB A RABRE AR
SHER R RREFEME® -
AR SR S B B S 45 5 2 55 & M ik
AT AHENREMRT - F—HEK
BmRZMBEHEA - TR HEREM
RREDHERRHZES -

EIEEEBR AT 2022/23 Fi

(b)

Act, which became effective on 1 July 2005. According to
the amended retirement regulations, the employees could
choose to either select the New Scheme or to stay with the
Old Scheme whatever they want. The obligation of the Group’s
subsidiaries in Taiwan to those employees selecting the New
Scheme is to contribute the required portion of the monthly
compensation to the government designated account since
the election, while the Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan are still
liable under the Old Scheme for the portion pertaining to the
service years prior to 1 July 2005.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services in exchange
for equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognized for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognized as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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(continued)

BEREF(E)

Employee benefits (continued)

(b) ERBESZIXZ(E) (b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
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Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the grant date fair
value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to be non-
vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the
fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing
of an award unless there are also service and/or performance
conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognized. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognized as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognized for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment
transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 141



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

PR MR ()

—ET-=F=A=+—H

3. FESHHER/EE) 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
EERAE) Employee benefits (continued)
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(b) Share-based payment transactions (continued)
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Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately.
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This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within
the control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the
date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are
treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as

described in the previous paragraph.

RITEBRENE ST 2 UEINR The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
MESEARR - STEZREAF - additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.
4. EREFTHE R A 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES
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The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

(a) Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group
has to exercise judgement in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
that may affect the asset value or such event affecting the
asset value has not been in existence; (2) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated based upon
the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash
flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management to determine the level
of impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test.

(b) Withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends

The Group’s determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes arising from the distributions of dividends
from certain subsidiaries according to the relevant tax
jurisdictions is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend. The Group considered that if the
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future, then
no withholding taxes should be provided.
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HI (& Judgements (continued)
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(c) Classification between investment properties and owner-
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occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by the Group.
Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that is
held for use in the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold
separately or leased out separately under a finance lease, the
Group accounts for the portions separately. If the portions
could not be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that
a property does not qualify as an investment property.
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FI (& Judgements (continued)
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Leases are required to be classified as either finance leases
(which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership, and give rise to the recognition of a receivable by
the lessor) or operating leases (which result in the recognition
of the leased asset by the lessor).
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the end of the lease term;

the lessee has the option to purchase the asset at a price
which is expected to be sufficiently lower than the fair
value at the date the option becomes exercisable and, at
the inception of the lease, it is reasonably certain that the
option will be exercised;

the lease term is for the major part of the economic life of
the asset, even if title is not transferred;

at the inception of the lease, the present value of the
minimum lease payments amounts to at least substantially
all of the fair value of the leased asset; or

the leased assets are of a specialized nature such that
only the lessee can use them without major modifications
being made.
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4. EXEHER L E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

HI (& Judgements (continued)

(e) BEEMBEMEEENS RN E (e) Significant judgement in determining the lease term of a
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contract with a renewal option

The Group has a lease contract that includes an extension
option. The Group applies judgement in evaluating
whether or not to exercise the option to renew the lease.
That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the
commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if
there is a significant event or change in circumstances that
is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to
exercise the option to renew.

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the lease
term for a lease of its property due to the significance of the
asset to its operations. The lease has a short non-cancellable
period (i.e., five years) and there will be a significant negative
effect on operation if a replacement is not readily available.
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4. EXREHER G E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
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ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described as below.

(a) Estimation regarding provision for expected credit losses on
trade receivables and finance lease receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and finance lease receivables. The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns. The Group takes
into consideration information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions are
expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to
an increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyzed.
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4. EXEHER L E) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND

ESTIMATES (continued)

CERNEESESE

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(a) FEWE ZERARENGETHERRNA (a) Estimation regarding provision for expected credit losses on
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(b)

trade receivables and finance lease receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is
a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to
changes in circumstances and forecast economic conditions.
The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast
of economic conditions may also not be representative of a
customer’s actual default in the future. The information about
the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and finance lease
receivables is disclosed in notes 21 and 23 to the financial
statements, respectively.

Estimation regarding inventory provision

Management of the Group reviews the inventory ageing
analysis on a periodic basis for those aged inventories.
This involves comparison of the carrying value of the aged
inventory items with the respective net realizable value. In
addition, management of the Group considers various factors,
including historical sales patterns, post year-end usage or
sales and selling prices of inventories, market demand,
technological changes and the Group’s future plan of usage
or sale to ascertain whether provision is required to be made
in the financial statements for any obsolete and slow-moving
items. Physical counts on all inventories are carried out on a
periodic basis in order to determine whether any provision is
required to be made in respect of any obsolete and defective
inventories identified. The net carrying amount of inventories
as at 31 March 2023 was HK$791,763,000 (2022: HK$
1,061,900,000), details of which are set out in note 20 to the
financial statements.
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ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

(c) Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating unit and also to choose a suitable discount
rate and growth rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows. The net carrying amount of goodwill as at
31 March 2023 was HK$51,905,000 (2022: HK$51,905,000).
More details of the impairment assessment are given in note
17.

5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally involved in the manufacture and sale of
plastic injection moulding machines and related products. For
management purposes, the Group is organized into business units
based on the locations of customers and has three reportable
operating segments as follows:

(i) Mainland China and Hong Kong;
(ii) Taiwan; and
(iii) Other overseas countries.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is a measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted
profit before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, unallocated income
and gains, non-lease-related finance costs, share of profits less
losses of associates and corporate and unallocated expenses are
excluded from such measurement.
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—ET-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
5. BE&oHERE) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
DESEEMBRREBE AR Z2"E  BLEMH Segment assets exclude investments in associates, deferred tax
HEENMBS RRITHEGFEPRITER assets and cash and bank balances except pledged bank deposits.
Broh) o B EBRETERITTER - & Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank borrowings, tax
NRIERIEERIBAEE © payable and deferred tax liabilities.
ARESEDH 2B BEERHEE - There are no significant sales between the reportable operating
segments.
TERBWNEE - BE_=FR_TE__F= The following tables present revenue, results, certain assets,
A=+ —HLEFEAEEKEDF 2 U liabilities and expenditure information for the Group’s operating
W EE BATEE - AaBERATER - segments for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 2022.
REHNEFH
AHkE
Segment revenue PBEE
from external customers Segment results
(EEFL) (HK$'000) 2023 2022 2023 2022
hEIARE R EE Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,670,556 1,986,848 168,911 226,354
a& Taiwan 63,358 132,282 793 1,988
HiGINER Other overseas countries 578,670 609,633 28,906 43553
2,312,584 2,728,763 198,610 271,895
mEoREERERH A Reconciliation of results of operating segments
RGO to profit before tax is as follows:
mandEE Operating segment results 198,610 271,895
RESWA RNz Unallocated income and gains 12,545 16,345
PERKEN L Corporate and unallocated expenses (50,620) (49,355)
MEKAK(HEAR Finance costs (other than
HMERN) interest on lease liabilities) (680) (1,094)
[ERE L D EEFIREE Share of profits less losses of associates (914) 777
BRBAD & A Profit before tax 158,941 238,568
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—E-_=ZF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2023
5. REHFER (&) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
PHEE ABEE
Segment assets Segment liabilities

(B¥Fir) (HK$'000) 2023 2022 2023 2022
FEIRERAS Mainland China and Hong Kong 2,904,870 3,157,947 872,395 938,158
=) Taiwan 97,810 116,254 13,590 30,052
EfFINER Other overseas countries 439,290 411,138 78,577 94,089
3,441,970 3,685,339 964,562 1,062,299
REE N2 IRE Investments in associates 25,663 28,529 - -
REDEE Unallocated assets 681,676 715,459 - -
XELaE Unallocated liabilities - - 116,566 138,566

4,149,309 4,429,327 1,081,128 1,200,865

HitnHER

Other segment information

RERBH AttFEREXH/(WA) BAMX

Depreciation and Other non-cash Capital
amortization expenses/(income) expenditure
(E¥F7T) (HK$'000) 2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
FEAERES Mainland China and Hong Kong 57,558 53,425 1,820 (12,698) 50,188 147,681
=) Taiwan 1,051 1,436 20 34 919 1,692
Higo R Other overseas countries 1,805 2,038 29 7 994 1,097

60,414 56,899 1,869 (12,657) 52,101 150,470
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

5. REDHER (&) 5. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
FREBEE
Non-current assets
(BEMFT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
REIRREE BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,041,693 1,117,511
& Taiwan 15,613 15,306
HAthBINE R Other overseas countries 310 534
1,057,616 1,133,351

Bz RS EEERVREEME R
REERREER SR TAE -

IREFZEHR

BE_ZT-_=—F=-A=1+—HIFE &
HE-HWIINEP 2R SN EAREB AW
5.2 10% 30 A | RR B A BIABE K &
BAREELENH R EPHREREE
351,464,0007T °

BE-_Z-_—F=A=1+—HIFE &
F-HINEPZR W W ELAERR
W2 10%8 A F

6. Wi

AEEREEF AR S EHE T
MREMERER - WEMBWRHEINER

The non-current asset information above is based on the locations
of the assets and excludes deferred tax assets and financial
instruments.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2023, revenue from transactions
with a single external customer amounted to 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue and the revenue derived from that customer
by the reportable operating segment in Mainland China and Hong
Kong amounted to HK$351,464,000.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, no revenue from transactions

with a single external customer amounted to 10% or more of the
Group’s total revenue.

6. REVENUE

The Group’s revenue from contracts with customers is related
to the sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related

THIBEERERPRER  —RASNE products, and all the revenue is recognized at a point in time

T i= when control of goods is transferred to customers generally on
delivery of the goods.

(E#Fr) (HK$'000) 2023 2022

RKERFPA LR Revenue from contracts with customers 2,312,584 2,728,763

1652 EIELEBRRAR] 2022/23 Fif
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
6. W& 6. REVENUE (continued)
IR EE R Disaggregated revenue information
(BEMFr) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
REEEEHH Revenue from contracts with customers
Wis - HETERR - sale of plastic injection moulding
BBER machines and related products
EH IR 55 T Geographical markets
REIKRE BB Mainland China and Hong Kong 1,670,556 1,986,848
= Taiwan 63,358 132,282
E M 8INE R Other overseas countries 578,670 609,633
REEFEARNK SR Total revenue from contracts with customers 2,312,584 2,728,763

TREIIFFAREHINEOABEMNALR
EHNRERA RS S -

The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognized in
the current reporting period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:

(BEFT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
T AIRE ) Revenue recognized that was included in
BEHBEN contract liabilities at the beginning of
B R the reporting period:
HE T Sale of plastic injection moulding machines
EHER and related products 107,191 132,591
BREE Performance obligations

BRASEROEENERRIIMT :

HETIBHR BB Em

BRABERRINEmEENX - MR
KRB =TZE—A/\TRXAZH -

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarized below:

Sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the goods
and payment is generally due between 30 and 180 days from
delivery.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2023

7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

KIF :

(B FT) (HK$'000) Kzt Notes 2023 2022
EHTFERAR Cost of inventories sold 1,764,532 2,081,488
W -~ BB REE Depreciation of property,

ZITE plant and equipment 14 57,024 53,967
TREEECITE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 16(a) 2,971 2,729
| B E Amortization of intangible assets 18 419 203
HEME - BER&E Gain on disposal of items of property,

REREEE plant and equipment and right-of-

2 EEE use asset, net* (30,953) (1,225)
mE - KB KEE Write-off of items of property,

=i plant and equipment* 14 1,869 1,153
TREAHEAETEDN Lease payments not included in the

HE measurement of lease liabilities 16(c) 4,532 4,495
o RFEER Research and development costs*** 79,396 61,613
ERT R B R /% Government grants*/**** (39,553) (14,373)
ZERT BN & Auditor’s remuneration 2,709 2,705
B ITREMZ M (EEH Employee benefit expenses (excluding

BrON—BT7E9) directors’ emoluments — note 9):

T& K E Wages and salaries 313,667 334,365

LA S =2 45F 0 B LA <2 Equity-settled share option expenses 723 779

BRSEEIHR(ERE Pension scheme contributions

HEFRETE ) * = (defined contribution scheme)***** 38,671 35,372

BRRSEEIA(ERE Pension scheme costs

BHEED (defined benefit scheme) 29 57 121
FEWE 5 BR SR E Impairment/(write-back of impairment)

CRUEREE ) FEE > of trade receivables, net*** 21 (1,293) 3,551
FERE/(BERR) Provision/(write-back of provision) for

sl inventories, net** (11,520) 1,414
FEW BV E R EIRR Write-back of impairment of

SBR[ FEE finance lease receivables, net*** 23 (846) (2,023)
H th fE U AR R Write-back of impairment of

BB FRE other receivables, net*** 22 - (86)
VE =R HRE Foreign exchange differences, net* 13,113 (22,064)
KEYHEZ NE Fair value gains on investment

Uz properties* 15 - (13,810)
BRMEZEE Gross rental income on

W A 4 (g owner-occupied properties* (5,889) (2,967)
B BB R ERER Less: Direct operating expenses

HeEEZ arising from rental-earning
HELERAX owner-occupied properties 35 18
BRMEZIEE Net rental income on
WA= owner-occupied properties (5,854) (2,949)

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FIH (&) (continued)
(BE®FT) (HK$°000) H12F Notes 2023 2022
REYEZHBE Gross rental income on
WA 4BE> investment properties* (29,176) (27,832)
W BRI E Y HRE Less: Direct operating expenses
HeEEZ arising from rental-earning
HELERX investment properties 1,457 1,510
NEME MBS Net rental income on
WA F 58 investment properties (27,719) (26,322)
FBUYA* Interest income* (12,335) (15,852)
BEAER WA Finance lease interest income* (210) (493)

¥ ZEHBEERERGARERZIEMI
AR F A o

O ZEBCEENMEARERZIHERA]
A o

o ZEHBERERGARERZIEME
EXHFREIR -

R T ERPEAERRAREH RS E
TR ) BT A 8 B B AT IR 5t 81 T e ER
EfH B I W B Z SRR T B o W B M BUT
e - WEENFENARBER ZGNRE
FHBRBEMEZKALITR - A%
BRAEMAA o 875 IR EO BT B
Ffr U B2 B0 48 B8 S HE il R 3 AR ST 7 R 1
HWABRR - AEGa M BERREFIER
[ E A BR S ERT B E PR -

RN BT =F =A==+ —BRRZEC
ZA=+t—A  AEELEA BEHRE
RERRSEBIFRADLUR -

EEEEAR AT 2022/23 Fi

*  These items are included in “Other income and gains, net” on the
face of the consolidated income statement.

** This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the
consolidated income statement.

*** These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on the
face of the consolidated income statement.

****Various government grants have been received mainly for setting up
research activities in Mainland China and as subsidy from various
governments under COVID-19 pandemic relief schemes. Conditions
or contingencies relating to these grants are fulfilled and they are
not deducted from the related costs for which they are intended
to compensate, but recorded in other income. Government grants
received for which related expenditure has not yet been incurred
or to which there were unfulfilled conditions are included in “Other
payables and accruals” on the face of the consolidated statement of
financial position.

e As at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022, the Group had no forfeited

contributions available to reduce its contributions to the pension
schemes in future years.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

8. BEMA 8. FINANCE COSTS
(EMFor) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
SRITERHE Interest on bank loans 680 1,094
HEBENER Interest on lease liabilities 477 212
1,157 1,306
9. EEFHM 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’” emoluments for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of

RIE £ AR R EE R B HRPI5383(1)
@ ) CORMOEAEAR(BEES
M ER)ROIFE20 8 - FREFFHHE

2N Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:
CEMFor) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
e Fees:
HWITES Executive directors - -
B IEMITES Independent non-executive directors 1,056 1,056
E A - Other emoluments:
e  RMEREDAR Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,442 6,972
FIRAMATEAT Performance related bonuses 5,343 7,373
ARS A & T B0 BE IR RE S B Equity-settled share option expenses 718 591
RIREBE B Pension scheme contributions 36 36
15,595 16,028

156
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EIEEEBR AT 2022/23 Fi

Executive directors were granted share options under the share
option scheme of the Company adopted on 24 September 2014
in respect of their services and contribution to the Group, further
details of which are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such share options, which has been recognized
in the income statement over the vesting periods, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above directors’
emoluments disclosures.
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
9. EEFM#E) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(a) BIYFHTES (a) Independent non-executive directors
FA XN TFELERTEENES The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
N the year were as follows:
(E®FT) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
PRES B Mr. Bernard Charnwut CHAN 258 258
Anish LALVANI4E 4 Mr. Anish LALVANI 276 276
FFEFRE Mr. Michael Tze Hau LEE 264 264
PREE Y Mr. Johnson Chin Kwang TAN 258 258
1,056 1,056

FR - WEEAFTIN SN FBLIEH There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
TER(ZTZ=F :|) - non-executive directors during the year (2022: Nil).
ERIIRBYIERITEE ZF MR The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
BEETARREETZRBEER - above were for their services as directors of the Company.
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—ET-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
9. EEHM &) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) BTES (b) Executive directors
2023
4
i 19 DR
BNNE E30) b1 Bihe
Salaries, BEL  BREXH SHEf
allowances  Performance Equity-settled Pension Hmast
#¢  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(B%F1) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses expenses contributions  emoluments
BRI Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG* - 6,223 5,343 499 18 12,083
EWRAE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 2,219 - 219 18 2,456
- 8 442 5,343 718 36 14,539
2022
¥e-
19 AR E
BnRE E3:) B3} Bfe
Salaries, BNEL  BREXH HEf
allowances  Performance Equity-settled Pension Frmast
#¢  and benefits related  share option scheme Total
(B%F) (HK$'000) Fees in kind bonuses  expenses contributions  emoluments
BEnat Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG - 4644 6,506 389 18 11,557
ERREE Mr. Stephen Hau Leung CHUNG - 2,328 867 202 18 3415
- 6,972 7373 591 36 14972

BB THERNATHAREER
500,000t - B - -4/ A —H
AN - Bz t+tHRBEMIELTHZ
BRARRRARBEBREARTETR
MEE °

158 EHELEBRRAR] 2022/23 Fif

*  The basic monthly salary of Ms. Lai Yuen CHIANG was revised
to HK$500,000 with effect from 1 April 2022. The performance
related bonus of Ms. CHIANG was determined by reference to
the Company’s performance as well as individual performance
and contribution.
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—E-_=ZF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2023
9. EEFM (&) 9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) BITEE(E) (b) Executive directors (continued)
WITEEHMEEDT - The emoluments of the executive directors fell within the

following bands:

EEAY

Number of directors
(BH) (HK$) 2023 2022
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 1 -
3,000,001 - 3,500,000 - 1
11,500,001 - 12,000,000 - 1
12,000,001 - 12,500,000 1 -

2 2
ERIAIRHITES 2HM I ER S The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
EEARRAIRALESEB 2RBEER their services in connection with the management of the
B o affairs of the Company and the Group.
HE_Z-="Fk_T-__F=H= There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
+T—HLEFEATEZHEFEEER agreed to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
Bl R B REEAH - March 2023 and 2022.
FA - AEEVEZNEHFIHTFEENU During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
RS T MAREESIERMARE the directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
B2 W B E(ZE Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2022: Nil).
F )
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—ET-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
10. EREESFM2ES 10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
TR AEAESERTHZ2EERE_-S The five highest paid employees during the year included two (2022:
ZECCF ZR)EE  HEME H two) directors, details of whose emoluments are set out in note 9
B FEERZTMIZEQ © to the financial statements.
ZHR(ZE - F  ZR)EERS T Details of the remuneration for the year of the three (2022: three)
EEMFASTHFFBLT non-director highest paid employees are as follows:
(E#For) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
e EBIREYRNE Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 2,883 3,175
RIBEATEAT Performance related bonuses 1,019 901
DARS #E S7 45F B9 B s A S Equity-settled share option expenses 162 192
R ETEIME K Pension scheme contributions 84 54
4,148 4,322
IEESRSHFNEESTMNEE LT ¢ The remuneration of the non-director highest paid employees fell
within the following bands:
EEA"
Number of employees
(BH) (HK$) 2023 2022
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 3 2
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 -
3 3
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10. EEBBRSHM 2 EE(E)

11.

FEERRFMEEARAREEREHD
RENER REARBAR _-_F—HEF
NAZ MR RR 2 BRERT BB
& E— R REIR M B RERMES2 -
ZEBRENATFE(ENEEHARER
BRTPHERRBRETAHANEEETE
REFARFERHHRER - YER LMIE
EREFTHEEHFMHKE -

B

REBFANBRRED 2G5 ERBE
o BB EAEFETRIZ16.5% B R &
B BE-ZT-__F=A=1T—HILFE
A AEBERBITRESFER - AR
REERZFELBEERNES ZER
BimF o EfbibR 2 mFBIEAIR AR EE
EEBAERR AERE ZRITHE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

10.FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

11.

Share options were granted under the share option scheme of
the Company adopted on 24 September 2014 to the non-director
highest paid employee in respect of his services and contribution
to the Group, further details of which are set out in note 32 to
the financial statements. The fair value of such share options,
which has been recognized in the income statement over the
vesting periods, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above non-director highest paid employees’
remuneration disclosures.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year. For the year ended 31 March 2022, Hong Kong profits
tax had not been provided as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during that year. Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the countries/jurisdictions in which the Group

FE o operates.
(EMFor) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
BNER - Current:
REFEZH Charge for the year
575 Hong Kong 2,252 _
HEipih [ Elsewhere 21,113 36,731
BIEFE ZIRBYE Overprovision in prior years (1,408) (441)
PERE(F17E30) Deferred (note 30) 8,199 (11,716)
AREEHELH Tax charge for the year 30,156 24,574

EEEBBRAR 2022/23 F3f
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11. R (&)

SRR B A e A SUBE A AR B R A M B A
AFMEBRREER ZEEREAE
(MEHIS%ZEI0% (ZF==
40%)) 2 BB - BIRERTERGE

D 15% %

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2023

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax
at the statutory rates, ranging from 15% to 40% (2022: 15% to
40%), for the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax

MIBZ H 2 AEAT - rates is as follows:
(BB FT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
BB A& A Profit before tax 158,941 238,568
BETEMREAE T8 Tax at the statutory tax rates 41,124 58,212
BRI 10 8k th 7 ks 2 Tax concessions/lower tax rates for

RS ER, SRR R specific provinces and local authorities (13,996) (21,912)
Bt N A R A REE Profits and losses attributable to associates 229 (194)
AR 2 Expenses not deductible for tax 16,100 11,885

BAGMTIRZ WA Income not subject to tax (11,128) (12,052)
RERZANFEFIBEIE Tax losses for the year not recognized 4,784 3,580
FARERZBEFE Unrecognized tax losses from

FiIEE 8 prior years utilized (7,661) (1,211)
BAFERBRES Adjustments in respect of current tax

I of prior years (1,408) (441)
NEE 2B AR o B R E Effect of withholding tax on distributable

FE%D%Z%RZ%; profits of the subsidiaries of the Group 2,112 (13,293)
BAEBERMRETEZ Tax charge at the Group’s effective

BIE S tax rates 30,156 24,574
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—E-_=ZF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2023
12. R & 12.DIVIDENDS
(E#FoT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
FHNEMKRE : Dividends paid during the year:
HE2—_ET-_—_F=A=+—HIt Final in respect of the financial year
FE 2 KA — ended 31 March 2022 — HK$0.116
YT BAEE0.1167T (year ended 31 March 2021: HK$0.115)
(BEz—ZET-—F=A=+—8H per ordinary share
LIEFE - B¥0.1157T) 73,142 72,511
rhE— R EEAE50.0457C  Interim — HK$0.045 (2022: HK$0.052)
—E-—F : B¥0.0527T) per ordinary share 28,374 32,788
101,516 105,299
EERARIRS Proposed final dividends:
REJ— G L BAER0.0737T  Final - HK$0.073 (2022: HK$0.116)
—F-—F : B¥0.1167T) per ordinary share 46,029 73,142
NEFRE T RAREBRLANNTIREL The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
BN T 7 INEEAFE RS ER H A E of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
B o HEBBERE N R R M FENREAIR meeting. These financial statements do not reflect the final
B o dividend payable.
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13. R RFEEFEAELMEBRER 13.EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY

164

BERERBNDBREBEFARRRRERFE
AFE(R AR B)% A8 1 130,289,0007T (=
T4 : B¥213,309,0007T) REFALE
AT E B 2 hNEF 19 8630,531,600A%
—E = Z%:630,531,6000% ) 5T E RIS o

HREE-_Z_=F=A=+—RHILFE
WARITE R B IE 2 B H SRERER
SRTBEEYR MR ZFABEL
25 ERERNEN SR EFETH

B, oo
i

HRBE_E_—_F=-A=+—HLFE
HARITE R ERE 2 B BRERET]
CHARBEXR  BRZFRAMER
FrE5 M ERERBN B EEETH

B, oo
i

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR

HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year of HK$130,289,000 (2022: HK$213,309,000) and on the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of 630,531,600 (2022:
630,531,600) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the year ended 31 March 2023 in respect of
a dilution as the impact of the share options outstanding had no
dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amount presented.

No adjustment had been made to the basic earnings per share
amount presented for the year ended 31 March 2022 in respect
of a dilution as the impact of the share options outstanding had
an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amount
presented.
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—E-_=ZF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2023
14. 9% - RERZE 14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
—E=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
RE
B B
REMRE
Plant,
1 machinery,
RigF* REIRE furniture
Land and  Construction and other @t
(BEFI) (HK$'000) buildings* in progress equipment Total
WZE-=FMNA—AH At 1 April 2022
PR Cost 777,838 35,516 1,144,247 1,957,651
ZEELE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (430,571) - (879,110)  (1,309,681)
FHFE Net carrying amount 347,317 35,516 265,137 647,970
RZE-—FWA—H " At 1 April 2022, net of accumulated
BB ENERRE depreciation and impairment 347,317 35,516 265,137 647,970
RE Additions - 9,050 43051 52,101
HE Disposals (6,635) - (1,398) (8,033)
8 Write-offs (318) - (1,551) (1,869)
E b Transfers - (29,942) 29,942 -
AEEWERE Depreciation provided during the year (28,571) - (28,453) (57,024)
BN AR Exchange realignment (21,056) (2,718) (23,989) (47,763)
R-E-=5=A=1+-8 " At 31 March 2023, net of accumulated
BB ENERRE depreciation and impairment 290,737 11,906 282,739 585,382
RZEZ=F=A=+—H At 31 March 2023
AR Cost 681,285 11,906 1,085,056 1,778,247
ZETERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (390,548) - (802,317)  (1,192,865)
FA3E Net carrying amount 290,737 11,906 282,739 585,382
* RZEZ=F=ZA=+—H LtiREF * As at 31 March 2023, included in land and buildings are freehold
BRI A ERE T B4, 953,000 (=& land of HK$4,953,000 (2022: HK$5,258,000).

— T4 W5 258,0007T) °
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—E-=F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2023
14. 9% - BERSREE) 14.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
—E-_F=AF=+—H 31 March 2022
BE
B 5R
REMRE
Plant,
it machinery,
REF REIR furniture
Land and  Construction and other a@ct
(B¥Fr) (HK$'000) buildings* in progress equipment Total
WZE=-—-FNA—-AH At 1 April 2021
KA Cost 750,598 10,021 1,002,628 1,763,247
ZEMERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (384,330) - (844,888)  (1,229,218)
REFE Net carrying amount 366,268 10,021 157,740 534,029
WZZ_—FMA—-H " At 1 April 2021, net of accumulated
ENBEMERRE depreciation and impairment 366,268 10,021 157,740 534,029
NE Additions 217 46875 103,378 150,470
& Disposals - - (592) (592)
B Write-offs - - (1,153) (1,153)
fte Transfers 353 (21,870) 21,517 -
AEEHERE Depreciation provided during the year (30,023) (23,944) (53,967)
R R Exchange realignment 10,502 490 8,191 19,183
R-E-—#=A=+-H" At 31 March 2022, net of accumulated
ENBREFTERRE depreciation and impairment 347317 35,516 265,137 647,970
RZEZZF=R=+—H At 31 March 2022
XA Cost 777,888 35,516 1,144,247 1,957,651
ZEMERAE Accumulated depreciation and impairment (430,571) - (879,110) (1,309,681
FRFE Net carrying amount 347,317 35,516 265,137 647,970
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

15. REW*E 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(EMFor) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
REYVIRERAEE Carrying amount at beginning of year 359,296 331,533
PR ER 2 Fair value changes recognized in the

N EEZEE(HE7) income statement (note 7) - 13,810

PE 5 AL Exchange realignment (26,430) 13,953
RERMEEAEE Carrying amount at end of year 332,866 359,296

AEEREMERBZEAMEZMNE
FErERIASLRPERENTEY
X - AREREMRKBBEILRERER
HEMAREERITERARMEMGE -
RZT-_=F=A=1+—BZzERHEER
7B #332,866,000C( Z T = —F : B
359,296,0007L) - AEEERETFE
REREINEEER B BEREEYE I
HRfAE - KEZEEBEMHANHE - B
B BUMARESARBERRE o K
SEEREESF - RNFEMHREET
HERLAERSR REESREGERME

1Tatam °

REMEDRBEKEHERTE=T -
BRAME & —PFBER M HREKME
16 -

SEREMEZE -

o

p=[113

FIEEN 5228

m Bt

\

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi

The investment properties of the Group were determined as
industrial properties in Mainland China, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The investment
properties of the Group were revalued on 31 March 2023 based
on valuations performed by Cushman & Wakefield Limited,
an independent firm of professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$332,866,000 (2022: HK$359,296,000). Each year, the
Group’s management decides to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are maintained.
The Group’s management has discussions with the valuer on the
valuation assumptions and valuation results once a year when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 16 to the financial statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties are
included on page 228.
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T =F=R=+—H 31 March 2023
15. REYE(E) 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
ATEER Fair value hierarchy
TRINTAEBEREMEZ A TFEFZEE The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy
& of the Group’s investment properties:
RZB-=ZFZAZ+-ANAVEFERA
Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2023 using
RERTE EXTEE EATUEER
ZHRE BAHE BAHE
(%5-18) (%5=8) (5=8)
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs @t
(E#Fr) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

PATIBE 28 F N FEEE © Recurring fair value measurement for:

TEME Industrial properties - - 332,866 332,866
RZBZZH#ZA=+-BNAFEERA
Fair value measurement as at 31 March 2022 using
RERME EXTHRE EATTER
ZHE BAHE BAHE
(5-F8) (=) (5=E)
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs @t
(E¥Fr) (HK$'000) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
PTHE 2&EEATESE + Recurring fair value measurement for:
TEM% Industrial properties - - 359,296 359,296
ER - F-BRE - EBIEATELAAT During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
EHEEER TERfE-EEARES measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into
(B —4F ). or out of Level 3 (2022: Nil).
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
15. REWFE (&) 15.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
AFEBR(E) Fair value hierarchy (continued)
UTRIEEMEGHEMAGBETEREE Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
AR - inputs to the valuation of investment properties:
BERFUHE
LPN ¢
fEEA % Significant mEFRIGE
Valuation unobservable Weighted average
techniques inputs 2023 2022
Ty RAT* FHFAS 82,490,000  ¥2,676,0007
Industrial properties Investment method (8AR) HK$2,490,000 HK$2,676,000
Term rent

(per month)

FH R 7 7
Term yield
(%)

EEEe #B#2,177,000T 7& k2 355,00070

(8R) HK$2,177,000 HK$2,355,000
Reversionary rent
(per month)

B 7 7

Reversionary yield

(%)
AEBTITEMEZ AFENEREER The fair value of the Group’s industrial properties is determined
% LIRAERLAMBESIWA - Wat kW using the investment method, by capitalizing the rental income
MAEREBTERERNE - AT EFTEH derived from the existing tenancy with due allowance for the
FHHSMERHESZ EAABEBERNKRE reversionary potential of the property. The fair value measurement
FHNEERER N R 2B HBBER - is positively correlated to the term rent and reversionary rent and

negatively correlated to term yield and reversionary yield.

EEEBBRAR 2022/23 F3f CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 169




PR MR ()

—ET-=F=A=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

16.#HE& 16.LEASES

FEBEREBAA

AEKEREETEANETYR  WAE
RERAIBITABERR - —RMENHKE
WARRIMEL - MAXEWERE LM -
MRRE+EAT-H#(ZF==F:h
TEA+ZF) BERBEZZLWAE K
B BTEZNE—FSHE - MEREL
HEHR—BNF—2LF(ZF_—F:
NF—ERF) RAEHEZHERR
BN EDF(ZFZFNT
EZF) c MAERFERAEKEE -

(a) ERAEEE

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for certain of its properties, office
equipment and motor vehicles used in its operations. Lump sum
payments were made upfront to acquire the leased land from
the owners with lease periods of 50 to 52 years (2022: 50 to 52
years), and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms of
these land leases. Leases of properties generally have lease terms
between 1 and 7 years (2022: between 1 and 5 years), while
motor vehicles generally have lease terms between 1 and 2 years
(2022: between 1 and 2 years). Office equipment is individually of
low value.

(a) Right-of-use assets

REAREEFERAEEENREER The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and

BT the movements during the year are as follows:

HELH AE

Leasehold LY ES Motor et
(E#TFor) (HK$°000) land Properties vehicles Total
RZZE-_—FMA—H At 1 April 2021 33,213 1,660 202 35,075
=Y Additions - 5,103 - 5,103
TESH Depreciation charge (1,141) (1,433) (155) (2,729)
BE 3, 3 Exchange realignment 1,026 669 5 1,700
RZEZZF=A=+—HK At31 March 2022 and

“E--—#A—H 1 April 2022 33,098 5,999 52 39,149

NE Additions - 16,278 - 16,278
HE Disposals (10,000) - - (10,000)
FESH Depreciation charge (1,106) (1,816) (49) (2,971)
b 5 Exchange realignment (1,703) (388) 3) (2,094)
RZEZ=%=A=1+—H At 31 March 2023 20,289 20,073 - 40,362
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
16.#HE (&) 16.LEASES (continued)
TEBEREBAE) The Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) HEEE (b) Lease liabilities
FAMEGEMNERMELESHOT - The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

during the year are as follows:

(E®FT) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
R A—HZEREAEE Carrying amount at 1 April 6,155 1,968
g New leases 15,678 5,103
FANEHER Accretion of interest recognized
H B8 h0 during the year 477 212
INEN Payments (1,988) (1,809)
PE o %8 Exchange realignment (396) 681
R=A=+—HZKRHEE Carrying amount at 31 March 19,926 6,155
DA Analyzed into:
mENE D Current portion 2,862 1,599
ERBED Non-current portion 17,064 4,556
DA Analyzed into:
—F R Within one year 2,862 1,599
F_F In the second year 3,197 1,149
E-EERF In the third to fifth years,
(HEMFBREEN) inclusive 8,749 3,407
hF% Beyond five years 5,118 -
19,926 6,155
HEABENIHOMEERY BHRE The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 40
B5E40 ° to the financial statements.
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16.#HE (&)

(c)

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2023

16.LEASES (continued)

AEBEREBEAGE) The Group as a lessee (continued)
RIERERHEEREFIBAT ¢ (c) The amounts recognized in the income statement in relation
to leases are as follows:

(BB FoT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
HEARENE Interest on lease liabilities 477 212
FREEERES D Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 2,971 2,729
B AAEAEN T Expense relating to short-term leases

(FEASHERA (included in cost of sales,

SHE R H selling and distribution expenses and

A RATECE ) administrative expenses) 4,439 4,448
HEEBEEEHERHEN Expense relating to leases of low-value assets

SHERATEE L) (included in administrative expenses) 93 47
U e 7= W TR Total amount recognized in the income

FIEAREE statement 7,980 7,436
RbEEE (d) Termination options

(e)

AEBEFBHREER LEEENE
EAR - EEBERRFEREET
BE o UWEARMERHEHEEEMAS -
I B B ) R R RAREF — 2K - SA
TIHABEEHEEGRRNANKLILE
BRENTTE R B2 1R BREAER R R IT
BRHBERRBESMR

The Group had several lease contracts that included

termination options. These options were negotiated by

management to provide flexibility in managing the leased-asset

portfolio and they were aligned with the Group’s business

needs. Set out below were the undiscounted potential future

rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date

of termination options that were not included in the lease

terms:
(B TFor) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
FEERBTTIE MY 4R E B2 4 Termination options expected to be exercised
AFEAZN Payable within five years - 821

HEMBRERDRERERYKHRE
BiEE34(c) °

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR

(e) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 34(c) to

the financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

16.# &%) 16.LEASES (continued)

AEEESHAA

AEBERBEEHELTHERFEARK
ME(HRED)EAETFBIEAMEK
HEWEMFTI4R%15) AT EME
A o HERR —REFFEBEAZMR
e URBERMSKATHAER
© o FAN - ARBEHNEEAESWAR
75 #35,065,000 L( Z T == F : B
30,799,0007T ) -+ FEIEHF B 1 WK M 5
7 o

RZTE-_=F=A=+—H ' A5ERE
B ART LBV N AT HUE R 2 M E Z KRR
HE AR TR ERHE FIRNT

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases certain parts of its owner-occupied properties
and investment properties (notes 14 and 15) consisting of
industrial properties in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognized by the Group during
the year was HK$35,065,000 (2022: HK$30,799,000), details of
which are included in note 7 to the financial statements.

At 31 March 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants are as follows:

CEMFor) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
—F R Within one year 41,466 38,741
—F L FEMFEUARN After one year but within two years 9,239 36,727
PRE FB=ZFUR After two years but within three years 974 6,311
=FAEBEFAA After three years but within four years 691 746
WE EERFAA After four years but within five years 634 746
BB AF After five years - 684

53,004 83,955

EEEEAR AT 2022/23 Fi
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17. 58 17.GOODWILL

174

(GE#¥TT)

(HK$°000)

R-ZE-_—FmMA—H
- _F#=A=+—8"
—EFOA—HBHEK
—E-_=F=R=+—H

At 1 April 2021,
31 March 2022,
1 April 2022 and
31 March 2023

PR Cost 94,923

ZERE Accumulated impairment (43,018)
BRMEFE Net carrying amount 51,905
EERE AR Impairment testing of goodwill

HEFBEHELEZBEDR TFAEERF
BEE 2 B AR - HARM A B ARER
EAAMECESH2RSEELSBMN - #
ERUERHETBREEEER - ZEW
BARZAIKESEIIREFEREB S
HET  FEAANRSREEANRSF
MHRBEEAER - WEREAFENEE
BRBEERERERFTEE o e KK
AzEBHIRBEEEELERRETISERRK
BB c HREEMNHERR TEF
URBEFENRER - REEOTER - 7
EREBIMANINTEREALIS% (ZF
ZIZF - 14%) (BiRT) - AR B AAREFTE
RNAIZBERR - AFHRZBESRER
WRRIU(ZEZZF 2% )HHE -

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
the Group’s subsidiaries in Shunde, the PRC, which is a cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) under the reportable operating segment in
Mainland China and Hong Kong and engaged in the manufacture
and sale of plastic injection moulding machines and related
products. The recoverable amount of the subsidiaries has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period.
The key assumptions for the value in use calculation include the
expected growth rate and discount rate. Changes in revenue and
costs are based on management experience and expectations of
future changes in the market. The financial budgets are prepared
reflecting current and prior years performance and development
expectations. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 15% (2022: 14%) which is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant subsidiaries. The cash flows
beyond the 5-year period are extrapolated using a growth rate of 2%
(2022: 2%).
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18.INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. BVEE

—E-=F=A=+—H

31 March 2023

Bl

(GE#FoT) (HK$°000) Know-how
RZEBE-—FMA—HHIAK - Cost at 1 April 2022, net of accumulated

EHBR RETEE S RO E amortization and impairment 1,834
NE Additions 2,296
NEEHIHEE Amortization provided during the year (419)
PE 5 A% Exchange realignment (132)
R-E-=F=ZA=1+—HZEEFE Net carrying amount at 31 March 2023 3,579
WR-ZZE_=#=R=+—H At 31 March 2023

[DEIN Cost 4,184

BT KRE Accumulated amortization and impairment (605)

BREDFE Net carrying amount 3,579
ZEZZF#=A=+—H 31 March 2022

Kl

(GE#FT) (HK$’000) Know-how
RIZE-—FMA—HAKAK Cost at 1 April 2021, net of accumulated

B kR RETEE 8 RO E amortization and impairment -
NE Addition 2,038
RE S HRE Amortization provided during the year (203)
bE 3 2 & Exchange realignment (1)
RNZEBE - —_F=A=+—HBZEEFE Net carrying amount at 31 March 2022 1,834
R-E-_—F=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2022

P AR Cost 2,038

BT RRE Accumulated amortization and impairment (204)

BREDFE Net carrying amount 1,834

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi
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g ST EL T ) Notes to Financial Statements (continuea)

—ET-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
19. RBEERFZIRE 19.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(B8 For) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
EIEEEFE Share of net assets 25,663 28,529
ENEESNFZRAGEAESEE & The balances due to the associates are trade related, unsecured,
BH 2B E—RBR=ZFTRXKAIZNM - 5 interest-free and are normally settled on a term of 30 days.
B RZTBEZ=F=A=+—H - EftH Accordingly, as at 31 March 2023, the amounts due to associates
EBARIBRREE17,741,0000 (2 == of HK$17,741,000 (2022: HK$10,984,000) are included in the
o HBH10,984,0007T) DR AENE 5 trade and bills payables, as disclosed in note 26 to the financial
MEBRFRA - R BRI 26875 ° statements.
FTEARNERE 2B E R RH AR MR All of the Group’s associates are corporate entities registered in
RAEKELE 2 REEA the PRC and operating in Mainland China.
Bt N a2 FFMERINT ¢ Particulars of the associates are as follows:
AEBEL
ERESL
Percentage of
BEWFEMELR  ownership interest FEEK
=t Paid-up attributable Principal
Name registered capital to the Group activities
Bl = HEERAR AR @ 1,520,000 25 SLE N IHE
Foshan Fu Xiong Foundry Co., Ltd. @ @ US$1,520,000 HEFSHER
Manufacture and sale
of iron casting products
FhlL e R B R RE AR A a0 @ 800,000% 7T 25 EICETED)
Foshan Shunde Fu Xiong Machinery US$800,000 Dormant
Company, Limited 1@
Bat - Notes:
(1) EARNA=ZA=+—HAEREHE - (1) The above companies use 31 March as their reporting date to
URFEEERARZHRERE - conform with their holding company’s reporting date.
(2) EXREIRTHEEMER - (2) The English company name is translated for identification purposes
only.
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
19. REBERT 2 RE(E) 19.INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
TRIRASEEE R IEE XA E QT The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
KBTS B R ABEE - of the Group's associates that are not individually material:
(B®FT) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
IHE S N RIFEEEF Share of the associates’ profit/(loss) for
(E18) the year (914) 777
HEE AR EMEE Share of the associates’ other comprehensive
Wzs/(ZH) income/(expenses) (1,952) 1,294
HEEARBAEME Share of the associates’ total comprehensive
Wz (ZH) income/(expenses) (2,866) 2,071
NE BB N T Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s
KERMERZ investments in the associates 25,663 28,529
20. 7§ 20.INVENTORIES
(B®Fr) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
B Raw materials 229,481 299,049
TEES Work in progress 242,790 289,374
EK Finished goods 319,492 473,477
791,763 1,061,900
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g ST EL T ) Notes to Financial Statements (continuea)

—ET-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

21. EWE S REBERXN 21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES
(B8 For) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
FEWE 5 RR K Trade receivables 1,117,396 976,207
A Impairment (92,297) (98,368)
JEWE SERFFRE Trade receivables, net 1,025,099 877,839
N ZIRER K Bills receivable 454,352 467,564
BUNE 5 R EE R Total trade and bills receivables 1,479,451 1,345,403
oD IEAIERENIL D Portion classified as non-current portion (82,200) (99,985)
mEnEl s Current portion 1,397,251 1,245,418

BEFZEZEFR—RARERS - RITE
BRERNE - ARBEREBEMNEF 2
XENREEGTEPEER  FEH—
MB=TRE—BN\TX - REERIEK
REFEHE R GRS BEERR - BRE

ERBRERE -

ER LB R AEENERE I RE
BRFBAESHMESAMEK - BUREE
AOEREERR - REBWEREZELHE
BRFEE RS R ER 2 -
B eI E 5 BR 50U 590,826,000 0 ( =&
— 4 jE15128,268,0007T ) LA FEF
E6.2% (ZEZZF  6.2% )it B REE
H—RAE+Z@AE=F+~EA(ZZ=
ZF -+ ZEAZE=FTNEA)IN - Fg
ZEWE 5 REBRRFIWTHFE

178 EIELEBRAR] 2022/23 Fif

Trading terms with customers are either cash on delivery, bank
bills or on credit. The Group grants credit to customers based on
their respective business strength and creditability, with credit
periods of 30 days to 180 days in general. The Group adopts
strict control policies over credit terms and receivables that serve
to minimize credit risk.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s
trade and bills receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over these balances. Except for the trade receivables of
HK$90,826,000 (2022: HK$128,268,000) which are interest-
bearing at an average interest rate of 6.2% (2022: 6.2%) per
annum and with credit periods of 12 months to 36 months (2022:
12 months to 36 months) in general, the remaining trade and bills
receivables are non-interest-bearing.
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21. BREZ REBRR(E)

R-E-_=F=ZA=+—H  KAEBEEEZE
7 Uk 22 95 BR 708 593,639,000 0 ( = &
— T4 #98,162,0007T ) B EHE R B
PAETFHERBITEALIEES » % SES
RAENE S REBERA o

RBERRZERESERZEZARR
B REETEZREOTWT -

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 March 2023, the Group has pledged bills receivable of
HK$93,639,000 (2022: HK$98,162,000) to secure the issuance of
bank acceptance notes, included in the trade and bills payables,

to suppliers.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

(BEMFT) (HK$°000) 2023 2022
N+XA Within 90 days 337,415 297,820
A+—Z2—8N+X 91 to 180 days 202,952 159,723
—BNtT—Z=ZAA~THEKX 181 to 365 days 319,359 232,306
A —F Over 1 year 165,373 187,990
1,025,099 877,839
FEUNE SRR ERBEE ST - The movements in the loss allowance for trade receivables are as
follows:
CE¥For) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
REH At beginning of year 98,368 92,035
2ARRRINBEREEE, Impairment losses charged/(write-back of
(GFAHRIE R 18 H ) impairment losses credited) to
RFRE(HaE7) the income statement, net (note 7) (1,293) 3,551
T REUR E By & B Amounts written off as uncollectible (104) (115)
bE 5 A% Exchange realignment (4,674) 2,897
TGN At end of year 92,297 98,368
N-E-—=—F=-A=+—H ' FERER As at 31 March 2023, the decrease in the loss allowance was

=4

B5RRFIE AR -

EEEEAR AT 2022/23 Fi

DT ZANER ABEBIRMK

M_E-__F=ZA=+—H - EiEE#HEY
DEBHPBHBGB—F/\TROER

mainly due to the debit exchange realignment.

due over 180 days.
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As at 31 March 2022, the increase in the loss allowance was
mainly due to the increase in trade receivables which were past
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21. R EZ RRBRI(E)

REREBHRBEBREETRED
i WA ERBEEER - BEXTIER
AERUBERANZEEF 2 AR
BB RET - At ERRSKAR IR
R EEHEMAHESEHANSNERE
ERIE - EATOR FOR AR EAR R IR
BENAIEER -

TR BB G AR 21 0 S L
85BN EERRAR

MWZEZ_=F=A=+—H

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix:

At 31 March 2023

k-t
Past due
ft-% fickic)
PRATR —BNMPR -BAER
B8 Less than 91 to Over @t
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
EHEEEER Expected credit loss rate 0% 2% 3% 62% 8%
REEREEETT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 778,276 121,832 81,148 136,140 1,117,396
BEEEER(EETT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) 2,785 3,016 2,293 84,203 92,297
W—E - —F=A=+—H At 31 March 2022
il
Past due
-z BB
PRATE -BNMR -BAER
BI#  Less than 91 to Over @t
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BHEEEER Expected credit loss rate 0% 5% 6% 66% 10%
RERELEREETT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 625,634 148,765 72,051 129,757 976,207
BHEEEREETT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) - 7,651 4540 86,177 98,368

180 EHELEBRRAR] 2022/23 Fi#f
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22.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

21.TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maturity dates of the bills receivable as at the end of the
reporting period are analyzed as follows:

(EMFor) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
+ERA Within 90 days 207,753 167,299
hAt+—=2—BNt+X 91 to 180 days 199,159 210,324
—BANtT—E=ZAA+EX 181 to 365 days 33,000 75,230
B —F Over 1 year 14,440 14,711

454,352 467,564

AZE-=F=A=+—8 ' EKREER
R EERIRE(— T - —F &) o -
MESRPHEMEEMES T BREOL
8% g HARRIE 2 IR - TREREE &R
DE2EREEBABBLRERBREL
et o 518 R 0 1 A o B LA S Bk AT A
IR AR SR A AR R A o AN S [ 3 P
ERERE AR EBEGHN T =
FZA=t—HRZEZZF=A=+—
HyEHEEEE AR/ -

A& - BAREREMERRR

As at 31 March 2023, none of the bills receivables is either past
due or impaired (2022: Nil). The financial assets included in the
above balances relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. The ECLs are estimated
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the historical
loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions,
as appropriate. No loss allowance was provided because
management estimated that the ECLs as at 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022 were minimal.

22.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(EMFor) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
HEISEE ] Deposits and prepayments 88,214 120,682
Hih eI BRE R Other receivables 40,077 38,820
B RE Less: Impairment (16,947) (18,239)
FEUF IR Tax recoverable - 18

111,344 141,281

EEEBBRAR 2022/23 F3f
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

22.DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)

The movements in impairment allowance for deposits and

BT prepayments and other receivables are as follows:
(B TT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
REH] At beginning of year 18,239 17,614
B ERFTARNRERE Write-back of impairment losses credited

B[Ol EEE (Kt 7) to the income statement, net (note 7) - (86)
P& 5, A% Exchange realignment (1,292) 711
RER At end of year 16,947 18,239

—mE - AEEFTEEEREMERGK
EWT—EABHEEBENEIERE -
A EIM T2 E R AEEMRRIETRE -
B E 4th JE UL BR BB #516,947,0000( =&
: 75 #18,239,0007T ) 5 © B
7)< Rl & 2 S IOl BREE 4050 8% S ja B
FEZREWERER - R _E-_=F=A=+
—BR=ZZE__F=A=+—HBNFKBE
M TBEEEEBEHTE AR

L B AR OB BB B 1E
¥ B 1 (B Bl R B E fth FE U BR BB BB
#16,947,00070( — T = — F: B
18,239,0007T) - HREER < REE &
B#17,167,000L( Z T = ZF : B
18,474,0007T) °

182 EHELEBRRAR] 2022/23 Fi#f

Generally, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12-month ECLs of other receivables. The recoverability was
assessed with reference to the credit status of the debtors. Except
for other receivables of HK$16,947,000 (2022: HK$18,239,000),
the financial assets included in these balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default and
past due amounts. The ECLs of the remaining balances as at 31
March 2023 and 31 March 2022 were assessed to be minimal.

Included in the above impairment allowance for other receivables
is an allowance for individually impaired other receivables
of HK$16,947,000 (2022: HK$18,239,000) with a gross
carrying amount before provision of HK$17,167,000 (2022:
HK$18,474,000).
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DEARERERAFBERAN T —@
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BEECHEZ X8I -

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

23.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

The Group leases certain of its injection moulding machines to its
customers. These leases are classified as finance leases and have
remaining lease terms ranging from 1 month to 15 months (2022:
1 month to 14 months). The customers shall purchase the leased
injection moulding machines at the end of the lease terms of the
finance leases.

(B®FT) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
R EEERXK Finance lease receivables 6,104 10,501
B Impairment (4,488) (5,819)
FM&Z@E%E BRIFEE Finance lease receivables, net 1,616 4,682

ﬁﬁiﬁﬁ#/miﬂ*ﬁ Portion classified as non-current portion (202) (371)
mENEE S Current portion 1,414 4311

RBEMRZIBRBERERENRRE DI
WHERRRBRLEFREITOT

The total future minimum lease receivables under finance leases
and their present values as at the end of the reporting period are
analyzed as follows:

ROBWEERENTE

BEYEWHERE Present value of
Minimum lease receivables minimum lease receivables

(B¥TT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022 2023 2022
JEMFRIE : Amounts receivable:

—FR Within one year 1,492 4,476 1,414 4311

£-F In the second year 206 375 202 371
EOEKBER SRS Total minimum finance lease receivables 1,698 4,851 1,616 4,682
REREEBHA Unearned finance income (82) (169)
F WRERETIE R EE Total net finance lease receivables 1,616 4,682

BrPEERDEE Portion classified as current assets (1,414) (4,311)
EEE P Non-current portion 202 371

BE_T_="F=-A=1+—HLFEARY
BYIRBARHER( T _—F &) -

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi

No contingent income was recognized during the year ended 31
March 2023 (2022: Nil).
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B RS sRRMIEE (2) Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—E-_=F=HA=+—H 31 March 2023

23. B mERERR(E) 23.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)

U RERERTEBRREZSHOT

The movements in the loss allowance for finance lease receivables
are as follows:

(BB FT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
REY At beginning of year 5,819 7,499
BRI E KR ARRERE Write-back of impairment losses credited

BEeFE(ME7) to the income statement, net (note 7) (846) (2,023)
bE 5 A% Exchange realignment (485) 343
REXR At end of year 4,488 5,819

REREBHRBEBREETRED
i WA ERHREEER - BEXIER
AERUBRRANZEEF 2 AR
MR RET - &t ERRSKAR IR
R EEREIAHEERNSNERE
ERIE - E AR FOR R EAR R TR B
BENAIEER -

NRESE AR ERMEE E A AREE R
REHERANEERRER -

MWZE-_=F=A=+—H

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure ECLs. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer segments
with similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group’s finance lease receivables using a provision matrix:

At 31 March 2023

paal:t
Past due

t-% ikl

PRATE -BNR -BAER
BI#  Less than 91 to Over a@gt
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BHEEBEX Expected credit loss rate 0% 0% 0% 100% 74%
FHESE(EETT) Gross carrying amount (HK$000) 1,374 223 19 4,488 6,104
BEEEBBEEFT) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) - - - 4,488 4,488

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR
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T =F=R=+—H 31 March 2023
23. BB ERERNR(E) 23.FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)
RZE_—F=H=+—H At 31 March 2022
ol
Past due
ht-% A
PRATR -BAHR -BALX
BIE  Less than 9to Over it
Current 90 days 180 days 180 days Total
BHEEBREX Expected credit loss rate 0% 26% 69% 100% 55%
RRELRERTT) Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 3,725 1,152 286 5338 10,501
RHEEBBOEETTL) Expected credit losses (HK$'000) - 305 19 5318 5819
24 EIFRITFR 24.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS
(GE#EFT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
IIIRITIER © IERIE D Pledged bank deposits, non-current portion 1,353 2,851
IIIRITIER - REED Pledged bank deposits, current portion 24,490 24,400
25,843 27,251
EEREETWHB ARG 2 MR ITE Balances included pledged bank deposits of certain subsidiaries,
2o Hrh D 856,000 ( = = =4 : including HK$2,856,000 (2022: HK$3,082,000) for securing
83 082,0007T ) FA VEHE R PA AR B oK [ bank loans granted by banks in Mainland China to customers
RTRFEEIEEEAEEE LHETE to purchase the Group’s products, and HK$22,987,000 (2022:
o A2 987 000 (—E = — 4 : HK$24,169,000) for securing the issuance of bank acceptance
04 169,0007T ) FEERZE B 48 T notes which are included in the trade and bills payables, to
FERMIRTTANIESR - ZFERLARN suppliers.
BHREBERRA o
IR IR T TFE HUA Y 23 B8 404068 > The pledged bank deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks
HIEEEIT o with no recent history of default.
EHESBEAR AR 2022/23 Fik CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 185
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

25. RERRITEF 25.CASH AND BANK BALANCES

186

CEMFor) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
e MRITHER Cash and bank balances 346,249 583,503
AT 3R BB B R A B Bank deposits with original maturity of

TR=MAZRITHFR less than three months when acquired 298,413 88,408
@I e RIRTTET Total cash and bank balances 644,662 671,911

RZEZ=F=-A=+—H ' x&H
NARBHEZRRRITEFAHNS
#214878000( == —F : B
269,492,0007T) ° ARBETGEERALILA
Ha B - ERIE A B K e sNE B 12 &
LEE - SEERNEEERE - ANEETF
FBREELEINEEB 2 RITHEARB R
BREEMER -

RITIF FUARITE B FRUFEF) = BREUF
B o BIAKERSMTR - MELHL
RE=ZHRA(ZEZ=F : £t RE=1EA)
TENTFHER  TASANTHERS
EEREFL o IRITETF TN L ELERE
Ntz BEERT - RZEZ=ZF=A
=+—HB  RekRTEFRIEEHER
75%110,877,0007T ° ;% EHITFRET LA
—FEMFIENFH - IRENEZEH
GRS BRG] - ZERTFRIFEZ
B8 T R ERIR S A o

EIEEEBR AT 2022/23 Fi

As at 31 March 2023, the cash and bank balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to approximately
HK$214,878,000 (2022: HK$269,492,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies. However, under the Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorized to conduct foreign exchange
business.

The cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The time deposits are made for varying periods
of between 7 days and 3 months (2022: 7 days and 3 months)
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default. As at 31 March 2022, included in the cash and
bank balances were demand deposits of HK$110,877,000. The
demand deposits were made for varying periods of between 1
year and 2 years. There was no penalty for or restriction on early
withdrawal of the demand deposits. The demand deposits were
held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments.
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26. ENEZ R RERX

27.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

26.TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

RERRENE G RREBERFIZESR The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end

AT B2 REBEDITEAT

of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

(EMFor) (HK$°000) 2023 2022
H+ERA Within 90 days 370,423 384,486
nt—=—8NA+X 91 to 180 days 169,849 225,315
—BNAT—E=a~TEX 181 to 365 days 68,008 71,323
iR —F Over 1 year 15,087 14,570

623,367 695,694
ENESREERFUAMFER—K= The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and are
EREARNGEE - FEH%%&ETE%;HE;K_‘? normally settled on terms of 3 to 6 months. Included in the trade
Fh B FE FE ST B 4 N R IE B #517,741,000 and bills payables are trade payables of HK$17,741,000 (2022:
T(ZE - —F: /%M10,984,0007_E) - H HK$10,984,000) due to associates which are repayable within 30
NFIERBE=TRAEZR - days.

Hit et - EEIEERAKNEME 27.0THER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES
(BT T) (HK$'000) Kzt Notes 2023 2022
EHEE Contract liabilities (a) 83,390 114,040
HEMEMNEREZRRESTBE  Other payables and accruals (b) 237,879 246,410

HibENERR - Bt RE

Total other payables, accruals

EEa#HaEEst and contract liabilities 321,269 360,450
o EE Portion classified as non-current

FERENEB portion (6,364) (11,674)
ENER S Current portion 314,905 348,776

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi
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27 HEAIRN - BRfAEREGHNER

(#)

st -

(@) ANEBERINEROIALR - 1
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

27.0THER PAYABLES, ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(a) Contract liabilities include advances received to deliver goods. The
contract liabilities as at 1 April 2021 amounted to HK$141,359,000.
The decrease in contract liabilities in 2023 and 2022 was mainly due
to the decrease in advances received from customers in relation to
the sale of goods at the end of the year.

(b) The financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals are
non-interest-bearing.

As at 31 March 2022, included in the other payables and accruals
was earnest money of HK$12,330,000 in relation to a framework
agreement for a possible land development plan as detailed in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 November 2018. During the year
ended 31 March 2023, the earnest money was refunded after the
termination of the framework agreement as detailed in the Company’s
announcement dated 6 July 2022.

28. 5T B RITER 28.INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS
ERF%
Effective
interest rate B
(B¥Fr) (HK$'000) (%) Maturity 2023 2022
RITEREES Bank loans repayable Nil Nil
—FER - ERE within one year, unsecured (2022: 1.1)  (2022: 2022) - 21,568

RIEBE-_—_F=F=+—H A&EBHzE
EHRITERAUF B R A -
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As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s unsecured bank loans were at
floating rates.
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29. BB E 29.DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

AEBEREZMBERARRIEE @ 12
TR —_ZEZRFLA— A TRKRSED
Bt DESE 2B A RERAZ 8K
DEE - REEE - BEBEESFIER
R EMFZTHRNEN - REFEIMTIIRR
BEHET - ZR45H -BEERTT
EXNTRABRENRFRE - HRAEHE
A& ANEAFHAFHAE -

SR ZRAKEE ARZRKRERS M}
C ZENEREHEREEEE  INUZ
B ABRTAHERFIEREER
AZTRERE - ZEERETEARSE - A&
AEENEEEBNIF - ZESRRET
T IR E KRS -

m 4 o

\

ZETBIZMEER - RAREXmANTS
gFPELE - RATISERMMEERRIF
& .

OB EE R ERRANEMERER
BiHE - THAERESERAZAER
BEAENEEEEBERRNARA TN
“RC=F=ZA=+—B#T - JILATER
BUREFEREMAEEAE -

RIERRZ TBRERROT ¢

The Group’s subsidiaries in Taiwan operate the Old Scheme,
covering substantially all of its employees who were recruited
by the Taiwanese subsidiaries before the implementation of
the Labour Act on 1 July 2005. Under the Old Scheme, the
employees are entitled to retirement benefits annually based on
an accumulated base point, which is determined based on their
years of service, with a maximum of 45 points multiplied by the
average monthly salary for the final six months of employment on
attainment of a retirement age ranging from 55 to 65.

The Old Scheme requires the Group to make monthly
contributions to the retirement fund. The fund is administered by
the Committee and is deposited under the Committee’s name with
a government approved financial institution, which acts as the
trustee. The assets held by the trustee are separated from those
of the Group. The Committee is responsible for the determination
of the investment strategy of the scheme.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, the risk of changes in
the life expectancy for pensioners, equity market risk and credit
risk.

The most recent actuarial valuations of the plan assets and the
present value of the defined benefit obligations were carried out
on 31 March 2023 by Greatfine Wealth Management Consulting
Inc., a qualified actuary recognized by the Actuarial Institute in
Taiwan, using the projected unit credit actuarial valuation method.

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

2023 2022
Prif & Discount rate 1.1% 0.9%
TEHFSERE Expected rate of salary increase 1.0% 1.0%

EEEEAR AT 2022/23 Fi
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—E-=F=ZA=+—H 31 March 2023
29. EREEF &I (E) 29.DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (continued)
BEMEETHEEENTERE The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan
#1397200070( =& - —F: B assets was HK$13,972,000 (2022: HK$13,526,000) and that
13,526,0007T) * B L EEMNIBEEE the actuarial value of these assets represented 123% (2022:
HAFEBME TFHENEA123% (= 109%) of the benefits that had accrued to qualifying employees.
T F:109%) - BErAER2611,000 The surplus of HK$2,611,000 is expected to be cleared over the
TN T ERA FRIER RS HR+ = G BBk - remaining service period of 13 years.
TRAREHRMEANENBRNES A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions as at
R E DT the end of the reporting period is shown below:
2023
EERNER EERAER
#i,/ (D) i/ (B)
Increase/ Increase/
HEIEM  (decrease) of WEHD  (decrease) of
Increase defined Decrease defined
in rate benefit in rate benefit
(EBFT) (HK$'000) % obligations % obligations
GBS Discount rate 0.5 (234) (0.5) 267
AREEER Future salary increase 0.5 266 (0.5) (235)
2022
EERNER EERAER
#in,/ (D) #m/(B)
Increase/ Increase/
HRRIEM  (decrease) of fWEHD  (decrease) of
Increase defined Decrease defined
in rate benefit in rate benefit
(EEFT) (HK$'000) % obligations % obligations
GBS Discount rate 0.5 (305) (0.5) 508
AREEER Future salary increase 0.5 504 (0.5) (306)
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

29. EEERIFTEI(&) 29.DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (continued)

gD - TIRIBERERBRRERS
HARRELEAEEBRFUTEREMNE(EN
FENEL - BRMED *ﬁﬁﬂiﬁfiﬁﬂ?“
28 ARMEEMRRETTEM
E o BURIEDHTATE ]I/Tﬁi%m%ﬁﬁaﬂa
T2ERES  ARRJXTAAEMIZIR
HAb R IR

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a
method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligations
as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity analysis is
based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all
other assumptions constant. The sensitivity analysis may not
be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit
obligations as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would
occur in isolation of one another.

EGAaRARTHRANEGHEFEER/

The total expenses/(income) recognized in the consolidated

(WA @EmT - income statement in respect of the scheme are as follows:

CEMFor) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
2 HIRR TS A AR Current service cost 66 113
B AFHRE Interest cost, net 9) 8
FENE R Net benefit expenses 57 121

ERENEERIEENRFEZE

The movements in the defined benefit obligations and the fair

AR value of plan assets are as follows:
2023
RRBRMBHEREA HARtRARBHENT B EBIER)

Pension cost charged to Remeasurement losses/(gains) in
the income statement other comprehensive income
ARt Ep.S
BREL  BREL
A Byl Ey it itALM
bi% BE%E  EERE ENE
i gt Actuarial  Actuarial Nt i
ZBCZE EH OFISER  Subtotal changes  changes Subtotal 3
MA-B BERA  FE included arising from  arising from included ZAzt-8
At Current Net inthe changes in  changesin  SEHE in other At
1 April  sevice interest income  Benefit demographic financial  Experience comprehensive 31 March
(B%Fr)  (HKS000) 2022 cost expense statement paid assumptions ~assumptions adjustments income by employer  realignment 2023
TERF  Defined benefit
Eff obligations 12465 66 105 171 5 (120) (38) (153) 11,361
HEEE  Fairvalue of
AT plan assets (13,526) - (14 (114) - - (104) (104) (13972)
BilEE Benefit asset (1,061) 66 9 57 5 (120 (142) (257) (2,611)

IEEBEBR AR 2022/23 F
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—ET-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
29. EBEBRIGHEI (&) 29.DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN (continued)
2022
MU RHRORAKS AR ENENEN T REEI(ER)
Pension cost charged to Remeasurement losses/(gains) in
the income statement other comprehensive income

Angs B
BREt  BREL

A Bl algh ARH
% BEEE  KERE LEYE
i At Actuarial  Actuarial Nt i
ZEC-F EH OFISER  Subtotal changes  changes Subtotal - Sk
BA-B BERA  FE included arising from  arising from included ZA=t-8
At Current Net inthe OHER changesin changesin  EEER inother  EXRE ENHE At
1Apil  sevice interest  income  Benefit demographic financial  Experience comprehensive Contribution  Exchange 31 March
(BHET)  (HKS000) 2021 cost  expense statement paid assumptions assumptions adjustments income by employer  realignment 2022
TERF  Defined benefit
Eff obligations 23,306 113 105 A8 (11414) (7 (447) 53 69 - 26 12,465
HEEE  Farvalueof
LT plan asses (21,514) - (97) 97 11414 - - (1430) (1,430) (1671) (228) (13,520)
BHEE/  Beneft abity
(&) (asset) 179 113 8 121 - (7 (447) (907) (1361) (1,671) 08 (1,061)
ANEBFEAEELB L A FEFESEN The major categories of the fair value of the total plan assets of
T the Group are as follows:
2023 2022
ReMReEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 16% 19%
fRART A Equity instruments 73% 70%
BERTHE Debt instruments 11% 11%
100% 100%
RNEEIBEAR NEAM B EE RN EEEET The Group expects to make a contribution of HK$1,242,000 (2022:
SEMERH B 242,000 (2 == HK$1,498,000) to the defined benefit scheme during the next
& A¥1,498,0007T) ° financial year.
RIBEHIR » TEENESEZ FHEER The average duration of the defined benefit obligations at the end
BANFE(ZE_—F : £4F) of the reporting period is 4 years (2022: 7 years).
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
30 EERIIE 30.DEFERRED TAX
REA - BEEBIEBEREEZSHNAT : The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

EEHEaE Deferred tax liabilities
BEREA
HRREN
TERHE
Provisions and
depreciation
allowance in
MESR excess of nNEH
Revaluation of related  Withholding @t
(BEFT) (HK$'000) properties  depreciation tax Total
RZE-—FNA—H At 1 April 2021 48 578 9,580 39,141 97,299
REERRERTG/ Deferred tax charged/(credited) to
(FIA) ZERFIE the income statement
FR(ME1) during the year, net (note 11) 3,452 1,997 (13,293) (7,844)
NG EERlep Withholding tax on repatriation of
e eamings from subsidiaries - - (14,834) (14,834)
ERAR Exchange realignment 2,045 476 762 3,283
WZZZZ#=ZA=1t—-HK  At31 March 2022 and
“Z-"FMA—H 1 April 2022 54,075 12,053 11,776 77,904
TEERRERIG Deferred tax charged to the income statement
BRBEFREHZI) during the year, net (note 11) - 2,756 2,112 4,868
[E 5 35% Exchange realignment (3,977) (913) (702) (5,592)
WZE-=F=A=+-A2 Net deferred tax liabilities recognized in the
BRRGABBARE consolidated statement of financial position
ERHIBAEFE at 31 March 2023 50,098 13,896 13,186 77,180
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2023

30.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

EEHEEE Deferred tax assets
IEFE W 2
B Deferred st
(EMFor) (HK$'000) Provisions revenue Total
R-E-—FW™A—H At 1 April 2021 37,961 112 38,073
REFRRERETA Deferred tax credited to the

ZIEIEF IR income statement during the year,

SRE(KYEIL) net (note 11) 3,750 122 3,872
ME H & Exchange realignment 1,598 5 1,603
WZZE-_—F=ZA=+—HK At 31 March 2022 and

T -FHMA—H 1 April 2022 43,309 239 43,548
AEZR KRR Deferred tax charged to the

ZIRSETSIE income statement during the year,

SFE(MEELL) net (note 11) (3,301) (30) (3,331)
(S Exchange realignment (3,186) (17) (3,203)
RZEBE-_=F=ZA=+—HZ Net deferred tax assets recognized

R E B R in the consolidated statement of
EERIRE EFE financial position at 31 March 2023 36,822 192 37,014
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30. RAERIE (&) 30.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

BAKBCHEBEEBBERESE  PE
NEER & ED B ABE274976,0007T
— T - 4% %%305,297,0007C) *
B 15,568,000t( Z T ZF : B
17,787,0007T ) % /& #39,914,000 7t( =
T~ 4 ##30,116,0007T) - A 4
MR B ZEEZ AR AR ZER R
e HNZEARICIEEHE—BER -
7 f5E TE 5T FE SR B A A AT R A AR A] R
MBMIEEE  WERZSEBERRAELT
MIBEE - ERBRBEEEFR - 21
B 15,568,000t ( = —F | B
17,787,0007T ) K& #39,914,0007t (=&
— 4 1 78#30,116,0007T) B ESE S B
BREBEEEEAFRTFREE - Hi
EIE P AR EA RS o

BB EEMSRE - NP KERT
RISNE D EMINEIZE BT IR B HEK
10%MEH - BT N\F—A—HELE
MABEAR—_ZZTLF+_A=1+—AH%%
BRERAD R o finih B ELHNET 48 B & T E 7
ERBETBBGGL - B EAREKR
MNABHE - AEERFAMNERRER
5%810% - B@E T -_—_FZA=+—
HIEFER @ BRREBZETHE AR
FrE M A E AR R TTEE B 8 s i
REEHB R IR O HE 2 EE1&
% FTLABR R B 10% M =E5% ©

EEEEAR AT 2022/23 Fi

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong, Mainland China
and Taiwan of HK$274,976,000 (2022: HK$305,297,000),
HK$15,568,000 (2022: HK$17,787,000) and HK$39,914,000
(2022: HK$30,116,000), respectively, that are available for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which
the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognized
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in those companies
that have been loss-making for some time and it is not considered
probable that taxable profits will be available against which the
tax losses can be utilized in the foreseeable future. Included in
unrecognized tax losses are losses of HK$15,568,000 (2022:
HK$17,787,000) and HK$39,914,000 (2022: HK$30,116,000)
that will expire within five years and ten years, respectively, from
the date the losses arose. Other losses can be carried forward
indefinitely.

Pursuant to the New Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors
from the foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement was effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group, the
applicable rate during the year was 5% or 10%. During the year
ended 31 March 2022, the withholding tax rate reduced from
10% to 5% as certain subsidiaries in Hong Kong meets the
eligibility criteria under the Arrangement between the Mainland
of China and Hong Kong Special Administrative Region for the
Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion
with Respect to Taxes on Income.
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30 EEBIE(Z) 30.DEFERRED TAX (continued)

196

BESN - IRIR G EMBBRS - RFEANHE
REREIRZ B EHHER21% (ZF =
I 21%)MBH o Bt - AEE A
R B TR % 5 MY B A A EE A A0 A P
K32 B BEMIMBH - BE_FT_—F
ZA=t—BIFEAR AR REEXL
ZHIERT - EREREMR Y B&RE
PR BT A BT A B bR B BB & Jb TRy
WEHEREMBEBRAEHEERN
Kt BERTEE 2 ERIGME - P
PABLRR SR BB 2 MBREH21% B E
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NZE_=F=F=+—H KEBAHE
T A R B K BE B A2 B B B 2 B oK kR BB
EE A R NS ERETERIE - &
BERZEANDREEZRESLNE
#1,532,532,000/t( Z T == F : B
1,626,281,00070) - EER A © 5B
RAPNKAIBER A R AR ERZZEZN
F-—A—RERIZETF -

MWZZBE-_=ZF=ZA=+—0 TERA
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RN E EBEMREROEERE
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EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR

In addition, pursuant to Taiwan withholding tax regulations, a
21% (2022: 21%) withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to non-resident shareholders. Therefore, the Group is liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those subsidiaries
established in Taiwan in respect of earnings generated. During
the year ended 31 March 2022, the withholding tax rate on
dividends distributed reduced from 21% to 10% as the immediate
holding company, which is incorporated in the Netherlands, of the
subsidiary established in Taiwan meets the eligibility criteria under
the Agreement between the Taipei representative office in the
Netherlands and the Netherlands trade and investment office in
Taipei for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and the Prevention of
Fiscal Evasion with Respect to Taxes on Income.

As at 31 March 2023, no deferred tax has been recognized
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of certain of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China, of which the aggregate amount of temporary
differences has not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$1,532,532,000 (2022: HK$1,626,281,000). In the opinion
of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will
distribute their earnings accrued after 1 January 2008 in the
foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2023, the aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with the investments in subsidiaries
established in Taiwan for which deferred tax liabilities arising from
withholding tax have not been recognized totalled approximately
HK$48,767,000 (2022: HK$51,771,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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31.

32.

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

&N 31.SHARE CAPITAL
CEMFor) (HK$’000) 2023 2022
VERE ¢ Authorized:
1,000,000,000R% & 38 ik 1,000,000,000 ordinary shares of

FRER0.107T HK$0.10 each 100,000 100,000
BEEIREZEHT Issued and fully paid:
630,531,6000% 630,531,600

—Z— — 4 :630,531,6000%) (2022: 630,531,600)

TEARFRERE0.107T ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 63,053 63,053

B 1 32.SHARE OPTIONS

ARAEFRMABRRNARBAE TN
FAA-TMA(TRABEHDETZHRE
FERE Lt 2 AR 81 ([ B IRt
E IR

RIBBETE - ARBEFARNBEER
ER2EARABBREARBAR QRS
BB - MEAE AT 2 R R AR
IR B - RIFBAES IR 2 FEAEY
T TFHA ARER SRR AE LR
RZHER o

B B 2 FBEIMT

(a B®

HEBRZSEARAREEL S
FEL BB T AR S E ) -

EEEBBRAR 2022/23 F3f

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) approved by the shareholders at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 September 2014 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Under the Share Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
may, at their discretion, invite any participants to take up share
options to subscribe for fully paid ordinary shares in the Company
subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein. Share
options under the Share Option Scheme do not confer rights on
the holders to dividends or to vote at shareholders’” meetings.

The particulars of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

(a) Purpose

As rewards or incentives for the contribution or potential
contribution to the Group from the eligible participants.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(b) Participants

0]

(i)

(a) any director (whether executive or non-executive,
including any independent non-executive director)
and employee (whether full time or part time) of, or

(b) any individual for the time being seconded to work

for,
any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder (as
defined under the Share Option Scheme) or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

any holder of any securities issued by any member of
the Group or any controlling shareholder or any company
controlled by a controlling shareholder; or

(iii) (@) any business or joint venture partner, franchisee,

contractor or distributor of,

(b) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support or any
advisory, consultancy, professional or other services
in respect of business operations to,

(c) any supplier of goods or services to, or

(d) any customer of goods or services of,

any member of the Group or any controlling shareholder
or a company controlled by a controlling shareholder.
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
32.[BRHEE) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) BEA(E) (b) Participants (continued)
HERETENS  2EAREH— For the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the participants
MK SRE DA _EERER R 2 B A R shall include any company controlled by one or more persons
E|Z A RT] o belonging to any of the above classes of participants.
(c) AFRITEBRIE LR (c) Maximum number of ordinary shares available for issue

RAF R BH » &% 3£63,053,160
% 3RS (ISR A QR B BEITRA
10%) 7] F 81T o

BUSEATERERS LR

PR AR B BB I AT &) 2 R AR B TTHL A
S ERSEAEEFN T ZEAR
(BERLBREE A L) RBERE
FHEIRAR QBT E b RE At T &1
ReBRE(BHEEEHE  2TER
R R TT 8 2 BB AR A ) T DA 7T {50 By P 3%
TREETZEBR ERTIEEBA
NEIEETEBRNL% -

TREBRERBEBERZHR

R ERE BT HFR - s
NRE BRI TR FTE T A& 5
M o

BREETHEAVARTEZRERR
(mA)

W BERER  AAREERBIE
FHEBEETFIVEREZREH
R(A) -

AR AR 2022/23 FiR

A total of 63,053,160 ordinary shares are available for issue,
which represent 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum number of ordinary shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of share options granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes
of the Company to any participant (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding share options), in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
ordinary shares in issue unless otherwise approved in
accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

(e) Period within which the ordinary shares must be taken up
under a share option

Within ten years from the date of grant of the share option or
such shorter period as the board of directors of the Company
determines at the time of grant.

(f) Minimum period, if any, for which a share option must be
held before it can be exercised

At the time of granting a share option, the board of directors
of the Company will determine the minimum period(s), if
any, for which a share option must be held before it can be
exercised.
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—ET-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
32..BRE(E) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
() BEHBREANSERMNRZHR (g) Amount payable upon acceptance of a share option and the

period within which the payment must be made

ERLEREZEN 2 AR(BIEZE) An offer for the grant of a share option must be accepted
N+RARANEBESEBEZEY - R within forty-five days inclusive of the day on which the offer
ZEMHEREZNN - ANEEL0 was made. The amount payable on acceptance of the offer for
JT ° an option is HK$1.00.

(h) EEBRETEEZEE (h) Basis of determining the exercise price of a share option
TEBRERAT N 2R MDTT The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a
FEHRARAREEREE @ WITH share option shall be determined by the board of directors of
BEELAETIESE the Company and shall be no less than the highest of:

() REEBEEREZZOAH(KA (i) the closing price of the ordinary shares of the Company
ABRER)ZANRE BRI S as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
B - sz 4 & Th & p Bt 3 BT T Exchange on the date of offer of grant, which must be a
B2 AMK business day;

(i) REERNERE 2 Z4HHH8R (i) the average of the closing prices of the ordinary shares
hEEXER ARG EBRTS of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
WTRE ik & U (& T 8 B issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days
RETPE AWK & immediately preceding the date of offer of grant; and

(i) AprlEimik s EE - (i) the nominal value of an ordinary share of the Company.

(i) BRESE BN (i) Life of the Share Option Scheme
PR RERT & 2 B U HA s B4 B HR R The Share Option Scheme has a life of ten years commencing
AARTFEFERR_ZE-_MFNA=+ on the Adoption Date and will expire on 23 September 2024.
=HEH °

HE_ZT-_—_F=-ZA=+—HLFRK " During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had granted

ARERZE-_—F—A=-+—8((= a total of 6,130,000 share options on 21 January 2022 (the “2022

T oFEEABDBREERERER Grant Date”) to participants under the Share Option Scheme,

28 A KA 6,130,000 /%4 - amongst which 2,500,000 share options were granted to executive

2,500,000 IR R T AR BIITE SR (A directors (one of whom is also a substantial shareholder) of the

F—MAEERRE) + &3,630,0008 % Company and 3,630,000 share options were granted to selected

BETALEBERTES employees of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

32.BREE) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

ITEBRERE T N 2 SRR DITEE
BB 49T - AR EBERNEE T
ToFREABE(AIZE = =F—A=
+R)ZWHERBK2.447T -

HE_Z - F=-ZA=Z+—HILFR K
RAERZZEZEF+—HA=++tH(=
ZREREAH D EERERETERZ
B AR A 11,520,000 i #E - Hep
3,400,000 R T AR B ITE S (A
PRI mEERR) - %8,120,0008 %
EERTAEEETERE -

TR AT XN 2 SRR M TTEE
RE2.20TC - ARRIEBRNEE-F
“EFRE A E_EF+—A
—HARB) 2B EREE2.227T

RBE-_T_=F=-A=1t—HILFEM
BB BAEERL SRR
MERH ~ EITERFEE -R_F_=
FZA=Z+—H8 ARAHE(ZFT_—
FE)ETEREBERESIRLNE
P T 21T A

FA - RBEBRETE - AT HBRE S
RITHE -

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option is HK$2.49. The closing price of the ordinary shares of the
Company immediately before the 2022 Grant Date (i.e. as of 20
January 2022) is HK$2.44.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company had granted
a total of 11,520,000 share options on 27 November 2020
(the “2020 Grant Date”) to participants under the Share Option
Scheme, amongst which 3,400,000 share options were granted to
executive directors (one of whom is also a substantial shareholder)
of the Company and 8,120,000 share options were granted to
selected employees of the Group.

The exercise price per share payable on the exercise of a share
option is HK$2.20. The closing price of the ordinary shares of the
Company immediately before the 2020 Grant Date (i.e. as of 26
November 2020) is HK$2.22.

No share options were granted, granted for adjustment, exercised
or cancelled under the Share Option Scheme during the year
ended 31 March 2023. As at 31 March 2023, no ordinary shares
(2022: Nil) were issued by the Company as a result of the
exercise of share options granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The following share options were outstanding under the Share
Option Scheme during the year:

2023 2022

METHTEE MEFHTHE

(BREBREE) (BREFREE)

Weighted average Weighted average
exercise price BREHE exercise price BREHE
(HK$ per Number of (HK$ per Number of
ordinary share) share options ordinary share) share options
REH) At beginning of year 2.30 16,220,000 2.20 10,890,000
REARH Granted during the year - - 2.49 6,130,000
REREHR Lapsed during the year 2.26 (2,130,000) 2.33 (800,000)
RER At end of year 2.31 14,090,000 2.30 16,220,000

EEEEAR AT 2022/23 Fi
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32./8REE) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

RBEHR - HARITEZ BRENTTEH

The exercise periods and exercise prices of the share options

RATEENT outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
R-B-_=F=A=+—8H
At 31 March 2023
TEE"
(R EFERBE)
Exercise price* BREZE
(HK$ per Number of
1T{EHR Exercise period ordinary share) share options

—E-—F+—A=t+tH=

27 November 2022 to

—E=FF+—A=+RH 26 November 2030 2.20 2,516,000
—E-=F+—F=++tHZE 27 November 2023 to
:§£§¢+—H—+ﬁa 26 November 2030 2.20 786,000
“ZE-NFE+—A-F++EHZE 27 November 2024 to
—E=TF+—H=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 2,516,000
ZEZRAF+—AZF+EHZ 27 November 2025 to
—E=FF+—HA=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 786,000
—E-RF+—AZ+tHZE 27 November 2026 to
_%:ﬁi"”_ﬂ —+XH 26 November 2030 2.20 1,088,000
“E-+F+—HA=+tHBZE 27 November 2027 to
—E=FF+—HZ+RA 26 November 2030 2.20 1,048,000
—E-F—A=-+—H=E 21 January 2024 to
_qf_ﬁz A=—+H 20 January 2032 2.49 1,631,000
—E_RAF—AZ+—H=ZE 21 January 2025 to
—T="%—H-+H 20 January 2032 2.49 474,000
:$:/\$ A-+—8=% 21 January 2026 to
—E=F—HA=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 1,631,000
—= fti A-+—8=% 21 January 2027 to
—E="F—HA=-+H 20 January 2032 2.49 474,000
2 )\F—HA=Z+—H= 21 January 2028 to
:gz_i—ﬂ +H 20 January 2032 2.49 508,000
—E-NEFE—HA=Z+—H=ZE 21 January 2029 to
—ZE==%—H=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 632,000
14,090,000

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR
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T =F=R=+—H 31 March 2023
32.[BRE(E) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
R-BZZH=A=+—H
At 31 March 2022
TEE"
(R BB ERE)
Exercise price* BREZE
(HK$ per Number of
1T1EE Exercise period ordinary share) share options
ZE-F+—AZ+EHZE 27 November 2022 to
—E=FF+—HA=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 2,930,000
ZEZ=F+—A=++EHZ 27 November 2023 to
—E=FF+—H=+/"H 26 November 2030 2.20 885,000
_7_E¢+ AZ=—+-+tHZ 27 November 2024 to
ZE=FF+—A=Z+"AH 26 November 2030 2.20 2,930,000
—E-RAF+—AZ+EHZE 27 November 2025 to
—ZE=TF+—HA=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 885,000
ZEZRF+—AZF+LEHZ 27 November 2026 to
:gi%?EJr*ﬂ —+xH 26 November 2030 2.20 1,640,000
—E-t+F+—A=-+EHZE 27 November 2027 to
—ZE=FF+—HF=+"H 26 November 2030 2.20 1,180,000
—ENFE—-A=Z+—H=E 21 January 2024 to
—ZT=="F%—H=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 1,679,000
—-= _ﬂi A-+—8= 21 January 2025 to
—E=F—H=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 552,000
:T_/\fﬁ A-+—H= 21 January 2026 to
—E="F—H=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 1,679,000
—Et+F—-HA=Z+—H=E 21 January 2027 to
—E==%—A=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 552,000
= _)\¢ A-+—8H= 21 January 2028 to
—E=F—A=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 572,000
—EoNF—A=Z+—HZE 21 January 2029 to
—E="F—HA=+H 20 January 2032 2.49 736,000
16,220,000
AR TRBEITIRALIRE (L - BIRET *  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the
FEAERHE - event of any variation in the issued share capital of the Company.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

32./8REE) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

204

BE-_Z-_—"F#=ZA=+t—BHIFERAK
7 R 2 A F{E A 1,993,000
(B RBH030LEEH0347) - HEZ
T F=-A=+—HUEFEARLZE
I 2 N FAEABE4,657,0007T (& A
¥039 B B0 42) HE-T =
FZA=+—HALFEN - FEENKE
RERBRES L AAEK1,441,0007T(=
T4 : A%1,370,0007T) °

BE-_E-_—&ER-_T-_—F=f=+—
B EFERATE 2 LA 5 2 B AR A
ZAFE - R REHBRERASENER
TEHR AR - &R R B RE 2 ER R IE
o TRE}F| AR 2 T2 AL

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 March 2022 was HK$1,993,000 (HK$0.30 to HK$0.34 each).
The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
31 March 2021 was HK$4,657,000 (HK$0.39 to HK$0.42 each).
During the year ended 31 March 2023, the Group recognized a
share option expense of HK$1,441,000 (2022: HK$1,370,000) in
the income statement.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 was estimated as at the
date of grant, using a polynomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the major inputs to the model used:

2022 2021
% B 2 2 (%) Dividend vyield (%) 6.7 4.1
TEHRR 18 (%) Expected volatility (%) 29.6 29.7
JFE SR 8 (%) History volatility (%) 29.6 29.7
7 BB T 2K (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 1.5 0.5
BERAETEERFHR(5F) Expected life of option (year) 10 10
INREF AR (E (RS EE) Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) 2.49 2.20

FBRETR I HIR M RBR T RE 3R 2 1718
I o T8 R 0 B R R S22 8 R 5 7R AR 2K
BEZBE - ETMARLHKKRERER -

AEATERYEEEARHERECH
AFIE -

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR

The expected life of the share options is not necessarily indicative
of the exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

32.BREE) 32.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

RZEZ=F=ZA=+—8 ' ARA
BEEREASORITENERER
14,090,000 * {EARABRZ B EEITE R
f8 2 492.23% » AR T H AT E ANERE
T BEITEERITENEREBEHR
A BE)E1714,090,000/% ZE/NE @AY - Wk
SEBIMNIR A #5 1,400,000 7T & J& 19 34 (8
75131,141,0007T (BT HAT) ©

FA - RIEBRERTEIREA2,130,000
BEIE(—Z — —4F : 800,000 E)E
KK - B EXEIIEBEEIN  REE-T =

o SLABRMER G - CITESBGEN

R BmREBIL DS - NAFIRERERE
&l RTTE R BB A /313,640,000 - 15
ARRRRZADBEITEBRZ492.16% -

i

AEEAFERBEFENRFBLEEZD
R BERRAZGEEREBRPZ2T -

RIBGERFDE - DEEMBRMNERAT
NEEEWMBE N BRARER 2D
BRMNEEE—TAIRE ZEANREET -
HEZENREEERZRREARN0%E -
AR BETEAR - M EARFHEIA
BERs AR ST 18

REFEHINEFELERTPINGERE
ERZED - NRABRBBEREZHER
AAEBHORRENERERBOLR
WERBER 2B EEXRREEBERE
BEEEHEMEAS0% o

EEEEAR AT 2022/23 Fi

As at 31 March 2023, the Company had 14,090,000 share options
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which represented
approximately 2.23% of the Company’s ordinary shares in issue as
at that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share options
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 14,090,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$1,409,000 and share
premium of HK$31,141,000 (before issue expenses).

2,130,000 share options (2022: 800,000 share options) granted
under the Share Option Scheme were lapsed during the year.
Save as disclosed above, no share option was granted, granted
for adjustment, exercised or cancelled during the year ended 31
March 2022.

As at the date of approval of the financial statements, the
Company had 13,640,000 share options outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme, which represented approximately 2.16% of
the Company’s ordinary shares in issue as at that date.

.RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

In accordance with the Company Law of Taiwan, Asian Plastic
Machinery Company, Limited and Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan
Company, Limited are required to transfer a portion of their profit
after tax to a capital reserve, which is non-distributable. When
the capital reserve has accumulated to 50% of their capital, up to
50% of the capital reserve may be capitalized. The capital reserve
may be utilized at anytime to offset any deficit.

In accordance with the Law of the PRC on Sole Foreign Investment
Enterprises and Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, the
Company’s Mainland China subsidiaries are required to transfer a
portion of their profit after tax to the statutory reserve fund, which
is restricted as to use, until the accumulated total reaches 50% of
their registered capital.
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4. GREREREBHRMEE 34.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

(a) TEFBERSZ (a) Major non-cash transactions

() REA - BEVE  BEERE
ZIERBET 2 REW3,117,0007T
— T #123,093,000

=

TOBREYE - BENEE -

(i RFR - AEEBBEMEZT
ZZF  mE)AERHMNFERE
EERHEBENIRERED
Bl &5 #15,678,0007T( — & —
— 4 B #5,103,0007T ) KB
15,678,0007C( = E = =4 : B
5,103,0007T) °

(i) RER - EEERN L RERRE
BEZUENEERN A RBE
600,0007C " WEFEA-_ZT ==
FZA=+—HBHNEMENER
LIESTBEA -

(v) RER - AEEEHE-HHBL
AR R E A RANETL A
EHER 2R E RBH2,296,000
T(ZZ 4 : 542,038,000
JT) °

206 EEEEARAR 2022/23 F1

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

During the year, non-current deposits for purchases of
items of property, plant and equipment of HK$3,117,000
(2022: HK$23,093,000) were transferred to property,
plant and equipment.

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$15,678,000
(2022: HK$5,103,000) and HK$15,678,000 (2022:
HK$5,103,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for properties (2022: properties).

During the year, reinstatement costs of HK$600,000 for
the property, which were capitalized as right-of-use asset,
were included in other payables and accruals as at 31
March 2023.

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
intangible assets of HK$2,296,000 (2022: HK$2,038,000)
in respect of a capital contribution by a non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary.
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—E-_=F=HA=+—H 31 March 2023

4. BEERERMT(E) 34.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(b) BMEFEES|IENEEEH (b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

HEAE FFERITER

Lease Interest-bearing

(EMFor) (HK$'000) liabilities bank borrowings
R-E-—FW™A—H At 1 April 2021 1,968 68,759
BMERERER Changes from financing cash flows (1,597) (45,000)
e New leases 5,103 -
BE A Finance costs 212 1,094
DERKEHRSREL Interest paid classified as

EATH A operating cash flows (212) (1,094)
SNGEE B & Foreign exchange movement 631 (2,191)

RZE-—F=HA=+—HK At 31 March 2022 and

—E-—FMA—H 1 April 2022 6,155 21,568
MERESREE Changes from financing cash flows (1,511) (20,458)
FHE New leases 15,678 -
BhE A Finance costs 477 630
DERKEHRENELZ Interest paid classified as

BFE operating cash flows (477) (680)
SN £ &) Foreign exchange movement (396) (1,110)
RZEZ=F=R=+—H At 31 March 2023 19,926 -

EHEBARAR 2022/23 Fh CHEN HSONG HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2022/23 207




B RS sRRMIEE (2) Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
—E-_=F=HA=+—H 31 March 2023

.G BERERMT(E) 34.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH
FLOWS (continued)

(c) HERSRHAKE (c) Total cash outflow for leases
HABSTRERNEER S R LEE The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
N cash flows is as follows:
(BB TT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
P ) I Within operating activities 5,009 4707
MEEHNA Within financing activities 1,511 1,597
6,520 6,304
35. &I 35.COMMITMENTS
AEERNBEHRNEARAENT The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:
RZTE_=F=A=+—H  BREF&EH As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitments,
R B REEE Y THERZEY  BEELE which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the
KRB 2 B AR EIES H A 7,366,000 construction of industrial buildings in Mainland China amounting
T(ZZT = =4 : B#1,089,0007T) ° to approximately HK$7,366,000 (2022: HK$1,089,000).
RZF-_=F=ZA=1+—0  BRA%E As at 31 March 2023, the Group had capital commitments,
BERPEAEREEZME - W%& which were contracted but not provided for, in respect of the
®iE - 2EME *E?1%Z§$7¥‘f‘ SES purchase of property, plant and equipment in Mainland China and
#)78%18,666,0007T(—F = —F : B Hong Kong amounting to approximately HK$18,666,000 (2022:
11,692,0007T) ° HK$11,692,000).
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023
36.BEALRS 36.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FR - AEEEUTHHEEATRS The Group had the following related party transactions during the

year:

(a) AREEAEE38,288,000(=F = (a) The Group purchased raw materials amounting to
—4F : 78#38,232,000 T ) [A] — Bt & HK$38,288,000 (2022: HK$38,232,000) from an associate
REAE T ENEREKIEER at prices and on terms mutually agreed by the Group and the
W o associate.

b) RFER AEBEREBERAQF (b) During the year, the Group leased a property from Desko

(KRR ZEBREREERENNE Limited, a subsidiary of CH Investments, the controlling
NENHEAYME RELF - K& shareholder of the Company, for a term of five years. The
BEREFEERBIMESR - FA Group has an option to renew for a further term of two
ERNEERBUNEFTREZERE years. The monthly lease payable was determined on a basis
F ol SREEZFRAEEE mutually agreed by both parties. Accordingly, right-of-use
BHEL14,757 000t R E B BB asset of HK$14,757,000 and lease liability of HK$14,402,000
14,402,000/t ZE_=F=HA=+ in respect of the lease were recognized in the consolidated
—HHEREUBRARAER - RFE statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023. During
A FREEE ZITE B 178,000 the year, depreciation of right-of-use asset of HK$178,000
TREEBGENEX LA E66,0007T and interest expense on the lease liability of HK$66,000 were
RErE e R - charged to the consolidated income statement.
LA FEEBERARABEMNEEAL The related party transaction in respect of Desko Limited
RGEX LTHRAUFEILAETEXE above constitutes a connected transaction as defined in
BR G o EMARBIEIAAEFTERH Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by
BRORESEREENBEIS Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the section
—EnR IR o “Connected Transaction” of the Report of the Directors.

(c) "EEEEEEABHH (c) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:
CEMFor) (HK$°000) 2023 2022
MHEERA Short-term employee benefits 13,785 14,345
ZIEBEF Post-employment benefits 36 36
VARG HE S A O B AR i = 1 Equity-settled share option expenses 718 591

14,539 14,972
TEEEASEMIIRXBATIERIRIU The compensation of key management personnel was
EBIEAAXIFHEEEIMET determined by reference to the Company’s performance as

well as individual performance and contribution.
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37.¢BTESE

RBEHR - TRBRNERTAZEEE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

31 March 2023

37.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

N instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
EREE Financial assets
D EEN RN EZ
EMEE
Financial assets at
amortized cost
(EMFor) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
JEUWE 5 Kk BRI Trade and bills receivables 1,479,451 1,345,403
RAE & - FERFIA Financial assets included
R E Ath fE U AR SR in deposits, prepayments
TRVEE and other receivables 26,343 22,989
JE W Bt A E AR K Finance lease receivables 1,616 4,682
HEIRRITIF X Pledged bank deposits 25,843 27,251
Re MIRITETF Cash and bank balances 644,662 671,911
2,177,915 2,072,236
sHmEE Financial liabilities
D AN R EZ
tMEE
Financial liabilities at
amortized cost
(B¥ETT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
R E S REBERR Trade and bills payables 623,367 695,694
O AE A AR TR Financial liabilities included in
ErrRAENTSRAEE other payables and accruals 161,530 183,710
FTRIRITEN Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 21,568
HEBE Lease liabilities 19,926 6,155
804,823 907,127
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3B.EMIANAFERLAFEER 38.FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

EREMARE RRTER  BWRTE
Rzm@an - BWE SRR MERRE
MERRZRBED - BIREEER - &2
AR ® ~ BN R HE YR IR & Rl
BE  BNEZEEREERR - s AHME
NERREFRENERBEZRDH S
ARG EBRITERN A FEEEKREER
A FERHNZEIARERANERM
B o

EYE ZEF BN E EHERRZIER
BED - EWRITERZIERDHD - &2
AHENERMEFRENERAEZ
R REERBEN A FEDEAA
BROGH - EERRESHTIHAZT
AR RGN EFRBHRIR SR
EMEE  EATERAE@EERES -

AEBZMEEGREEEESRTART
EFfENERNERF - REHREEH - H
BEES e TANBERZS BTG
ERANEIEHARE - HELEHLA
BEEHRE o

EEEEAR AT 2022/23 Fi

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and bank
balances, the current portion of pledged bank deposits, the
current portion of trade receivables and finance lease receivables,
bills receivable, financial assets included in deposits, prepayments
and other receivables, trade and bills payables, the current portion
of financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and interest-bearing bank borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of trade receivables and
finance lease receivables, the non-current portion of pledged bank
deposits, the non-current portion of financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals and lease liabilities are estimated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities and approximate to their carrying amounts.

The Group’s finance team is responsible for determining the
policies and procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. At each reporting date, it analyzes the movements in
the values of the financial instruments and determines the major
inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and
reported to directors.
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(a) IERALBRANCERSREE
RIEFEIZ % ZIRA &

TREHRNBOCDERSREENT
BRIEERNAEBZNERZERE

Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

39.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

(a) Transferred financial assets that are not derecognized in

their entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments
of the PRC

The following table provides a summary of bills receivable
that have been transferred in such a way that part of the

LB BE transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition,
together with the associated liabilities:
(CE®FT) (HK$°000) 2023 2022
BHEEEREE Carrying amount of assets that continued
BRMEE to be recognized 55,332 100,236
B aERmEE Carrying amount of associated liabilities 55,332 100,236

RZZE_=F#=ZRA=+—0H ' r5H
MESETHERSECEE THEY
BHRTEINETRURER(EE
RE]) - NEBRMNEEHERNE
NESERX - AAKEREEARR
kO - BREEERENENRR
Bt - ERERIASEZBNMER
EEIEENCEERNEZERR
BER  AEEUEERRERLE
Ef4ER - BREAEREMBE =7

& HERIEREERE -

212 EEEEARAR 2022/23 F1

As at 31 March 2023, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain local banks in the PRC (the
“Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in order to settle
the trade payables due to such suppliers. Since the Group
has retained the substantial risks and rewards, which include
default risk relating to the Endorsed Bills, it continued to
recognize the full carrying amounts of the Endorsed Bills
and the associated trade payables settled. Subsequent to the
endorsement, the Group does not retain any rights on the use
of the Endorsed Bills, including sales, transfer or pledge of
the Endorsed Bills to any other third parties.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

D.ERERMEEE)

39.TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

(b) FERILEANCERESHEE

(b) Transferred financial assets that are derecognized in their

WRIETERR X2 REEE

MW-ZB-=F=ZA=+—0  ~A&£H
MEATHENEEFHEAELAS
44965000 ( — T = —F : B
111,208,000L)E & THEEE
BHRITEZNE TREREEE(&IE
BREEZER])  AEEREMNLSHE
FEERMENE SRR - RILEREE
FERREIHARFKRIAE A —EA
E2+HEA(ZE==F: —@AZL
@A) - BEFBRERE - MIRITR
HoRARIEREEEZERRAARE
mMAEBER([FEL2HE])  AAE
EREEERIIBREEREEAN
BAEDERRERHK - Bt HAR
IHERKIIERESEZENMBEERED
BEREEENE SRR - NEBERES
BR2ERIEREERZELRBEZE
RIIEREERBENRTRESRS
MR ABERBRASNEREDE - B
b AEEMNIFELRRIEEREE
ZEMHAFETTERK °

RER  AEERERKILERSE
S AW RER T s E A -
W EW B ENFAK R ERE
SESHE ZEENEBEFTHMHE
4o

AR AR 2022/23 FiR

entirety

Bills endorsement under the Law of Negotiable Instruments
of the PRC

As at 31 March 2023, the Group endorsed certain bills
receivable accepted by certain reputable banks in the PRC (the
“Derecognized Endorsed Bills”) to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers with
a remaining carrying amount in aggregate of HK$44,965,000
(2022: HK$111,208,000). The Derecognized Endorsed Bills
have a remaining maturity of 1 month to 7 months at the
end of the reporting period (2022: 1 month to 7 months). In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments in the
PRC, the holders of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills have a
right of recourse against the Group if the banks default (the
“Continuing Involvement”). Since the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards relating to the Derecognized
Endorsed Bills, it has derecognized the full carrying amounts
of the Derecognized Endorsed Bills and the associated trade
payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the Group’s
Continuing Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed
Bills and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase these
Derecognized Endorsed Bills is equal to their carrying
amounts. Thus, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in the Derecognized Endorsed Bills are not
significant.

During the year, the Group has not recognized any gain or
loss on the date of transfer of the Derecognized Endorsed
Bills. No gains or losses were recognized from the Continuing
Involvement, both during the year or cumulatively. The
endorsement has been made evenly throughout the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise cash and
bank balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and bills receivables,
finance lease receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables, accruals and interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The risks associated with these financial instruments and
the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
Management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and effective
manner.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank loans carrying floating
interest rates. The Group monitors its interest rate exposure closely
and considers to take measures to reduce significant interest rate
exposure, if any.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s foreign exchange risk arises from commercial
transactions, recognized assets and liabilities and net investments
in operations in Mainland China, Taiwan, Brazil and the
Netherlands.

The Group has transactional currency risk exposures. Such risk
exposures arise from a substantial portion of the Group’s sales
and purchases transactions denominated in United States dollars
(“US$”), RMB, JPY and New Taiwanese dollars (“NTD”).

Management closely monitors foreign exchange exposure in
transactions denominated in US$, RMB, JPY and NTD and
its investments in Mainland China, Taiwan, Brazil and the
Netherlands and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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0. e EMEBEEERBEEK(E) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

SNERBS(E) Foreign currency risk (continued)

TRINTAEBBRB AR MR HRE AR The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
(EFBEMBERFINENELT)EE the reporting period to a reasonably possible change in US$,
T ARE BRI BEERNEER RMB, Euro and NTD exchange rates, with all other variables held
EYYNRRE(RREBEEREEN constant, of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the

ATEED) -

fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

SER BRBE AR F
#@m/(8d) & ORd)

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in foreign in profit
(GE#FoT) (HK$'000) currency rate before tax
2023
W ARBEETHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 8,210
W ARBEEETIE If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (8,210)
WA REEETHE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% (5,027)
mAREEETZE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) 5,027
M TE B T AHE If Euro strengthens against HK$ 5% 3,034
B TS A LR E If Euro weakens against HK$ (5%) (3,034)
W e ¥ HETAE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (1,773)
fiwh & B H XTI (E If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 1,773
MARBEERERBEAE If RMB strengthens against Brazilian Real (“R$”) 5% (1,703)
WMARESEREDREE If RMB weakens against R$ (5%) 1,703
WETHEAELRRAE If US$ strengthens against R$ 5% (5,313)
WETEHEAETRIZE If US$ weakens against R$ (5%) 5,313
2022
W ARBEETHE If RMB strengthens against HK$ 5% 7,981
i AR BT E If RMB weakens against HK$ (5%) (7,981)
mAREEETAE If RMB strengthens against US$ 5% (491)
MAREHEETRZE If RMB weakens against US$ (5%) 491
W TS A LA If Euro strengthens against HK$ 5% 9,709
THE T BT E If Euro weakens against HK$ (5%) (9,709)
fwh & BHETHE If NTD strengthens against US$ 5% (5,097)
w6 B HE T (E If NTD weakens against US$ (5%) 5,097
MARBEERERBEAE If RMB strengthens against R$ 5% (3,681)
MARBHEREERZE If RMB weakens against R$ (5%) 3,681
WETHEAERRAE If US$ strengthens against R$ 5% (3,443)
WETHEAERREE If US$ weakens against R$ (5%) 3,443

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi
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AR

RARR R FRIEE

TEREAKENEEBRR(RIFEHE
EETBERASFEIMBMEHER - &
AFZERBEBMHEHENR=ZA=1+—
BRFEREEIBR)IHEERRNER
BEREKREERR -
ENREEAEIVBERAREENE

BEERTRE

Notes to
31 March 2023

Financial Statements (continued)

POLICIES (continued)

Credit ris

k

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 March. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure to credit

BERk - risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
R-ZE_=F=R=+—H At 31 March 2023
T=f8A
BHEERR
12-month 2HEHEERR
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
LA
E-KE ERE FZRE  Simplified oy
(ESFI) (HK$'000) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
EREBZ&EN Trade receivables* - - - L1173%  1,117,3%
EREERR Bills receivable
—EE* - Normal** 454,352 - - - 454,352
LATS - BERER Financial assets included in deposits,
AR ETNEREE prepayments and other receivables
—EE - Normal** 26,123 - - - 26,123
— R - Doubtful** - - 17,167 - 17,167
AR SR Finance lease receivables* - - - 6,104 6,104
EREIER Pledged bank deposits
il - Not yet past due 25,343 - - - 25,843
B RFTER Cash and bank balances
—RH - Not yet past due 644,662 - - - 644,662
REQFINER  RAEE Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
RIEERETEPIEEER for a bank loan granted to a customer to
TREERNBTER purchase the Group’s products
il - Not yet past due 2,641 - - - 2,641
1,153,621 - 17,167 1,123,500 2,294,288
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

0. e EMEBEEERBEEK(E) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

FERREE)

Credit risk (continued)

AR R FAREER () Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

RZE-_—_#=ZA=+—H At 31 March 2022

T=f8A
BHGERE
12-month 2HRAEEFR
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
BiAs
E-K8 KA FZEBR  Simplified H
(B¥TTT) (HK$'000) Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
KB SE Trade receivables* - - - 976,207 976,207
ERFEEER Bills receivable
—EE* - Normal** 467,564 - - - 467 564
TATE - BRATER Financial assets included in deposits,
AR REE prepayments and other receivables
—EE* - Normal** 22,754 - - - 22,754
—RE - Doubtful** - - 18,474 - 18,474
EUREREER" Finance lease receivables* - - - 10,501 10,501
BEBIER Pledged bank deposits
R - Not yet past due 27,251 - - - 27,251
Be RBTHR Cash and bank balances
- REH - Not yet past due 671911 - - - 671911
REARITNER  FAYE - Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
RIEERGETEPIEEE for a bank loan granted to a customer to
FEEERNRTER purchase the Group's products
KRB - Not yet past due 4,180 - - - 4,180
RELBINER - &AYE - Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
RIEERGTER for guarantee provided to a customer
—-KaH - Not yet past due 171 - - - 171
1,193,831 - 18,474 986,708 2,199,013
* RAKEEARERESCAANEKE *  For trade receivables and finance lease receivables to which the

FEREERBERERTIME - BN
BRI BRI B TS MR MY FE21 J 237 Y

Group applies the simplified approach for provision for impairment,
information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in notes 21

= o and 23 to the financial statements.
* BREWEREREFARGZAGTS « BIRIE **  The credit quality of the bills receivable and the financial assets

LEMEBEERNEREEL RAS - A
LEENRAZSTSRMEE B VIHRERR
EERRBEZEM  MEEEEARMRA
[E®]- B SRMEENEEERRR
BIRIE] -

included in deposits, prepayments and other receivables is
considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”.
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40. iR EEBERBEE) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

REES @R Liquidity risk
AEERARBRRASDESFTS TH » JAE The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using recurring
RHEEsERMER - 2 TAZEI R liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the maturity of both
TR : ENBEZEZEBEEREFR) REmHE its financial instruments (e.g., trade and bills payables) and
E(m : EUE 5 N E R A K FE Y financial assets (e.g., trade and bills receivables and finance lease
EHERFONIBARBALERES R receivables) and projected cash flows from operations.
= .
AEENSHABR(BEXREE) RRE The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities (including
AR (R E FT A ARITIR AT 5058 ) B0 2 B B contingent liabilities) as at the end of the reporting period, based
DT on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:
2023
ZEANLER
=fAR TZEAR
HEER More than
Less than 3 months and BBEE
3 months or less than —-Z1F Over st
(BEFIT) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
ERESREEER Trade and bills payables 522,501 100,866 - - 623,367
AR EMARR R Financial liabilities included in
EAEENERERE other payables and accruals 159,334 - 2,196 - 161,530
MERRE Lease liabilities 671 3,253 14,304 5,390 23618
RELFTHER - Guarantee given to a bank,
FAEE - BEER at the maximum, for a bank
BTEPIERELRLEE loan granted to a customer to
EMMRITER purchase the Group’s products 2,641 - - - 2,641
685,147 104,119 16,500 5,390 811,156
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40. iR EEBERBEE) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

REBESRER(E) Liquidity risk (continued)

2022
ZEANER
AR +=EAR
FRER More than

Less than 3 months and

3 months or less than it st
(BEFT) (HK$'000) on demand 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
ENESRFEER Trade and bills payables 578,958 116,736 - 695,694
AR ERERK Financial liabilities included in
[EFTEERNSRERE other payables and accruals 175,552 - 8,158 183,710
BEEE Lease liabilities 608 1,420 5,287 7315
HTEBITER Interest-bearing bank borrowings 21,568 - - 21,568
RARTHER - ZAZE - Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
BEERGTRPIERE for a bank loan granted to a customer to
AEEERMBITER purchase the Group’s products 4,180 - - 4,180
REABITHER - SAHE - Guarantee given to a bank, at the maximum,
REERETEP for guarantee provided to a customer 171 - - 171
781,037 118,156 13,445 912,638
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40. CREMEEEERBEE) 40.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

220

EREE

AEEEAEENTZEERAKELNEE
SELCERE N RIRFRENE AL X -
PASZ 35 H 7 R KR E Mo 18 & AR 3R A
ARE BRI B MR B i B 1R &
HEREE - RRFIABREREE - K
EESEABRKTRENORE « MBRERR
EIEASETHR - HE_T_=F= A
=t+-BR-E-_-_F=A=+—HItF
BR - ZEEAEH 2 BIZ « BERSERF
W BT 2EE ©

AN - AEBTERFRBEEMR RS K
75#1,990,404,00050( — T = —4F : B
2,042,490,0007T) (N8R BN E E R AATR
PEB)ELRER c AEBIZBR AR
EFRBEELSR -

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR

POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximize shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and make adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March
2023 and 31 March 2022.

In addition, the Group monitors capital using the position of net
current assets of HK$1,990,404,000 (2022: HK$2,042,490,000),
which is total current assets minus total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to maintain a positive balance of the net current
assets.
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—E-_=ZF=ZA=+—H 31 March 2023
41. A B BRI & 41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

KA R BERRNT MR KE R @ Information about the statement of financial position of the
N Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:
(GBEFr) (HK$'000) 2023 2022
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
RHBRARZIRE Investments in subsidiaries 627,081 770,214
WEEE CURRENT ASSETS
318 REMEWBER Deposits and other receivables 1,228 759
ReRRITET Cash and bank balances 65,302 20,763
REEEELT Total current assets 66,530 21,522
REEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
HibEMER L EFBE Other payables and accruals 6,568 10,623
HBRITESR Interest-bearing bank borrowings - 21,568
mE B Eest Total current liabilities 6,568 32,191
REEE(&E)FE NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 59,962 (10,669)
EEAERRBES TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 687,043 759,545
kRBAR NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEMEMNERTRESAE Other payables and accruals 695 -
EERE NET ASSETS 686,348 759,545
i EQUITY
BEITIRAK Issued share capital 63,053 63,053
=) Reserves (note) 623,295 696,492
BT TOTAL EQUITY 686,348 759,545

EEEEAR AT 2022/23 Fi
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Notes to Financial Statements (continued)
31 March 2023

41.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Bt - Note:
AABlZ HESZEDT A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
R EXRE
RER R
Share Capital N1 RE R
premium  redemption Capital Retained @t

(BETFT) (HK$'000) account reserve reserve profits Total
RZE-_—FNA—AH At 1 April 2021 509,580 295 445 166,262 676,582
AEERTF R Profit for the year and total

AEEH2ENRE comprehensive income for the year - - - 123,839 123,839
PARRRE S (R BB AR B 22 Equity-settled share option arrangements - - 1,370 - 1,370
Hz—Z-—-F#=A=t+-HL Final dividend for the year ended

FEZRERE(HE12) 31 March 2021 (note 12) - - - (72,511) (72,511)
RERR B (M3E12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - - (32,788) (32,788)
RZZE-—F=ZA=+-HK At 31 March 2022 and

—“E-FMA—H 1 April 2022 509,580 295 1,815 184,802 696,492
AEERMR Profit for the year and total

AEEBEANE comprehensive income for the year - - - 26,878 26,878
PARRIE S, (BB AR 2o bk Equity-settled share option arrangements - - 1,441 - 1,441
BE_Z-_—#=A=+-AHIt Final dividend for the year ended

FEZRERE (M) 31 March 2022 (note 12) - - - (73,142) (73,142)
RERE (HEE12) Interim dividend (note 12) - - - (28,374) (28,374)
RZZE-=F=F=1—H At 31 March 2023 509,580 295 3,256 110,164 623,295

EARBRACEEERARTROBREZ 2
FE - XN BRI EIAERBEN A
RHZBABEE-—FRE - ZSHHERIERA
BREETERNEEROEE - XREEE
P g8 Fe o B AR 42 LA R A BB ZE AR R )

EHEEEFR AT 2022/23 FiR

related share options expire or are forfeited.

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of share options granted which
are yet to be exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payment transactions in note 3 to the financial statements.
The amount will either be transferred to share premium when the related
share options are exercised, or be transferred to retained profits when the
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—E-=F=A=+—H 31 March 2023

42 LB £ EE 42.COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
ETURSHEENMDEUAFTAEAFER Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform to
FEFR © the current year's presentation.

43. BB EFHR 43.APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
W ERERER S _=F A =-+/<H The financial statements were approved and authorized for issue
LEEREM RITETRE - by the board of directors on 26 June 2023.
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TR Z AR REER /Y AFEREE
EEAFEIERASEEEFELTZH N Z
MEAR - EFAIRR - JIHEKHERF

ZFHERBRITE -

Principal Subsidiaries

As at 31 March 2023

The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of

excessive length.

KAFHE
B S EEEIL
kggihE Percentage
Place of BRITRA of equity
incorporation/ BERER attributable
AFERE registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BiERFE
Held indirectly
BRI BRAR ae Limk 100 THE T B
Asian Plastic Machinery Taiwan Ordinary Sale of
Company, Limited® #74 #50,000,0007T plastic injection
NTD50,000,000 moulding machines
Chen Hsong Europe B.V. Gl TEk 100 SHEE X IB I
Netherlands Ordinary Sale of
100,000k 7T plastic injection
Euro100,000 moulding machines
BUHETERE ORY) BRAF® A/ 3,000,000% 7T 100 BEME
Chen Hsong Industrial Park A KRE US$3,000,000 Property holding
(Shenzhen) Company Limited® PRC/
Mainland China
BIEHEBAER DA B LRRAE2T 100 THE T
Chen Hsong Machinery Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Sale of
Company, Limited BRI R G - plastic injection
7 150,000,0007T moulding machines
Non-voting deferred “
HK$50,000,000
B (ZR)BR AT O A/ 8,010,000% 7T 100 BUE R IHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery (Ningbo) A KRE US$8,010,000 Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® ® PRC/ of plastic injection

224 EIEEEARAR 2022/23 F1

Mainland China

moulding machines
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Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
As at 31 March 2023

NN ]
L E EEE L
& E Percentage
Place of BRITRA of equity
incorporation/ BERER attributable
IR registration Issued share/ to the FEEK
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BiERE(E)
Held indirectly (continued)
EHEEBORIDBERAROO HEd/ 17,130,000% 70 100 BUE RHE T B
Chen Hsong Machinery (Shenzhen) iy N 7 US$17,130,000 Manufacture and sale
Company Limited® ® PRC/ of plastic injection
Mainland China moulding machines
B AR A E]© ag iR 100 FhENIHE T
Chen Hsong Machinery Taiwan Taiwan Ordinary Manufacture and sale
Company, Limited® #16%165,000,0007T of plastic injection
NTD165,000,000 moulding machines
BIEREZECRINBRAGDO e/ 75 #24,000,0007T 100 BUE RHE T
Chen Hsong Mechanical and iy N HK$24,000,000 Manufacture and
Electrical Equipment PRC/ sale of tie bars
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.0® Mainland China
EEEHE ORY) ARARO® AR/ 75 #10,000,0007T 100 SHE T EBH
Chen Hsong Sales & Marketing ESEipN G HK$10,000,000 Sale of
(Shenzhen) Company, PRC/ plastic injection
Limited® ® Mainland China moulding machines
Chen Hsong South America B BEmEombs,721,000 100 THE T
Importacdo, Exportacéo e Brazil R$5,721,000 Sale of
Comeércio de Equipamentos Ltda. plastic injection
moulding machines
5L T B (R BB B R A e/ 7,300,000 7T 100 BUERIHE T
BRAG®O NG US$7,300,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De Plastics PRC/ of plastic injection

Machinery Company Limited® ©

EIEEEBR AR 2022/23 Fi
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Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
As at 31 March 2023

PN ]
B B
R Percentage
Place of BRITRA of equity
incorporation/ BEWESR attributable
ATERE registration Issued share/ to the FTEER
Company name and operations paid-up capital Company Principal activities
BiERE (&)
Held indirectly (continued)
G EE =ty b 3 HREd/ 7,900,000 7T 100 BUE MBI B
BRRAFO AR K US$7,900,000 Manufacture and sale
Foshan Shunde Chen De Precision PRC/ of plastic injection
Machinery Co., Limited® ® Mainland China moulding machines
BILTIEEEFZRE B/ 3,000,000 7T 100 FERHEREEE
BRAEMO AP B A B US$3,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Intra-ltalia Hydraulics PRC/ of hydraulic motors
(Foshan Shunde) Co., Ltd.)® Mainland China
RINBEREREBERERAR@O HEl/ 12,000,000 7T 100 BUE RIHESEMN
Shenzhen Chen Hsong Precision AR K e US$12,000,000 Manufacture and sale
Equipment Limited® © PRC/ of casting parts

Mainland China

Bt - Notes:

(1) WERRBINGBEDRZE (1) These companies are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

(2) AR ARINGEREDE - (2) This company is a Sino-foreign equity joint venture.

(3) ItERBRINEREDRE - (3) These companies are foreign invested enterprises.

(4) IS T RRENR D B IR IR UL E S 2 - (4) The non-voting deferred shares carry limited rights to dividends, no

rights to vote at general meetings and limited rights to receive any
surplus in a return of capital in a winding-up.

BRERRKEG LREREZBHIENNE
BREFWHBEENK Z BER -

(5) BB RTBEMHER - (5) English company names are translated for identification purposes only.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets,

liabilities and non-

MikE I MEMRNES - BE - BEM&  controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
FEPERRAE RS o extracted from the published audited financial statements, is set out
below.
iy RESULTS
HE=A=1+—HIFFE Year ended 31 March
(EETFT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
g Revenue 2,312,584 2,728,763 2,360,553 1,513,363 1,635,938
"iEm Profit from operating activities 161,012 239,097 270,013 150,855 124,918
BE A Finance costs (1,157) (1,306) (1,948) (2,583) (1,954)
=N Share of profits less losses
S IR0 B 18 of assaciates (914) 777 2,737 738 1,043
BT A F Profit before tax 158,941 238,568 270,802 149,010 124,007
e Income tax expense (30,156) (24,574) (65,977) (55,962) (34,778)
REE R F Profit for the year 128,785 213,994 204,825 93,048 89,229
) Attributable to:
AARERREA Equity holders of the Company 130,289 213,309 203,021 93,651 90,279
FEIE R iR Non-controlling interests (1,504) 685 1,804 (603) (1,050)
128,785 213,994 204,825 93,048 89,229
BE  BEREERES ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
R=A=+—H As at 31 March
(EETFIT) (HK$'000) 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
BEBE Total assets 4,149,309 4,429,327 4,378438 3,442573 3,451,745
BE%LE Total liabilities (1,081,128) (1,200,865) (1,365,392)  (764,263)  (685,669)
FEER IR Non-controlling interests (19,041) (19,413) (16,514) (13,559) (14,144)
3,049,140 3,209,049 2,996,532 2,664,751 2,751,932
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Particulars of Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2023

AEH HEEER
EihER (FHXK)
Attributable Gross
ih Bh BREFAR AnEn interest of floor area
Location Existing use Type of lease the Group (sq. m.)
H I A R 100% 4972 ,000
BERERYI™ Industrial Medium Approximately
SFILE 72,000
DU E
ARFERL775
EHTXE

12-BiE - 13-BiE MBEREKIE
Block 12-B, Block 13-B and

canteen building in District B

Chen Hsong Industrial Park

177 Renmin West Road

Kengzi Sub-District

Pingshan District

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province

The PRC
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REEEERAT
Chen Hsong Holdings Limited

&8 EAERRE 1858 B Hil /00 20422001 =
Unit 2001, 20th Floor, Citicorp Centre, 18 Whitfield Road, Hong Kong

EEE / Tel : (852) 2665 3222

{&E / Fax: (852) 2664 8202

#8311k / Website: www.chenhsong.com
EE#f / E-mail: comm@chenhsong.com
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